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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision
to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk
profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market
more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of the companies listed on GEM and
the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized
companies, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given
that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy
or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or
any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Shi Shi
Services Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with
regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are
no other matters the omission of which would make any statement
herein or this report misleading.
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GROUP STRUCTURE
2 B2

As at 31 March 2021: 742021 F3 A 31 A :

Shi Shi Service:
BRI

Kong Shum Union Property Management (BV1) Limited
ARABANRER HRAEANE) ARLT

| 100%

Kong Shum Union Property Management Group Limited
ERBANRER (RH) ARAT

100%

100% 100%

Lucky Stone Investments Limited

Happy Living Network
Technology Limited
B ERRRiTERAR

Shi Shi Property (Cayman) Limited
HER (F2) HRAA

100% 100% ‘ 100% ‘ 100%

100%

100%

30% 100%

100%

Yorkshire Proerty Management || Kong Shum Union Property
Company Lirited Management Company Liited

Lucky Stone Property o
HEEVRRREHARAT || ERBAHRERARAA

Investment Limited EREFARLT

Q&V Security Company Limited

K-King Cleaning Services Limited
ADEERHARLT

One Direction Property
Management Company Lirited
RANZEEERAT

Lucky Stone Finance Limited | | Dakin Holding Inc.

Happy Living Network Technology SHI SHI FUTURE PROPERTY SERVICE
(Hong Kong) Limited

LM
A E B (B ) R AR BEARNLRBERDA

1 100% 100%

Fortune Trend Investment Limited
FEREERAT

More Rise Investment Limited
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Shi Shi Property Limited
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Nature of Services:
RASMHE:

Shi Shi Services Limited
R R TS BBR A A

Kong Shum Property Management Group Limited
BARBEMEEEEEBRAR

Kong Shum Union Property Management Company Limited

BABAMEERARAA

Q & V Security Company Limited
GEEHERAF

K-King Cleaning Services Limited

EYERRBEERAR

Yorkshire Property Management Company Limited

AR EMEERRBEER AR

Fortune Trend Investment Limited

THERERR AR

More Rise Investment Limited
RAREBR AT

Lucky Stone Investments Limited

Kong Shum Union Property Management (BVI) Limited

BRABEMEETE (RBEBRES)ERAR
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Cayman Islands

HEHS

British Virgin Islands

RERZES

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
BE

British Virgin Islands

RBRELES

British Virgin Islands

RBRAES

Investment holding

A

Investment holding
REER

Provision of property management services

REMEE IR

Provision of security services

RHEZ R

Provision of cleaning services by subcontracting
miBS RIRMEEZRE

Provision of property management services

REMEEERE

Property investment

MEKE

Property investment
MERE
Investment holding

S

Investment holding
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Nature of Services:
PRAEHE:

Happy Living Network Technology Limited
A ERE R ER AR

Happy Living Network Technology (Hong Kong) Limited
P EBK R (FE)BRAR

Lucky Stone Property Investment Limited

Lucky Stone Finance Limited

One Direction Property Management Company Limited
BEMEERBRAF

HEHAEMEERAT

Dakin Holding Inc.

BB AR I A R A A

LR FREEEERAR

ERERYEREER QA

BARRERERER QA

SHI SHI PROPERTY (CAYMAN) LIMITED
BRYE(FHS) BRI

SHI SHI FUTURE PROPERTY SERVICE LIMITED
BB R R RIS A IR R A

SHI SHI PROPERTY LIMITED
FEMEERAF
BEMERBER QA

WREEMERBERAF

REMERE (Ea) BRQA

British Virgin Islands
EEREZES

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
e

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
e

People’s Republic of China
REARIAME

British Virgin Islands
KBRS

People’s Republic of China
PEARFERE

People’s Republic of China
REEARFARME

People’s Republic of China
PEARFERE

People’s Republic of China
REEARAME

Cayman Islands

FERE

British Virgin Islands
REELES

Hong Kong
e

People’s Republic of China
REE AR

People’s Republic of China
REEARARE

People’s Republic of China
REE AR

Investment holding

RERK

Investment holding
REZR

Provision of property agency services

REME AR IR

Money lending business

MIEZET

Dormant
g

Provision of property management and
consultancy services

REYEERRFEARS

Provision of financial services
in Hong Kong
REBRESBIRE

Provision of property management services

REMEEERS

Provision of property management services

REMEE IR

Provision of property management services

REMEEERS

Medical services, health management
consulting services

BERY - REEEE RS

Investment holding

BEEK

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding

BERK

Provision of property management services

REMEEERE

Provision of property management services

R EEERT

Provision of property management services

REMEEERE
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETRBE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Shi Shi
Services Limited (the “Company”), | hereby present the annual
report of the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s principal
activities were provision of property management services,
properties investment and money lending business.

During the year under review, the Group continued its
development efforts to stay competitive in the property
management market. Under our property management portfolio,
we have been awarded 13 Hong Kong management contracts
in residential and non-residential projects mainly including Tung
Chun Court with 1217 units, Kwai Chun Court 1,050 units, Walton
Estate 903 units and Hoi Tak Court 814 units.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, revenue of the Group
was approximately HK$511.1 million (2020: HK$487.4 million),
representing an increase of 4.9% as compared with last year.
The gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021
was approximately HK$108.6 million (2020: HK$110.9 million),
representing a decrease of approximately 2.0% as compared with
last year. The net profit margin increased by approximately 0.2%
from approximately 2.9% for the year ended 31 March 2020 to
approximately 3.1% for year ended 31 March 2021.

The earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2021 was
HK$0.015 (2020: HK$0.014).

The Group would like to share more details of the Group’s
performance, financial position and operation in the year
2020/2021 with shareholders in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis”.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

The number of property in Hong Kong market is expanding.
Public opinion voices concern over housing stock production
and the speeding up of the issue of housing completion in the
near future is expected to solve the issue of heavy demand on
housing. It is envisaged that the property management business
will expand simultaneously. Meanwhile, we will continue to
expand our management portfolio by capturing the continuing
outsourcing activities implemented by private residential owners,
corporations and government institutions. Since we started
property management business in 1984, giving our customers the
best service has always been our goal. Over the years, we have
grown into one of the largest property management companies in
Hong Kong. Leveraging on our experience and scale of business,
we will continue to seek for opportunities to expand the current
property management business through self-development
and/or investment(s) in suitable targets/assets, and/or through
co-operation by way of joint venture(s) with other parties. In order
to increase the profitability of this segment, we consider the cost
control is as important as expanding the management portfolio.
We are reviewing the operating performance of the property
management business and appropriate cost controls will be
implemented in the forthcoming financial year, if necessary.

The Group has recorded growth in its revenue since its listing on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange which mainly attributable to its
property management services in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) markets during the year under
review and recorded revenue of approximately HK$509.0 million
(2020: HK$485.0 million) from this segment.

Looking into the future, Shi Shi Group is committed to the
development of big consumption and general healthcare sector.
The business lines of the Group will be divided into five segments,
namely Shi Shi Life, Shi Shi Doctor, Shi Shi Property, Shi Shi
Finance and Shi Shi Network. Among which, Shi Shi Life provides
clothing, food, housing, transportation, entertainment, education
and health services through its online platform and localization
service for 7X24 hours; Shi Shi Doctor provides home care, home
rehabilitation, home treatment, outpatient (clinic) treatment and
rehabilitation, local hospital-based two-way referral (green pass),
domestic and international two-way referral and other five-level
treatment system through its online platform and specialised
outpatient clinic. We are pleased to tell you that both brands of
Shi Shi Life and Shi Shi Doctor have been approved by the State
Intellectual Property Office as registered trademarks. What makes
us more excited is that Shi Shi Life, Shi Shi Doctor, life services
and health management have commenced operation on a trial
basis with good results so far. Shi Shi Property continues to tap into
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETRBE

household consumption and expand the GFA under management
with its digital platform. Shi Shi Finance has been launched to
consumer finance, service insurance and asset insurance market
with its online platform. The technology team of Shi Shi network
provides platform and intelligent scenario development, which
empowers the business of the Group and provides development
services to more peers in the life, health, property, consumer
finance and service insurance, property insurance industry at the
same time.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my warmest
gratitude to the management and our staff for their significant
contributions. | would like to extend my sincere gratitude to all our
shareholders and investors for their endless support. With the solid
business base and the effort of all our staff, the Group will endeavor
to open a new chapter in the future.

Huang Liming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of property
management services primarily targeting residential properties,
properties investment and money lending business. The Group
operates under the brand name of “Kong Shum” in Hong Kong
and provides a range of management services in Hong Kong and
the PRC including security, repair and maintenance, cleaning,
financial management, administrative and legal support. Under
an established functional structure with various departments,
the Group has dedicated teams to carry out the aforementioned
management services. The Group also employs a team of security
staff to provide security services as part of the services provided
under property management contracts or under stand-alone
security services contracts. For the year ended 31 March 2021,
the Group provided property security services for 14 properties
under stand-alone security services contracts in Hong Kong.
The operating arm of the Group’s security services is mainly Q &
V Security Company Limited (“Q&V”). The Group hires its own
security staff to provide property security services. The Group
also employs registered technicians to provide basic repair and
maintenance services to its customers if required. In relation to the
cleaning services, the Group subcontracts substantially all of its
cleaning services to third-party contractors.

In relation to the provision of money lending business, the Group
recorded loan interest income of approximately HK$0.9 million
for the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: HK$0.9 million). As at
31 March 2021, the Company has loan receivable with a carrying
amount of approximately HK$18 million (31 March 2020: HK$18
million).

The maturity date of the loan receivable of HK$18,000,000 was
26 March 2021, and was subsequently renewed on 29 June 2021
at an interest rate of 10% per annum. The renewed loan will be
matured on 26 March 2022.
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Principal
Borrowers Drawdown date amount Interest rate Terms Notes
BRA BB KEH xR HABR B &£
A 27 March 2021 HK$18 million 10% per annum 1 year (i)
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(i) Details of the above are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 29
June 2021.

For the properties investment business, the Group recorded rental
income from an investment property of approximately HK$1.2
million for the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: HK$1.5 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEBENWE D
FINANCIAL REVIEW B 7% [B]
Summary Financial Performance MBRRBE
2021 2020
2021 & 2020 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000 Change
FET FET HEH)
Revenue Y &5 511,116 487,395 4.9%
Cost of services PR 75 A A< (402,478) (376,495) 6.9%
Gross Profit EH 108,638 110,900 -2.0%
Gross profit margin ERZE 21.3% 228%  nla TiEMA
Interest revenue A B = 1,006 568 77.1%
Other income and expenses, net  EfbUg A K 52 H %8 20,519 (1,100) -1,965.5%
Share of loss of an associate JE(h —RIBt & AR E 1B (5,130) (1,320) 288.6%
Administrative expenses TR (62,287) (54,358) 14.6%
Other operating expenses HMgEmz (22,377) (19,040) 17.5%
Impairment of Investment in R—HEEERRZ
an associate HERE (16,500) - nlaTEA
Listing expenses EmAX (2,893) (11,367) nla @M
Finance costs B & A A (581) (1,018) -42.9%
Profit before tax B 75 B a A 20,395 23,265 -12.3%
Income tax expense Frigti (4,541) (9,065) -49.9%
Profit attributable to owners AKATEEAEGER
of the Company 15,856 14,174 11.9%
Net profit margin AR = 3.1% 29%  n/a TNEA

Shi Shi Services Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVENUE

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s revenue was
derived from its operations in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) of approximately HK$471.6 million
(2020: HK$439.5 million) and HK$39.5 million (2020: HK$47.9
million), respectively.

The Group derived revenue of approximately HK$32.7 million
and HK$32.6 million respectively from stand-alone security
services contracts for the year ended 31 March 2020 and 2021
respectively, representing approximately 6.7% and 6.4% of its
total revenue.

The following table sets out the Group’s revenue by contract type
for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020 respectively:

BEEFNWR D

Wz

HE2021F3A31BILFE  AEEKRE
HEBBNPEARLME ([FEH]) @
BB ED B4 B471618 78 5T (2020
F 1 43951878 JT) & 3,950 8 7 7T (2020
F 479088 T) °

HZE2020F M 2021 F3 A31 BIEFE - &~
SEREBLIRETREE LIRS BIA
B32708 BT R326088 L DAlEE
UL HI6.7% 2 6.4% °

TEREGHBERIINAEED HIIREE
2021 %} 2020 F 3 A31 B ILF/E 2 Wz

2021 2020
2021 § 20204
HK$ million  Percentage HK$ million  Percentage

BEERT FEESH

BEBT MIGEDL

Property management services MEEBRBEE L
contracts 4714 92.2% 438.7 90.0%
Stand-alone security services BIREZRBEELH
contracts 32.6 6.4% 32.7 6.7%
Property management consultancy ¥ ¥ EEERRIS S 4
services contract 5.0 1.0% 13.6 2.8%
Rental services contracts HERBE L 1.2 0.2% 15 0.3%
Money lending services HUE AR 75 0.9 0.2% 0.9 0.2%
511.1 100.0% 487.4 100%

The Group’s revenue improved by approximately 4.9% from
approximately HK$487.4 million for the year ended 31 March
2020 to approximately HK$511.1 million for the year ended
31 March 2021. The increase was primarily attributable to the
growth of its property management service in Hong Kong for
the year ended 31 March 2021. During the year, the number of
management service contracts obtained by Hong Kong decreased
by 2 from 444 during the year ended 31 March 2020 to 442
for the year ended 31 March 2021. Revenue generated from
property management services contracts recorded an increase of
approximately 7.5% to approximately HK$471.4 million for the
year ended 31 March 2021.

AREERNWZFBEEZE 202043 A31 HIEF
[E#A.874BB T EFAL49% 2H ZE 2021
F3A31HILFEAS.111EBIT %M
FTERNEE2021F3A3IHIEFEER
BEENMEEERBERMAE - FA - B
BEEDEMNERRBE S YE B AE = 2020
FI3A3IBIEFENMADR L2 EE
2021 F3A31HIEFEM421) - B E
2021 F3A31BILFE MEEERRKE
HEEMWEEEBIE NG 7.5% E44.714
BT -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFNWR DM

REVENUE (continued)

The following graph sets out the revenue for the years ended 31
March 2019, 2020, 2021.

Revenue ez
HK$ million BE&BTT
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COST OF SERVICES

The total cost of services amounted to approximately HK$376.5
million and HK$402.5 million for the years ended 31 March 2020
and 2021 respectively, representing approximately 77.2% and
78.7% respectively of the Group’s revenue. Increase in the cost of
services during the year of approximately 6.9% was mainly due to
the increase in the wages of the front line staff of the Group.

GROSS PROFIT

The gross profit of the Group decreased by approximately 2.0%
from approximately HK$110.9 million for the year ended 31
March 2020 to approximately HK$108.6 million for the year
ended 31 March 2021. The gross profit margin was approximately
22.8% and 21.3% for the year ended 31 March 2020 and 2021
respectively.

The following graph sets out the gross profit for the years ended 31
March 2019, 2020 and 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The profit attributable to owners of the Company was significant
increased by approximately 12.0% from approximately HK$14.2
million for the year ended 31 March 2020 to approximately
HK$15.9 million for the year ended 31 March 2021. The net
profit margin slightly increased by approximately 0.2% from
approximately from 2.9% to 3.1% for the years ended 31 March
2020 and 2021 respectively.

Increase in profit was mainly due to:

(i) Increase in the other income arising from the net government
subsidies of approximately HK$19.9 million for the year
ended 31 March 2021 regarding the Employment Support
Scheme under the Government’s Anti-epidemic Fund
(2020: Nil);

(i)  Decrease in the listing expenses arising from the proposed
transfer of listing from GEM to the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited from approximately
HK$11.4 million to approximately HK$2.9 million for the year
ended 31 March 2021; and partly offset by

(i) Increase in the share of loss of an associate, namely
Dakin Holdings Inc. from approximately HK$1.3 million to
approximately HK$5.1 million; for the year ended 31 March
2021;

(iv) Decrease in revenue arising from its property management
services in the PRC from approximately HK$47.9 million to
approximately HK$39.5 million; and

(v) Impairment of investment in an associate, namely Dakin
Holdings Inc. for the amount of approximately HK$16.5
million for the year ended 31 March 2021.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The Group’s administrative expenses for the year ended 31 March
2021 were approximately HK$62.3 million (2020: HK$54 .4
million), representing an increase of approximately 14.5% as
compared to the corresponding year in 2020 as a result of increase
in staff salaries and bonus incurred for the year ended 31 March
2021.

BEEFNWR D

RABERAEERR

RN REA A FEM % M B E %= 2020 5 3 A
1B IEFEHNLA208 8 TIE MK 12.0%
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A31BIEFEDRIHRL29%BE K T4
02% 23.1% °
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(i) 15— 5 = 2 7] (B) Dakin Holdings
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE DM
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES Hip B

The Group’s other operating expenses for the year ended 31 #HZ2021F3 831 BItFE KEEHE
March 2021 were approximately HK$22.4 million (2020: HK$19.0 b % & 9 32 49 52,240 & 7% 7T (2020 4F :
million), representing an increase of approximately 17.5% as 1,900 & /& 7t) » #2020 4 [& Hi 1% hn 49
compared to the corresponding period in 2020 as a result of 17.5% * JyEHRERNME M= MR EITE
increase in depreciation of property, plant and equipment during & INFTEK -

the year.

The following table sets out other operating expenses by nature for T~ Z i% M & (5 AT R F E 89 H fib & & 54

the years indicated. X °

For the years ended 31 March
BZEZ3H3IBLEE

2021 2020
2021 % 2020 FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEM & 750 742
Consultancy fee =Sk 994 967
Depreciation and amortisation & N 5 6,324 3,318
Exchange difference ME N ZER 139 80
Insurance fee R & 4,763 3,610
Legal and professional fee FREREEE 2,973 3,251
Office expenses NN 2,221 2,231
Others HAtb 600 682
Registration, licence and subscription fee i BRBLREE 153 158
Travelling and entertainment expenses EZREBERAX 3,460 4,001
22,377 19,040

Shi Shi Services Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFNWR D

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

RBEE MBERRERER

For the year ended/
as at 31 March
BE3ANALEES

M3A31H
2021 2020
2021 & 2020 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Financial position B AR R
Current assets MENEE 257,578 277,292
Current liabilities mEaE 94,495 92,374
Net current assets MEEEFE 163,083 184,918
Total assets BERE 422,644 393,590
Bank borrowings and lease liabilities RITEEMEERE 18,676 18,162
Bank balances and cash RITEHEBRNIRE 105,328 141,422
Total equity MR ABRE 318,971 298,822
Key ratios FERER
Return on equity (1) REAS B3R & (1) 5.1% 4.8%
Return on assets (2) BERFRE(2) 3.9% 3.7%
Current ratio (3) MENEL 2 (3) 2.73 timesf&  3.00 times &
Gearing ratio (4) BEEAGBELREAG) 5.9% 6.1%
Net Debt to equity ratio (5) BEFEYEREEER(B) 0% 0%
Debtors turnover day (6) JE YRR X E 82 H 2(6) 61.8daysH  61.1daysH
Creditors turnover day (7) ERTERREE B E(7) 40.2daysH  43.6daysH

Notes:

1. Return on equity is calculated as the profit for the year divided by average
total equity.

2. Return on assets is calculated as the profit for the year divided by average

total assets.

Current ratio is calculated as the current assets divided by current liabilities.

3.

4. Gearing ratio is calculated as the total debt divided by total equity. For
the avoidance of doubt, total debt represents bank borrowings, and lease
liabilities.

b. Net debt to equity ratio is calculated as the total debt net of cash and bank
balances and divided by total equity. For the avoidance of doubt, total debt
represents bank borrowings, and lease liabilities.

6. Debtors’ turnover day is calculated as average trade receivables divided by
revenue times number of days in the period.

7.

Creditors’ turnover day is calculated as average trade payables divided by
cost of services times number of days in the period.

Wit -

1.

st

=

P A [B1 3 2R TY 332 4 13 U B LA ST 49 4 s AR BR AT

BB R R Ty IR E M MR DA SF 9 B E A ERT
& o

MBI RBEERNURBBEFE -
BEABLRTNRAGEEBERIAERERETE -
ARLRE BEAERRTEELEERE -

BEFEAERLERDRAERERRS LR
TRBEB ARG BETE - BRELRME 8
BREERITEEREEAE -

e BR SRR 8 B BT T 19 B 5 AR TR A
W SR AB A B #EE -

FERBRSRA®E B BT IR V9B 5 BN RS A
ARFGRCASSRIA BN H BT H -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFNWR DM

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE (continued)

The Group maintained sufficient working capital as at 31 March
2021 with bank balances and cash of approximately HK$105.3
million (2020: HK$141.4 million).

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had bank borrowings, obligations
under finance lease and lease liabilities of approximately HK$18.7
million (2020: HK$18.2 million).

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s net current assets amounted to
approximately HK$163.1 million (2020: HK$184.9 million). The
Group’s operations are financed principally by revenue generated
from its business operations, available cash and bank balances.

RETURN ON EQUITY

The return on equity slightly increased from approximately 4.8%
for the year ended 31 March 2020 to approximately 5.1% for the
year ended 31 March 2021, mainly due to the increase in profit for
the year.

RETURN ON ASSETS

The return on assets was slightly increased from approximately
3.7% for the year ended 31 March 2020 to approximately 3.9%
for the year ended 31 March 2021, mainly due to the increase in
profit for the year.

CURRENT RATIO

The Group’s current ratio slightly decrease from approximately 3.0
times as at 31 March 2020 to approximately 2.7 times as at 31
March 2021.

GEARING RATIO

The Group’s gearing ratio, defined as the total debt (i.e. bank
borrowings and lease liabilities) divided by total equity, as at 31
March 2021 is approximately 5.9% (2020: 6.1%).

Shi Shi Services Limited
B B AR 35 PR 2 7
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

NET DEBT TO EQUITY RATIO

The Group’s net debt to equity ratio was 0% as at 31 March 2020
and 31 March 2021 which indicates that the Group’s has sufficient
cash and bank balances for debts repayment.

DEBTORS’ TURNOVER DAY

The debtors’ turnover day slightly increased from approximately
61.1 days for the year ended 31 March 2020 to approximately
61.8 days for the year ended 31 March 2021 due to increased
collecting time on trade debtors.

CREDITORS’ TURNOVER DAY

The creditors’ turnover day decreased by 3.6 day from
approximately 43.6 days for the year ended 31 March 2020 to
approximately 40.2 days for the year ended 31 March 2021. The
decrease was due to the early settlement of some creditors.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil).

DIVIDEND POLICY

Under the Dividend Policy, the declaration and payment of
dividends shall be determined by the Board and subject to all
the applicable requirements under, including but not limited to,
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the articles of
association of the Company.

The Company do not have any pre-determined dividend
payout ratio. In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in
determining an appropriate basis for dividend distribution, the
Board will take into account, inter alia, results of operations,
financial condition, the payment by the Group’s subsidiaries of
cash dividends to the Company, future prospects, legal and tax
considerations and other factors the Board deems appropriate.
Our Directors will consider that if there is material adverse impact
on our Group’s financial and liquidity position arising out of the
dividend payments. Dividends may be paid out by way of cash or
by other means that our Group considers appropriate.

The Company will continually review the Dividend Policy from
time to time. There is no guarantee that any particular amount of
dividends will be distributed for any specific periods.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFNWR DM

OPERATION REVIEW
Outlook

The property market in Hong Kong is expanding. Public opinion
voices concern over the housing stock production and the
speeding up of the completion of construction of properties in the
near future is expected to solve the heavy demand on housing.
It is envisaged that the property management business will
expand simultaneously. On the other hand, even though strong
competition and soaring cost resulting from statutory minimum
wage revision and inflation are unavoidable, the Directors are
confident that the Group is now on an appropriate stage to increase
its market share.

During the year, the Group has recorded revenue of approximately
HK$511.1 million (2020: HK$485.0 million) from its property
management services in Hong Kong and the PRC. Looking
forward, the provision of property management services in Hong
Kong and the PRC will continue to be the core business of the
Group while the management will continue to explore other
investment opportunities in order to increase the Group’s income
source and will therefore be in the interest of the Company and the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had a total of 1,857 employees
(2020: 1,752 employees). The Group’s staff costs for year ended
31 March 2021 amounted to approximately HK$409.6 million
(2020: HK$380.7 million). To ensure that the Group is able to
attract and retain staff capable of attaining the best performance
levels, remuneration packages are reviewed on a regular basis. In
addition, discretionary bonus is offered to eligible employees by
reference to the Group’s results and individual performance.

Services Contracts

Due to well-established team and project planning, during the year
ended 31 March 2021, 12 property management contracts were
awarded to the Group in Hong Kong.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, there were in total 442 service
contracts (covering around 75,372 households) comprising 415
property management service contracts, 13 stand-alone security
service contracts and 14 facility management service contracts in
Hong Kong.

Shi Shi Services Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

Contract Renewal Complying with Procedural Requirements

A service contract which does not comply with the procedural
requirements for contract renewal as stipulated in section 20A of
the Building Management Ordinance (Chapter 344 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) may be cancelled by the owners’ corporation.
Included in 442 contracts in force as at 31 March 2021, 214
service contracts are not in strict compliance with the said contract
renewal requirements, hence, termination notices were served
on clients involving in these contracts. All of the remaining 228
valid contracts as at 31 March 2021 are in compliance with the
said procedural requirements or not applicable under the Building
Management Ordinance. Senior management adopts a tight
control system to monitor the full compliance of the procedural
requirements. All newly signed contracts during the year ended 31
March 2021 included the mandatory term requiring the client to
follow the said procedural requirements, if applicable.

Client Accounts

As at 31 March 2021, the Group held 68 (31 March 2020: 68)
client accounts amounting to approximately HK$46.8 million
(31 March 2020: HK$47.2 million) on trust for and on behalf of
customers. These client accounts are opened in the names of the
Group and the relevant properties. The management fees received
from the tenants or owners of the properties were deposited into
these client accounts and the expenditure of these customers was
paid from these client accounts.

Performance Bond

As at 31 March 2021, a bank and an insurance company
issued 10 (31 March 2020: 7) bond certificates amounting to
approximately HK$15.7 million (31 March 2020: HK$10.8 million)
on behalf of the Group to the clients as required in the service
contracts.

Capital Expenditure

The Group purchased property, plant and equipment amounting
to approximately HK$29.5 million (approximately HK$24.3
million for direct additions and approximately HK$5.2 million
for construction in progress) for the year ended 31 March 2021
(2020: HK$13.1 million).

Capital Commitments

Details of capital commitments of the Group are set out in note 38
to the consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFNWR DM

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)
Contingent Liabilities

Details of contingent liabilities of the Group are set out in note 37
to the consolidated financial statements.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as
the Group’s deposits placed for life insurance policies are
denominated in United States dollar (“US$”).

The Group considers the risk exposure to foreign currency
fluctuation is limited as long as the HK$ remains pegged to the
USS$.

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in the functional currencies of the group entities. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy
in respect of foreign currency assets and liabilities. The Group will
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

Significant Investments Held, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates, Joint Ventures and
Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Asset

Disclosable and Connected Transaction in relation to an
Acaquisition of Property

On 28 December 2020, Shishi Network Technology Co., Ltd
(“Shishi Network”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
(the “Purchaser”), entered into the Property Sale Agreement with
Mr. Huang Liming (“Mr. Huang”), the chairman of the Board
and an executive director of the Company pursuant to which
Mr. Huang has conditionally agreed to sell and Shishi Network
has conditionally agreed to acquire five office units 222105 to
222109 on level 18 in Block 6 (Unit 2) on No.1 Futong East
Street, Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC (the “Property”) at the
consideration of RMB42 million which will be settled by cash (the
“Acquisition”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

Significant Investments Held, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates, Joint Ventures and
Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Asset
(continued)

Disclosable and Connected Transaction in relation to an
Acaquisition of Property (continued)

The Property will serve the purposes of the Company as a
headquarter office in the PRC and the Shi Shi Living Service Centre
for conference with potential clients and demonstration of its
concept on property management in the PRC aided by information
and technology with a view to reduce labour costs and optimize
efficiency.

As at 28 December 2020, Mr. Huang indirectly holds
approximately 61.00% equity interest in the Company through
Heng Sheng Capital Limited. Thus, Mr. Huang is a connected
person of the Company as defined under the Chapter 20 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”). As such, the entering into of
the Property Sale Agreement constitute connected transaction of
the Company.

As the consideration is more than HK$10.00 million, according
to GEM Listing Rules, the Property Sale Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder are subject to reporting,
announcement, circular (including independent financial advice)
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

As all the applicable ratios under Rule 19.07 of the GEM Listing
Rules are more than 5% but less than 25%, the Property Sale
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder also
constitute disclosable transaction for the Company under Chapter
19 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Compiletion of the Acquisition is subject to the fulfilment of various
conditions precedent and therefore the Acquisition together
with the transactions contemplated thereunder may or may not
proceed. Shareholders and potential investors are advised to
exercise caution when dealing in the securities of the Company.

The Acquisition was approved at the extraordinary general meeting
of the Company held on 29 January 2021 and completed on 4
June 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFNWR DM

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

Significant Investments Held, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates, Joint Ventures and
Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Asset
(continued)

Disclosable and Connected Transaction in relation to an
Acaquisition of Property (continued)

Details of this transaction are disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 28 December 2020, 14 January 2021, 29
January 2021 and 4 June 2021.

Major Shareholders

Heng Sheng Capital Limited is an investment holding company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on 4 August 2011 with
limited liability and is beneficially and wholly owned by Mr. Huang
Liming. Mr. Huang Liming is the sole director of Heng Sheng
Capital Limited.

As at 31 March 2021, Heng Sheng Capital Limited owns an
aggregate of 626,071,950 shares of the Company, representing
61% of the issued share capital of the Company.

Charges over Assets of the Group

As at 31 March 2021, certain bank deposits of approximately
HK$0.6 million (2020: HK$1.6 million) and the deposits placed
for life insurance policies of approximately HK$9.0 million (2020:
HK$8.8 million) were pledged to a bank to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group. In addition, the Group’s leasehold
land building and investment property with carrying value of
approximately HK$8,285,000 and HK$30,300,000 respectively
were pledged to secured bank facilities granted to the Group.
Besides, the Group had certain motor vehicles acquired under
lease. Carrying values of the right-of-use assets (motor vehicles)
amounted to approximately HK$0.1 million and HK$0.1 million
were under lease liabilities as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March
2020 respectively.

The deposits placed for life insurance policies are denominated
in United States dollars, a currency other than the functional
currency of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)
Use of Proceeds from the Listing

The actual net proceeds from the issue of new shares of the
Company under the Placing as set out in the Prospectus were
approximately HK$17.5 million, which was different from the
estimated net proceeds of approximately HK$24.4 million
(estimated on the assumption that the placing price would be the
mid-point of the stated range as stated in the Prospectus). For the
period from 20 September 2013 until 31 March 2021, the Group
has applied the net proceeds as follows:
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Net proceeds (HK$ million)
FEXREFRHE(BEET)

Available Utilised Unutilised

Al A 2E8A e R B B

Repayment of bank loans EERITER 7.5 7.5 -
Implementation of old district ERERYEEETE

property management scheme 43 - 4.3

Expansion of the property MEMEEEES
management portfolio 5.7 5.7 -
17.5 13.2 4.3

The unutilised balance of the net proceeds will be applied in the
manner consistent with that mentioned in the Prospectus.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFNWR DM

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)
Fund raising activity
The company was no fund raising activities during the year ended

31 March 2021 and fund raising activities in the prior years, as
detailed below:

KO EE ()
EETH
HZE2021F3A31BILFE » AR A&

BT EREEE B R BET Y AR
B EnmT

Date of initial Actual use of proceeds as
announcement Fund raising activities Net proceeds Intended use of proceeds at the date of this report
NERHRE SEEH FrieERE FIERERTERR REARERBREREERAR
31 October 2018 Placing of 171,000,000 new  Approximately HK$40.4 Intended to be used (i) Approximately HK$32.3 million has
(completed on 20 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 ~ million (net proceeds raised ~ approximately HK$32.3 been utilised as intended of which
November 2018) gach under general per Share was approximately — million for expansion approximately HK$24.2 million
201810 A31H mandate at the placing price ~ HK$0.236 per Share) of the Group’s property was utilised for expansion of the
(BER2018%11 of HK$0.24 per Share tonot  £74,0408 8 7L (EEMEM  management business in Group's property management
R20B5H) less than six places whoare  IRIAFTEFIEFELAE  the PRC and provision of business in the PRC and provision
independent professional, BRix(n0.236% L) living value-added services of living value-added services in
institutional or other in community; and (ii) community; and approximately
investors (closing price of approximately HK$8.1 HK$8.1 million was utilised for
the Share as quoted on the million for the general working capital of the Group.
Stock Exchange on the date working capital of the Group 413,230 BB LB iREtE R ER -
of the placing agreement is BEMAGIEFENL3230 HPN240BETRIERREAS
HK$0.28) ERTARERASER  ERPE NFEREBREML
BE-REERIDRA PEZMEEREBRE  HBRAESERS: RAO8108
ZEBUEE HEAH BHELEREERE: R BRREAEE/2EEE-
tREEARARE (i) ¥18I0B B LIERAE
171,000,000/ G R EI (& Bz-R2EES

0.01/BTHH L@ BE
BRERRN0.24 T (R
AREC & i A IR

FfRUmER028ET)

RISKS RELATING TO THE GROUP AND ITS
BUSINESS

The Group faces intense competition which may adversely affect
its market share and profitability. The property management
industry in Hong Kong is competitive and the competition may
exert some pressure on the service fees of property management
companies. The Group may therefore be required to reduce its
fees or maintain low service fees in view of the market pressure so
as to retain customers or pursue new business opportunities. The
Group’s revenue stream and profitability may also be adversely
affected if the customers terminate the service contracts with
the Group, whether by serving written notice or for the reason of
breach or material breach of the terms or conditions thereunder,
prior to the expiry date.

Shi Shi Services Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RISKS RELATING TO THE GROUP AND ITS
BUSINESS (continued)

Events after the Reporting Period

Disclosable and Connected Transaction in relation to an
Provision of the loan

On 25 February 2021 and 12 March 2021, Lucky Stone Finance
Limited (“Lucky Stone”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the Loan Agreement and the Supplemental
Agreement, respectively with Mr. Ho Ying Choi (“Mr. Ho"),
pursuant to which Lucky Stone has conditionally agreed to provide
the Loan in the principal amount of not more than HK$24 million
to Mr. Ho, as borrower, for a period of one year commencing from
the date of drawdown of the Loan at an interest rate of 10% per
annum.

Lucky Stone is principally engaged in money lending business as
licensed under the MLO. Therefore, the Provision of the Loan is
part of the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group.

As at 12 March 2021, Mr. Ho is an executive Director and
therefore is a connected person of the Company as defined under
the Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. As such, the entering into
of the Loan Agreement constitutes a connected transaction of the
Company.

As the principal amount of the Loan is more than HK$10 million,
according to the GEM Listing Rules, the Loan Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder are subject to reporting,
announcement, circular (including independent financial advice)
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

As all the applicable ratios under Rule 19.07 of the GEM Listing
Rules are more than 5% but less than 25%, the Loan Agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder also constitute a
disclosable transaction of the Company under Chapter 19 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

As the principal amount of the Loan exceeds 8% under the assets
ratio of the Group defined under Rule 19.07(1) of the GEM Listing
Rules and therefore the Loan may also constitute advance to an
entity under Rule 17.15 of the GEM Listing Rules and subject to
the general disclosure obligations under Rules 17.15and 17.17 of
the GEM Listing Rules.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFNWR DM

RISKS RELATING TO THE GROUP AND ITS
BUSINESS (continued)

Events after the Reporting Period (continued)

Disclosable and Connected Transaction Provision of the loan
(Continued)

Completion of the Provision of the Loan is subject to the fulfilment
of various conditions precedent and therefore the Provision of
the Loan may or may not proceed. Shareholders and potential
investors are advised to exercise caution when dealing in the
securities of the Company.

The Loan was approved at the extraordinary general meeting (the
“EGM”) of the Company held on 16 April 2021 and the HK$24
million loan has been drawn by Mr. Ho Ying Choi on 21 April 2021.

Details of this transaction are disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 25 February 2021, 12 March 2021, 26
March 2021 and 16 April 2021.

Impact of coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19)

After the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19
outbreak”) in early 2020, a series of precautionary and control
measures have been and continued to be implemented across the
world. It has brought about additional uncertainties in the Group’s
operating environment and may impact the Group’s operations
and financial position. The Group has been closely monitoring
the impact from COVID-19 on the Group’s businesses and has
commenced to put in place various measures. Based on the
information currently available, the directors confirm that there has
been no material adverse change in the financial and operating
position of the Group up to the date of this report.

The Group will pay close attention to the development of the
COVID-19 outbreak and perform further assessment of its impact
and take relevant measures.

Shi Shi Services Limited
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Liming (“Mr. Huang”) is an executive Director and the
chairman of the Board.

Mr. Huang, aged 45, is an entrepreneur with 19 years of
experience in property development and property management
business in the PRC. He is currently the chairman of Heng Sheng
Real Estate Co., Ltd, a company that is principally engaged in
property development and residential property management
business in the PRC.

Mr. Huang, the ultimate beneficial owner of Heng Sheng Capital
Limited (“Heng Sheng”), which is the controlling shareholder of
the Company. Mr. Huang, through Heng Sheng, is interested in
626,071,950 share of the Company (the “Shares”) (representing
approximately 61.00% of the total number of Shares in issue as at
the date of this report).

Mr. Ho Ying Choi (“Mr. Ho"), aged 61, is an executive Director. He
is responsible for business operation, finance management and
sales and marketing. He is also a member of the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee of the Company.

Mr. Ho holds a Bachelor’'s degree of science from the Memorial
University of Newfoundland, Canada.

Mr. Ho is the brother of Mr. Ho Ying Cheung, member of the
Group’s senior management. Mr. Lau Ping Kwai, a member
of the Group’s senior management, is the spouse of Mr. Ho's
cousin. Save as disclosed, Mr. Ho is not connected with any
other Directors, member of the senior management, Substantial
Shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Lee Chin Ching, Cyrix (“Mr. Lee”) has been appointed as an
executive Director with effect from 20 December 2016.

Mr. Lee, aged 36, holds a Bachelor’s degree in business
administration from Washington State University in the United
States of America. Mr. Lee has extensive experience in the real
estate investments, acquisition, valuation and assets management.
Prior to his appointment as an executive Director, Mr. Lee had
been a business consultant of the Company since 1 May 2016.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEAREEERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lin Dongming (“Mr. Lin”) has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director, a member of each of the
audit committee and the remuneration committee of the Company
and the chairman of the nomination committee of the Company
with effect from 1 June 2021.

Mr. Lin, aged 49, has extensive experience in corporate
management and has been working in the PRC government
departments and sizable state-owned enterprise for 20 years
before joining us as an Independent Non-executive director. From
2004 to 2018, Mr. Lin served as the managing director of Sinotruk
(Hong Kong) International Investment Limited, responsible for
its international business and investment and corporate finance
activities. Mr. Lin obtained an executive master degree in business
administration from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business.

Mr. Lin currently also serves as the chairman of the Jinan
Association of Hong Kong; the vice chairman of the supervisory
board of the Shandong CPPCC Members Association in Hong
Kong; the honorary chairman of the Hong Kong Shandong
Chamber of Commerce and the natives general associations of
Qingdao, Weihai, Yantai and Linyi; the vice president of overseas
friendship associations of Jinan and Yantai; and the honorary
president of Jinan Chamber of Commerce in Guangdong Province
etc. Mr. Lin is also an executive director of Finet Group Limited
(stock code: 8317) since August 2020, the securities of this
company are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. Lam Kai Yeung (“Mr. Lam”) has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director, chairman of the audit
committee and the remuneration committee of the Company, and
a member of the nomination committee of the Company.

Mr. Lam, aged 51, is a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lam obtained a bachelor
degree in accounting from the Xiamen University in July 1990
and a master degree in business administration from the Oxford
Brookes University in the United Kingdom in July 2010. Mr. Lam
is a licensed person for type 4 (advising on securities) and type 9
(asset management) regulated activities under the SFO.

Mr. Lam is currently an executive director and chief executive
officer of Hang Pin Technology Company Limited (“Hang Pin”)
(stock code: 1682), an independent non-executive director of
Starrise Media Holdings Limited (stock code: 1616), Kin Shing
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1630), Holly Futures Co., Ltd (stock
code: 3678). The securities of these companies are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lam was an independent non-executive director of Hang
Pin from August 2014 to May 2017. Mr. Lam was also a director
of Sunway International Holdings Limited (stock code: 58) from
May 2015 to June 2019. The securities of these companies are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lam was
also an independent non-executive director of Finsoft Financial
Investment Holdings Limited (stock code: 8018) from June 2015
to June 2020 whose securities are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEAREEERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. Lo Chi Ho, Richard (“Mr. Lo”) has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director, a member of each of
the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Company.

Mr. Lo, aged 53, has over 30 years of experience in the investment
and real estate industry. He is currently the chief executive
officer of Fulldiamond Limited, an investment and consulting
company specializing in real estate, finance, securities, project and
fundraising.

Mr. Lo is the vice president and chairman of commercial liaison of
The Hong Kong Real Property Federation. He is also a committee
member of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference —
Jiangxi.

Mr. Lo obtained his Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from the
University of California, Los Angeles in the United States, Master
of Business Administration (Investment and Finance) degree from
Hull University in the United Kingdom and an executive program
certificate from Stanford University in the United States.

Mr. Lo is currently an independent non-executive director of
Chinney Investments, Limited (stock code: 216) whose securities
are listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ho Ying Cheung, aged 68, one of the founders of the Group.
He was appointed as a director of Kong Shum Union Property
Management Company Limited (The “KSU”) since August 1984.
He had been appointed as an Executive Director from 15 August
2012 to February 2015 and was responsible for the Group’s overall
business development.

Mr. Ho Ying Cheung is the brother of Mr. Ho Ying Choi, an
Executive Director. Mr. Lau Ping Kwai, a member of the Group’s
senior management, is the spouse of Mr. Ho Ying Cheung’s
cousin. Save as disclosed, Mr. Ho Ying Cheung is not connected
with any other Directors or member of senior management,
Substantial Shareholders or Controlling Shareholders of the
Company.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Lau Ping Kwai (“Mr. Lau”), aged 70, is an associate director of
KSU (note). He has been working in KSU for more than 20 years.
He joined KSU as a property management officer in September
1996 and was promoted to this position in April 2008. He is
responsible for supervising property managers and advising
on the improvement of the Group’s overall standard. He is also
responsible for marketing in the private sector.

Mr. Lau obtained a Certificate in Housing Practice at the School of
Professional and Continuing Education of The University of Hong
Kong (“HKUSPACE") in August 2000 and was awarded a Diploma
in Housing Management by the same institute in September 2002.
He was elected a corporate member of the Chartered Institute
of Housing (“CIH") in October 2002 and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Housing in November 2002. In April 2003, he
registered as a Professional Housing Manager at the Housing
Managers Registration Board.

Note: The position “associate director” is a corporate title only and not a “director”
within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance and the GEM Listing Rules.
An associate director named herein is principally responsible for (i) the
supervision of property management of the Group or its staff; (i) supervision
of the Group’s administration or overall standard; and (iii) the Group’s
customer relations.

Mr. Lau is the spouse of the cousin of Mr. Ho Ying Cheung,
a director of KSU, and Mr. Ho, an executive Director. Save as
disclosed, Mr. Lau is not connected with any other Directors,
member of the senior management, Substantial Shareholders or
controlling shareholders of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEAREEERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Fong Shek Hung (“Mr. Fong”), aged 62, is an associate director
of KSU (note). He is mainly responsible for supervision of property
management, customer relations and administration.

Mr. Fong worked for the Hong Kong Government from 1978 to
2001. He joined the Housing Department in October 1987 and
was promoted to the position of housing officer in October 1989.
He resigned in August 2001 and subsequently served as property
manager in Synergis Management Services Limited. He was the
district general manager before he left the company in February
2011 and joined KSU in May 2011 as senior property manager. He
was promoted to the position of associate director of KSU (note) in
February 2012.

Mr. Fong has awarded a Diploma in Housing Management by
HKUSPACE in September 1997. He was elected as a corporate
member of the CIH in June 1999 and a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Housing in June 2001. In May 2001, he registered
as a Professional Housing Manager at the Housing Managers
Registration Board.

Note: The position “associate director” is a corporate title only and not a “director”
within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance and the GEM Listing Rules.
An associate director named herein is principally responsible for (i) the
supervision of property management of the Group or its staff; (i) supervision
of the Group’s administration or overall standard; and (iii) the Group’s
customer relations.

Mr. Lai Chun Ho (“Mr. Lai”), aged 49, is senior property manager
of KSU. He has already worked in KSU more than 12 years. He is
mainly assigned to supervise the general operation of the buildings
in New Territories.

From December 1990 to February 1995, Mr. Lai worked in JLW
Management Limited. For the period from June 1997 to May
2006, he worked in Urban Property Management Limited. He
joined KSU as assistant property manager in August 2006.

He was awarded a Certification in Estate Management of Hong
Kong Management Association in 1992, and was awarded a
Diploma in Property Management of City University of Hong Kong
in 2002.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Chan Ka Kit Kanly (“Mr. Chan”), aged 43, is a senior accounting
manager of KSU. He has been working in KSU for about 16
years and was promoted to the current position in April 2018. He
is responsible for management of accounting department and
financial management of the clients.

Mr. Chan was appointed as the head of accounting department
of the New Impact Printing Company Limited in 2002. He was
responsible for financial management of mainland and Hong
Kong. Since August 2004, he joined KSU and was responsibilities
for financial management of comparative estates. He hereafter
promoted to the position of senior accounting manager.

Mr. Fu Wai Yick (“Mr. Fu”), aged 64, is senior property manager
of KSU. He has already worked in KSU more than 8 years. He is
mainly assigned to supervise the site in charge of Public Housing
and private sector such as Healthy Garden, Yue Tin Court and Tak
Bo Garden for daily property management and assist the business
development for Government projects.

Mr. Fu worked for the Hong Kong Government from 1980-2001
and he was assistant housing manager before he left the Housing
Department in Feb 2001. For the period from March 2001 to
March 2003, he worked in Eastpoint Property Management
Company as property manager and subsequently served as
property manager in Synergis Management Services Limited from
April 2003 to September 2010.

Mr. Fu joined KSU as area property manager in May 2013 and
further promoted to senior property manager in March 2018.

Mr. Fu obtained a bachelor of science degree in statistics from
the University of Calgary in September 1978 and he has awarded
a Certificate in Housing Management by University of Hong Kong
in August 1987. He was elected as a member of the Institute of
Housing in April 1989.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERHRE

Pursuant to Rule 18.44 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is
pleased to present this corporate governance report for the year
ended 31 March 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board and the management of the Group are committed to
upholding high standards of corporate governance. The Board
considers that enhanced public accountability and corporate
governance are beneficial for the healthy growth of the Group,
improving customer and supplier confidence and safeguarding the
interests of shareholders of the Company.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.
The principles adopted by the Company emphasise a quality
Board, sound internal controls, transparency and accountability to
all shareholders of the Company. The Company engaged a third-
party professional firm to conduct an internal control review for the
year ended 31 March 2021.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company has
complied with all CG Code except for the following deviation:

CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive should be clearly established and set
out in writing.

The Company did not officially have a chief executive officer
since 8 September 2015. Daily operation and management of the
Company is monitored by the executive Directors as well as the
senior management. The Board is of the view that although there
is no chief executive officer of the Company, the balance of power
and authority is ensured by the operation of the Board, which
comprises experienced individuals who meet from time to time
to discuss issues affecting the operations of the Company. The
Board believes that the present arrangement is adequate to ensure
an effective management and control of the Company’s business
operations. The Board will continue to review the effectiveness
of the Company’s structure as business continues to grow and
develop in order to assess whether any changes, including the
appointment of a chief executive officer, is necessary.

Code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code requires that the chairman of
the Board shall at least annually hold meetings with non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) without
the executive Directors present.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE (continued)

As Mr. Huang Liming serves as the Chairman and executive
Director concurrently, the code provision does not apply and the
Company deviates from such code provision. In addition, the
Chairman of the Board is of the view that, the independent non-
executive Directors can express their opinions to all executive
Directors more directly and effectively at the Board meetings,
hence the Board is of the view that the deviation from the code
provision does not have material impact on the operation of the
Board.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group adopted the required standard of dealings set out
in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions in securities of
the Company. The Company also had made specific enquiry of all
Directors and the Company was not aware of any non-compliance
with the required standard of dealings and its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors during the year
ended 31 March 2021.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERHRE

BOARD COMPOSITION AND DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy since 11
October 2013. The policy sets out the approach to achieve
diversity in the Board that should have a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Group’s business and compliance with
policies. The composition and diversity policies of the Board are
reviewed annually and regularly. The Board should ensure that its
changes in composition will not result in any undue interference.
The Board members should possess appropriate professionalism,
experience and trustworthiness in performing duties and
functions. The Board would diversify its members according
to the Company’s situations and needs. While participating in
nomination and recommendation of director candidates during the
year, each member of the Board may consider a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, or professional experience in achieving
diversity for the benefit of the Company’s various business
development and management. The Board is to review the policy
concerning diversity of Board members, and to disclose the policy
or a summary of the policy in the corporate governance report,
including any quantitative targets and standards and its progress
with policy implementation.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Board had reviewed
the diversity of the Board and considered the Board composition
and diversity policy appropriate.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The Board delegates the day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Group to the management. The delegated
functions are reviewed by the Board periodically to ensure they
remain appropriate to the needs of the Group. The Board gives
clear directions to the management as to the matters that must
be approved by the Board before discussions are made on behalf
of the Group by the management. All the Directors carry out their
duties in good faith and in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, taking decisions objectively and acting in the interests
of the Company and its shareholders at all times.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Composition

The Board currently comprises 6 Directors, including 3 executive
Directors and 3 independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Liming (Chairman)
Mr. Ho Ying Choi
Mr. Lee Chin Ching, Cyrix

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lin Dongming

(appointed with effect from 1 June 2021)
Mr. Lam Kai Yeung
Mr. Lo Chi Ho, Richard

Details of the backgrounds and qualifications of all Directors
are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and
Senior Management” in this annual report. All Directors have
given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Group.
Each executive Director has sufficient experience, knowledge and
execution ability to hold the position so as to carry out his duties
effectively and efficiently.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The Board has assumed the responsibility to consider the
appointment, re-election and removal of the directors of the
Company. The Board has set up a Nomination Committee to
recommend the appointment, re-election and removal of the
Directors.

All executive Directors, namely, Mr. Huang Liming, Mr. Ho Ying
Choi and Mr. Lee Chin Ching, Cyrix, have respectively entered
into a service contract with the Company for a term of 1 to 3 years
unless terminated by not less than 1 to 3 months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other. Executive Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting (“AGM”) in accordance with articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERHRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
(continued)

All the independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lam
Kai Yeung, Mr. Lo Chi Ho, Richard and Mr. Lin Dongming, have
respectively entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of 1 to 3 years unless terminated by not less than 1 to 2
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other. The
independent non-executive Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the AGM in accordance with the
Articles.

At each following AGM, one-third of the Directors are required to
retire from office. Each Director shall retire from office once every 3
years. The Directors to retire in every year shall be those appointed
by the Board during the year and those who have been longest
in office since their last election or re-election. New Directors
appointed by the Board during the year shall retire and may submit
themselves for re-election at the AGM immediately following their
appointments.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation in writing of his independence pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Company considers
that all the independent non-executive Directors were independent
during the year ended 31 March 2021.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographies of Directors
and Senior Management” in this annual report, there is no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship
among the members of the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

MANAGEMENT

The daily management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Chairman, the executive Directors
and senior management (the “Management”). The delegated
functions and assignments are periodically reviewed. Approval has
to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions
entered into by the above mentioned officers.

The overall responsibilities of the Management include considering
and making decisions on implementing the Group’s policy and
strategies as set by the Board; strategic planning of different
business and functions; closely monitoring operational and
financial results in accordance with plans and budgets; putting
adequate operational, planning and financial control systems in
place; and managing the Group’s day-to-day business.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board fulfilled the requirement of appointing at least three
independent non-executive Directors and they represented at least
one-third of the Board as stipulated by the GEM Listing Rules. It
met requirement of having at least one of the independent non-
executive Directors with appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise. The
independent non-executive Directors have appropriate and
sufficient experience and qualification to carry out their duties
so as to fully represent the interests of the shareholders of the
Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERHRE

BOARD MEETING, GENERAL MEETING AND
PROCEDURES

Directors’ attendance record of the Board, Committee and General
Meetings during the year ended 31 March 2021 are as follows:

EEZEE2 REAERBEERF

HE2021F3A31BILFE E2HFEE
e LZESeMRERGZREHIOT :

Meetings attended/eligible to attend

HE/AEREREEE
Annual  Extraordinary
Audit ~ Remuneration Nomination General General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting Meeting
Directors: B EZe ENZEE FHZEE EXZ8% RREFAE RREHAR
Executive Directors: HTES:
Huang Liming EHH 14/14 n/a nla n/a 1/1 11
TER TEm TER
Ho Ying Choi Bl 13/14 nfa 22 22 11 11
TER
Lee Chin Ching, Cyrix ZER 13/14 nla nla nla 11 11
TEH Tam TER
Eric Todd (resigned with effect ##1Z (7 2020410 17 n/a n/a n/a 11 00
from 1 October 2020) A1RET) TER Tam TEA
Independent Non-executive ~ BUFHTES
Directors:
Lin Dongming (appointed with - AR5 A7 (72021 F nfa n/a nfa n/a n/a n/a
effect from 1 June 2021) 6A1BEZ() TEA TER Tam TEA TEA TEA
Lam Kai Yeung A 13/14 414 212 212 11 11
Lo Chi Ho, Richard EER 14/14 44 22 22 11 11
TsoSiu Lun, Alan (resigned B4 (R 2021 F 12/14 414 01 01 il 71
with effect from 1 June 6A1BEA)
2021)

Board members were provided with complete, adequate and
timely information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly.

Draft agenda of each Board meeting is sent to all Directors in
advance. Notice of at least fourteen days is given for a regular
Board meeting. For other Board and committees meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given. Board papers together with all
appropriate, complete and reliable information are dispatched to
all Directors at least three days before each regular Board meeting
to ensure that the Directors have sufficient time to review the
related documents and be adequately prepared for the meeting.

The company secretary of the Company is responsible to keep
minutes of all Board meetings and committees meetings. Draft
minutes are normally circulated to all Directors for comments
within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final versions
are opened for Director’s inspection.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

All Directors, including non-executive Director and independent
non-executive Directors, should keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities as Directors and of the business and activities of
the Group.

All Directors confirmed that they had complied with code provision
A.6.5 of the Code during the year ended 31 March 2021, that all
Directors had participated in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

A summary of training received by the Directors for the year ended
31 March 2021 according to the records provided by the Directors
as follows:
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Reading newspapers,

to obtain update Reading materials

Attending seminars, relating to economy, relevant to

conferences or accounting, rules, directors’ duties

forums  law or regulation, etc. and responsibilities
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Executive Directors: HITES:

Huang Liming g v v/ v

Ho Ying Choi fa B v/ v/ 4
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Independent Non-executive Directors: BYFHITEE
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from 1 June 2021) 6 1BERMT)
Lam Kai Yeung eAL,
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference, available on the
Company’s website, in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules.
The Audit Committee is currently composed of all the independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Kai Yeung (chairman),
Mr. Lin Dongming and Mr. Lo Chi Ho, Richard.

The Audit Committee held 4 meetings during the year ended 31
March 2021 and reviewed the Company’s audited annual results
for the year ended 31 March 2021 and the unaudited quarterly
and interim results during the year ended 31 March 2021.

The function of the Audit Committee includes the following:
(i)  Relationship with the Company’s auditors:

(@) to be primarily responsible for make recommendation
to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and any questions of resignation or dismissal;

(b) to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectively and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards. The Audit Committee should discuss with
the auditors the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations before the audit commences; and

(c) to develop and implement policy on engaging and
external auditor to supply non-audit services. For this
purpose, “external auditor” includes any entity that is
under common control, ownership or management
with the audit firm or any entity that a reasonable and
informed third party knowing all relevant information
would reasonably conclude to be part of the audit
firm nationally or internationally. The Audit Committee
should report to the Board, identifying and making
recommendations on any matters where action or
improvement is needed.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)
(i) Review of the Company'’s financial information:

(a) to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts, half-year
report and/or quarterly reports, and to review significant
financial reporting judgments contained in them before
submission to the Board, focusing particularly on:

- any changes in accounting policies and practices;

—  major judgmental areas;
— significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

— the going concern assumptions and any
qualifications;

—  compliance with accounting standards; and

- compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting.

(iii) Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control procedures:

(a) to review the Company’s financial controls, internal
control and risk management systems.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection and appointment of the external
auditors for the year ended 31 March 2021. The Audit Committee
has reviewed the audited financial statements of the Group for the
year and recommended approval to the Board.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) with written terms of reference,
available on the Company’s website, in compliance with GEM
Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee is currently
composed of 1 executive Directors, namely, Mr. Ho Ying Choi
and 3 independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Kai
Yeung (chairman), Mr. Lin Dongming and Mr. Lo Chi Ho, Richard.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, 2 Remuneration
Committee meetings were held to review the remuneration
package of the Directors and senior management of the Group.

The Remuneration Committee’s principal duties are the
determination of specific remuneration packages of all
executive Directors, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment, and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee should
consider factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities.

The Remuneration Committee meets regularly to determine
the policy for the remuneration of Directors and assess
the performance of Executive Directors and certain senior
management of the Group.

Remuneration of Directors

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualification and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Directors’ fees and all other emoluments paid or payable to the
Directors during the year are set out on an individual and named
basis in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)
Remuneration of Senior Management
Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration

of the senior management by band for the year ended 31 March
2021 is set out below:

EEERRE

FMEES (E)
SREEE N HM
*E}FHZ%E/DTHUTE‘J%KX;EB 150 &
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FIESEHS AT

Number of individual

In the band of EiE A
Nil - HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7% 7T 4
Over HK$1,000,000 1,000,0007% JTA £ 2

Further details of the remuneration of the Directors and the 5
highest paid employees are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company set up a nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) with written terms of reference, available on the
Company’s website, in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. At
the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee consists
of 4 members, of which the majority are Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lin Dongming (chairman), Mr.
Lam Kai Yeung, Mr. Lo Chi Ho, Richard and an Executive Director,
namely, Mr. Ho Ying Choi.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, 2 meetings of the
Nomination Committee was held.

The duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge,
experience and diversity of perspectives) of the Board at least
annually; making recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become the Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on selection of individuals nominated for directorships of
the Company; assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors; reviewing and recommending the
appointment of new Directors; identifying the competences
required to enable the Board to fulfill its responsibilities; and
reviewing the Board Diversity Policy established for implementing
diversity on the Board periodically.

EEhANGESFMALTZHMZ
HIBENRA M BHRRME 13 -

REZEY
AAREAREGEM ETRABKIIREEE

g (REZEBE])  XASHEIIAELRE
glE HARARARABUEER - RA

E#&EHH REZESHABKEEK K

DB IFMITES (AIMRALLE (X
Jﬁ%') CMEBEERBEESSRL) NATE
= (AR i) -

HE2021F3A31HILFE  EEEE8e
g;—“?’—% 2//\5!:!?—560
k%é,\ eV BEREEFRTESTEN

RiE - MR RAENK (BIEHEE - M K5
RZTLEE)  BES AR RIMEEREM
WEFSFLNEREPIROERZS
MEARERKAESTEKREMNAL  AH
BYARIERLEARFEEHNALTAES

SROEBRZ  HEBUIFRTESH
B M RRBRRTNES  BHE

EEETHEBEMENED  NEREZ
REREFERESZTIEMELNESS
B % TTAEBR o

Annual Report 2020/21
2020/21F &



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERRE

COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

The Company set up a compliance committee (the “Compliance
Committee”) which is a committee under the Company’s Audit
Committee and is chaired by Mr. Ho Ying Choi, an executive
Director, and comprises Mr. Lau Ping Kwai, the associate director
(note) of the Company, Mr. Fong Shek Hung, the associate director
(note) of the Company. The Group’s legal adviser, Y.C. Lee, Pang,
Kwok & Ip Solicitors, is procured to provide legal advices and to
attend the committee meeting on a needed basis. For the year
ended 31 March 2021, 12 meetings were held and the Group’s
legal adviser had participated in 1 meeting. The minutes of the
meetings were distributed to the Group’s legal adviser, Y.C. Lee,
Pang, Kwok & Ip Solicitors, and the Audit Committee members
for scrutiny and comment. The Compliance Committee addresses
the matters concerning the compliance of law and regulations,
contract terms and litigation cases of the Group.

Note: The position “associate director” is a corporate title only and not a “director”
within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and the GEM Listing Rules. An associate director named herein
is principally responsible for (i) the supervision of property management of
the Group or its staff; (i) supervision of the Group’s administration or overall
standard; and (iii) the Group’s customer relations.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the remuneration for audit
and non-audit services are summarised below:
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Shi Shi Services Limited
B B AR 35 PR 2 7



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group and ensure that the
financial statements are prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors
also ensure the timely publication of the financial statements of the
Group.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
they are not aware of any matters uncertainly relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for the Group’s
internal control system and its effectiveness to ensure that the
internal control measures are in place to safeguard the Group’s
assets and to comply with relevant regulations and best practices.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company improves its business and operational activities
by identifying the areas of significant business risks via a
regular review and taking appropriate measures to control and
mitigate these risks. The management of the Company reviews
all significant control policies and procedures and highlights all
significant matters to the Board and Audit Committee.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engages Mr. Sheung Kwong Cho (“Mr. Sheung”),
representative of JPG Secretarial Services Limited, as its company
secretary. His primary corporate contact person at the Company is
Mr. Lee Chin Ching, Cyrix, an executive Director.

In compliance with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, Mr.
Sheung has undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 March 2021.

EEERRE

EETHARMBHRRNEL

EXSNTHAEREASENMBRE -
3 FE (R A BE B 7S R TR IBOETE R E ME

S RARR - EFNRAAEEYT G
HREER DM -

E=MR £ELE—AEERR K
ERA - FTEEMEAE BRELTAE
ERAEEHARARBELERNEKRE
REBNEHRBERO I EEREE

AR EE 12

SEEeRBRAHAEENNAREIERE &
HRBAE - RN EIEE IR RIE
AREBEE  UNEHBERIEKESER
ZHE °

[ Bz o 7

KRR FE BT R AT ERERRR
B A REREUE B 15 e 5 MUK 2 &
R EMMEERFEEELS - AQ
FEEEENMAEREEBRIERF -
FTrHEEFEMEZZEERIRLMEE
REHF o

DNAME

ARRAREBIERWERBERAFRKRE
HBEE(REELED) RATME - BRA
NRANBEERABEARRTEETTRE
pira

BTTAGEM EMARRIES 151 - EEER
BHE2021F3 A3l R ILFEEEX IR
15 @/ N BV AR RE B R AE 3 -

Annual Report 2020/21
2020/21F &



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERHRE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT TO CONVENE
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, the Board may, whenever
it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM").
EGM shall also be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not
less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having
the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be
made in writing to the Board or the secretary for the purpose of
requiring an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be
held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTING
SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders and other stakeholders can make any enquiry in
respect of the Company in writing to our head office at Unit 903,
9th Floor, Haleson Building, 1 Jubilee Street, Central, Hong Kong.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETINGS

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Companies Law
(Revised) of Cayman Islands. However, pursuant to the Articles,
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may by means of
requisition convene an EGM following the procedures set out
above.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2021, there is no significant change
in its constitutional documents.

CONTINUOUS CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
ENHANCEMENT

The Board is committed to continuous corporate governance
enhancement including giving closer attention to any regulatory
changes with a view to maintaining a corporate culture built on
ethics and integrity and increasing the Shareholders value as a
whole.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements of Shi Shi Services Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance and its financial position
are provided in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” in this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year end 31 March 2021 and the
state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2021 are set out on
pages 89 to 178.

The state of affairs of the Company is set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2021.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to approximately HK$3,000 (2020: HK$10,000).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statements, is set out on pages 179 and 180 of
this annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2021 and a review of its future development is set out in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this
annual report.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group have been
addressed in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report.

In addition, various financial risks have been disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

AN ANALYSIS USING FINANCIAL KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The relevant financial key performance indicators relating to
the business of the Group are set out under the paragraphs
headed “Financial Review” in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” and the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group recognises its responsibility to protect the environment
from its business activities. The Group continually seeks to identify
and manage environmental impacts attributable to its operational
activities in order to minimise these impacts if possible. The Group
aims to maximise energy conservation in its offices by promoting
efficient use of resources and adopting green technologies. For
instance, the Group seeks to upgrade equipment such as lighting
and air-conditioning systems in order to increase overall operating
efficiency. To identify energy efficiency opportunities, the Group
measures and records the energy consumption intensity from
time to time. Information on the environmental policies and
performance of the Company is set out in the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” on pages 64 to 82 of this Annual
Report.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS,
SUPPLIERS AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group ensures all staff is reasonably remunerated and
regularly reviews the employment policies on remuneration and
other benefits.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers and
suppliers. The Group maintains close contacts with the customers
and has regular review of requirements of customers and
complaints. The Group will conduct appraisal of the performance
of suppliers on regular basis.

The Board believes effective communication and accurate
and timely information disclosure builds the Shareholders’ and
investors’ confidence, and also facilities the flow of constructive
feedback and ideas that are beneficial for investor relations and
future corporate development. For details, please refer to the
Corporate Governance Report on page 50.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and risks of non-compliance with such
requirements. The Group has on-going review the newly enacted
laws and regulations affecting the operations of the Group. The
Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the laws
and regulations that have significant impact on the business of the
Group.

SHARES ISSUED FOR THE YEAR

Details of the shares issued for the year ended 31 March 2021 are
set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

FUND RAISING ACTIVITY

The Company has no fund raising activity during the year ended
31 March 2021. Details of the fund raising activity of the Group
during the prior years are set out in the paragraphs under “Fund
raising activity” in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 March 2021.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2021 are set out on
page 171 and in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2021,
calculated under the Cayman Islands Companies Law, amounted
to HK$151,261,537 (2020: HK$159,589,383) including
share premium of HK$179,975,057, accumulated losses of
HK$33,463,628, and contributed surplus of HK$4,750,108.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

Share options

No share options were granted, exercised, expired or lapsed and
there is no outstanding share option under Share Option Scheme
during the year ended 31 March 2021.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 March
2021 and up to date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Liming (Chairman)

Mr. Ho Ying Choi

Mr. Lee Chin Ching Cyrix

Mr. Eric Todd (resigned with effect from 1 October 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lin Dongming (appointed with effect from 1 June 2021)
Mr. Lam Kai Yeung

Mr. Lo Chi Ho, Richard

Mr. Tso Siu Lun, Alan (resigned with effect from 1 June 2021)

In accordance with the article 83 of the Articles, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy hall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election. Accordingly, Mr. Lin
Dongming will retire from office and being eligible, he will offer
himself for re-election in the forthcoming AGM.

In accordance with article 84 of the Articles, one-third of the
Directors will retire and being eligible offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM. Accordingly, Mr. Lee Chin Ching
Cyrix and Mr. Ho Ying Choi shall hold office until the next following
AGM of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 29 to 35 of the
annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESEHRS

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of the Company, a permitted indemnity
provision for the benefit of the Directors is currently in force and
was in force throughout the year ended 31 March 2021. The
Company has purchased the Directors’ and Officers’ Liability
Insurance to provide protection against claims arising from the
lawful discharge of duties by the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors is appointed
for an initial term of one to three years commencing from their
respective dates of appointment and shall continue thereafter
from year to year until terminated by two month’s notice in writing
served by either party on the other party.

The non-executive Director is appointed for a term of one year
commencing from the date of his appointment. Such appointment
can be terminated by one month’s notice in writing served by either
party on the other party.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors who are proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENT AND
CONTRACTS

Save for the respective director service contracts with each of the
executive Directors, no transactions, arrangements and contracts
of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company'’s subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its parent company
was a party in which a Director of the Company and the Director’s
connected party had a material interest whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year ended 31 March 2021 under review.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are subject to Shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board with
reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance
and the results of the Group as well as the recommendation of
the Remuneration Committee. Further details of the Company’s
Remuneration Committee are set out in the corporate governance
report on page 46 of this annual report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument of the employees of the Group is determined
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees employed.
The MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme,
the Group and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the MPF scheme vest immediately.

The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group, in fund under the control of trustees. During the year
ended 31 March 2021, total contributions paid or payable to the
MPF scheme by the Group amounted to approximately HK$11.2
million (2020: HK$9.8 million) which had been recognised as
expenses and included in staff costs in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group adopted the required standard of dealings set out
in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code
of conduct regarding the Directors’ securities transactions in
securities of the Company. The Company also had made specific
enquiry of all Directors and the Company was not aware of any
non-compliance with the required standard of dealings and its
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors
during the year ended 31 March 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESEHRS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at date of this annual report, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and their associates in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations, as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing
Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the
Company

EERESITRAERAQFRE
AAEEZERSD - HERO R EE
HNEERAR

RAFHREH EFREBEAREIRA
LEMEEEEMNRD - HERMD I EEE
o BEEAEEREARRIREES K H
EIKPIEI2IEFEMNZELMA  HIRE
GEM E#RAIE5.46 &S TB AR E &
BXPTRER RAB T ¢

RADFZREEN BT ZEER L
B

Approximate
percentage of

interests in
the issued
Name of Shareholders Capacity and nature of interest Number of shares share capital
HEBRITREAZ
IRER & SO kERME BHAEBE EZSAEITHE
Huang Liming (note 1) Interest in controlled corporation 626,071,950 (L) 61.00%
(note 2)
=R (M 1) S B 626,071,950 (L) 61.00%
(K1at2)
Notes: st
1. Mr. Huang Liming is interested in the said shares through his wholly owned 1. ER\ALLFBELZENREBLEERER AR

company, Heng Sheng Capital Limited, which is the beneficial owner of
626,071,750 shares of the Company.

2. The Letter “L” denotes long position in the shares.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their associates
had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as at date of this annual report.
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ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 March 2021 was the
Company, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries, its parent
company or its other associated corporations a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors and chief executive of the
Company (including their spouse and children under 18 years
of age) to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares
or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its
specified undertakings or other associated corporation.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at date of this annual report, the following persons/entities
(other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) had or
were deemed or taken to have interests and short positions in the
Shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register of interests and short positions of substantial shareholders
(the “Register of Substantial Shareholders”) required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

Long Positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the
Company
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Name of Shareholders Capacity and nature of interest  Number of shares share capital

HEBRITREAZ

IR & BORERME BROBE REHAEIH

Heng Sheng Capital Limited (note 1) Beneficial Owner 626,071,950 (L) 61.00%
(note 2)

BEEARBRAR (M) EmEAA 626,071,950 (L) 61.00%
(Kiat2)

Li Mengya (note 1) Interest of Spouse 626,071,950 (L) 61.00%
(note 2)

FEW (M 1) [ e 626,071,950 (L) 61.00%
(K1at2)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESEHRS

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Notes:

1. Heng Sheng Capital Limited is a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands whose entire issued share capital is owned by Mr. Huang Liming, and
accordingly under the SFO, Mr. Huang Liming is deemed to be interested in
the Shares held by Heng Sheng Capital Limited. Ms. Li Mengya is the spouse
of Mr. Huang Liming and, accordingly under the SFO, she is deemed to
be interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr. Huang Liming is
interested.

2. The letter “L” denotes long position in the Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at date of this report, the Directors
were not aware of any persons/entities (other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company) who/which had or were deemed
or taken to have any other interests or short positions in Shares
or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the Register
of Substantial Shareholders required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to under section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 19 September 2013, the Company has adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) under which the Board
is authorised to grant share options to any employee, adviser,
consultant, service provider, agent, customer, partner or joint-
venture partner of the Company or any subsidiary (including any
director of the Company or any subsidiary) who is in fulltime or
part-time employment with or otherwise engaged by the Company
or any subsidiary at the time when an option is granted to such
employee, adviser, consultant, service provider, agent, customer,
partner or joint-venture partner or any person who, in the absolute
discretion of the board, has contributed or may contribute to the
Group as incentive or reward for their contribution to the Group.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective commencing
from the adoption date of the Share Option Scheme (i.e. 19
September 2013) until the termination date as provided therein
which being the close of business of the Company on the date
which falls ten years from the date of the adoption of the Share
Option Scheme (i.e. 18 September 2023). The principal terms of
the Share Option Scheme are summarised in the section headed
“Share Option Scheme” in Appendix IV to the Prospectus of the
Company dated 30 September 2013.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, no share option was granted,
exercised, expired or lapsed and there is no outstanding share
option under the Share Option Scheme.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

So far as the Directors and chief executive are aware, no non-
exempt connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions were entered into by the Group during the year ended
31 March 2021.

A summary of the related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2021
respectively is contained in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements. The related party transactions disclosed in note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements are connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions that were fully exempt
from reporting, announcement, independent shareholders’
approval and/or annual review pursuant to the GEM Listing
Rules. The Company has complied with the applicable disclosure
requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules in
respect of such connected transactions.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s revenue and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively
during the year are as follows:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

BEXS

BEEREETHRABNSE  RNEBRE
22021 F3 A3l HILFEWELEITTER
RRAEBERZIHFEFERS

KEB D RIREZE 20204 3 A 31 H & 2021
FIA3IBUEFEETHNBEB AR S 28
ZH N A T BRI FEL0 - 4726 B &R
R FEA0 P BB MY REESE 5 22 5 A AR IR GEM
TR ERPETHERE  2EF &
TREHAER,NFEEZBENBER
SEFEBER S - NAFEEFGEM
MRAE0EFFZEHEIFHNERAH
BERE -

TEFFRHER

AEEHNEERP REEED BIEMAEASE
B ELRBENERIT

Purchases

and cleaning

Revenue subcontracting

Wz BREE KRB RAM

HK$ HK$

BT BT

The largest customer S PNES 16,903,207 N/A 71~ 3@ B
Five largest customers in aggregate AREPER 65,896,136 N/A T8 A
The largest supplier =AM IER N/A 3 7,655,077
Five largest suppliers in aggregate ARHEREET N/A 7~ F 19,818,244

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the aggregate percentage
of purchase attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers is
approximately 40.6% of the total purchases of the Group and
the largest supplier included therein amounted to approximately
15.7%.

BE2021F3A3IBILEFE  A&EER
AEERERLERBEAN AR RAEE
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESEHRS

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the aggregate percentage
of sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers is
approximately 12.9% of the total sales of the Group and the largest
customer included therein amounted to approximately 3.3%.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of
the Company’s issued shares) had any interest in the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 March
2021.

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the controlling Shareholders or Directors and their
respective close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) is
interested in any business apart from the business operated by the
Group which competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly,
with the Group’s business.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there
is sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company’s issued
share as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this
annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance report is set out on pages 36
to 50 of this annual report.

AUDITORS
The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited who retire and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-appointment.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Lee Chin Ching, Cyrix
Executive Director

Hong Kong

29 June 2021
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RiIE  HERERBRES

REPORTING SCOPE

As a company based and operating in Hong Kong, the Shi Shi
Services Limited (thereafter “Group” or “We”) is fully committed
to environment protection, and being socially responsible by
equipping ourselves with the strictest corporate governance.
In pursuant to the requirement of the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting guide (“Environmental, Social and
Governance Guide”) in Appendix 20 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”) from the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, we have prepared the 2020-2021
Environmental Social and Governance Report (thereafter “ESG
Report”), covering the Group’s various business segments,
including financial management, property management services
(including cleaning, repair and maintenance), and property
security service.

The scope of this report covers the Group’s initiatives on
introducing the ESG concept to key stakeholders to our operations,
including our employees and clients. The report summarizes our
experiences in putting our ESG strategy into practice as part of our
daily operations. The results of our ESG performance is presented
in this report as a year-end summary. It is also the intention of our
management to provide an overview of our Group’s direction in
managing ESG related issues, driving for ESG initiatives throughout
the group, and communicating our ESG performance with our
stakeholders.

About the Group

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of property
management services, primarily targeting residential properties,
property investment and money lending business. The Group
operates in Hong Kong under the brand name of “Kong Shum”,
providing a range of property management services including
cleaning, security, repair & maintenance, administrative and
legal support, as well as financial management. A total of 75,372
property units are managed by the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

REPORTING SCOPE (continued)

Boundary and Reporting Period

The reporting boundary shall cover our operation activities
throughout the Group as listed above, and the reporting period of
this report shall cover the period from 1 April 2020 to 31 March
2021.

Stakeholder Engagement

We engage our stakeholders on an ongoing basis to gather their
views and expectations on our ESG performance and disclosures.
In response to the interests and concerns of our stakeholders, we
regularly review our ESG performance using the strictest corporate
governance principles, with respect to environmental protection,
employee development and community investment.

The Group has consulted both its internal and external
stakeholders regarding its impact on the environment and society
as a result of its business operations. The Group values its
relationship with its customers and local communities and thus
have included both parties as our consultation targets. The table
below presents key stakeholders of the Group along with their
main expectations as well as the various engagement channels the
Group employed during the year to communicate with them.
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RiIE  HERERBRES

REPORTING SCOPE (continued) WEEHE (&)
Stakeholder Engagement (continued) BHiESHE(E)
Stakeholders Expectations and Concerns Engagement Channels
BHE MEREY SHERE
Customers ° Quality of products and services ° After-sales services
=P EmMiRGEE ERR

° Feedback email box

B RREEME

Employees o Staff salary and benefits ° Training
(== 12 B Fr B K g A b=l

Shareholders

PR

Community
Zan i

o Health and safety of working
environment
TERENEERZ R

° Training and development
B RER

° Corporate governance
JL% B /EI

o Return on investments
& E B

° Community involvement
L

° Environmental protection awareness

RIBREE S

Shi Shi Services Limited

B IR IS A IR A A

° Performance Review and Interviews
=B RE#

° Internal announcements and
publications
NE QS R A

e  Suggestion Boxes

BRM

° Annual General Meetings

RRBF RS

° Annual and Interim Reports
FERFPHRS

° Press Releases and Announcements
MEREASE

° Community activities
ftl@)EE

° Subsidies and Charitable donations
EBRESHEN
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RIE - HBRERRES

REPORTING SCOPE (continued) wREEHE(E)
Materiality Assessment BEEMAM

With the objective of identifying the key concerns and interests AMEERNEB AL LINTHNENTEM
of the Group’s internal and external stakeholders, a materiality #) &7z - HFIET T EEHTIE - WE
assessment was performed, covering a variety of topics related HEIEftE - CEMRBERBREBENSE
to our social, operational and environmental performance. The #%78 o I EERKEDHGEANT A TNTXFiIRE
results of the assessment have been consolidated and presented E 4 4EEHF K27 :

in the form of a materiality matrix, as shown below:

R 52
s1
3 06 |37
» 54
# 03 G—-sa——‘%ﬁ
yN o 08
5 E1
£ 0 E3
U] 07
s L 4= E2
= 8 ’
>
e}
2z =
& o
% o
2
=

Significance to Stakeholders
HAmEMs2E2E
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RiIE  HERERBRES

REPORTING SCOPE (continued)

Materiality Assessment (continued)

El Air Emission 01  Anti-competitive behaviour
Management management
REHMER REFITRE R

E2 Energy Management 02  Anti-Corruption
BEIRE 2 R&F

E3  Greenhouse Gases 03  Anti-discrimination
Management RIEAR
BERRBER 04  Company profitability

E4  Waste Management ZAN/NEIR R 1= 2
REZ Y E 12 05  Customer Satisfaction

BEFEmEE

06  Data Security and Customer
Privacy Management
B2 REPLEER

HEHE (F)
BEEMNME ()

S1 Child Labour and Forced Labour
Management
BT RAGHSTIER

S2  Community Relations
HRBER

S3 Diversity and Equal Opportunity
LTt RFEEHE

S4 Employee communication
=3=Pz i}

S5 Human Right Protection
AR E

S6  Social and Economic Compliance
g REEER

S7  Talent Management

07  Occupational Safety and Health AT ER

BEZE REE S8  Training and Development
08  Supplier Management 1553 M B R

HrEmeER

Stakeholder Feedback

We consider feedback from stakeholders to be of high importance
as it can guide us towards making continuous improvements with
respect to environmental, social and governance aspects. If you
have any questions or comments regarding the contents of this
report or the Group’s ESG strategy, please contact us through of
our communication channels.

Shi Shi Services Limited
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ENVIRONMENT

It has always been one of our guiding principles to make
contributions to the local environment and community while
providing the best service to our clients and generate revenue
for our shareholders. We recognize the importance of adopting
the highest standards in our operations towards environmental
protection, and to set examples to demonstrate our care for the
community and its development. Our environmental management
policy and system is certified to ISO 14001:2004 standards.

The Group understands that the threat of climate change may
potentially have a financial impact on our operations, such as the
gradual tightening of regulations with respect to waste generation
and greenhouse gas emissions, which will increase operation
costs. The Group took effort in identifying its environmental
impacts attributable to its business activities and carefully
managed our operation in order to minimize these impacts
where possible. The intention is not only to promote environment
protection internally, but also to encourage and motivate the same
to our clients and mutually improve in a continuous manner.

Use of Resources

As an environmentally-friendly company, the Group promotes
a “Smart Usage” culture, encouraging our employees towards
the cautious use of natural resources, particularly on electricity,
operational materials, and water consumption.

The Environmental Policy adopted by the Group puts emphasis
on energy conservation and efficiency, while implementing green
practices and green technologies as much as possible in all
of our premises. Our lighting and air-conditioning systems are
maintained with the objective of further energy reduction, and
our operation team periodically analyses energy consumption
records in an attempt to identify opportunities for improving energy
efficiency.

In addition, the concept of “Smart Usage” has been incorporated
in different parts of our business and various action plans have
been proposed and implemented. We have designed marketing
campaigns, taking into account of demand and supply estimates,
cost effectiveness, energy saving, and equipment. The marketing
campaigns were used as promotional strategies to attract potential
carpark clients.
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RiIE  HERERBRES

ENVIRONMENT (continued)
Electricity

As discussed, resource management is an important aspect
in the Group’s operation, especially in managing buildings and
properties.

Our Group understands that even though electricity is generally
considered to be a “clean” energy source, generation of electricity
in our areas of operation still involves the combustion of fossil
fuels, which can lead to a significant impact to the environment as
a result of associated emissions of air pollutants and greenhouse
gases. Thus, the Group reminds employees to be cautious about
our electricity consumption to minimize our impacts.

The Group worked with its staff member by promoting the “Smart
Usage” culture, and reminded them to take action throughout
their daily operation to minimize resource and energy usage. For
example, notices were posted at various locations around our
offices to remind our staff about turning off lights and photocopiers
after use. Staff were also reminded to maintain good power-
saving practices when utilizing other electronics devices, such
as maintaining a comfortable working environment by setting
the air-conditioner to 25.5° C. Initiatives such as adopting to an
Energy Conservation and Efficiency Policy and practices in offices,
along with the utilization of green technologies, were successfully
implemented throughout the year. Devices associated with
significant overall energy consumption were regularly checked and
upgraded as necessary (ie: lighting and air conditioning) to ensure
they operate at proper efficiency levels.

The Group is looking into setting electricity efficiency targets to
motivate further improvements in electricity consumption.

Water

Due to the nature of the Group’s business, consumption of water
at from our operations is not very significant. Nevertheless, our
staff are encouraged to adopt water conservation practices during
daily operations. The Group is currently working on water reduction
targets , which will be disclosed as part of next year's ESG report.
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ENVIRONMENT (continued)
Other Resources

To reduce the consumption of paper, we encourage our employees
to print documents double-sided where appropriate. Due to
the nature of the Group’s business, no material consumption of
packaging materials was recorded during the reporting period.

Our Group will continue monitoring and improving our resource-
conservation performance as opportunities arise.

Air Emission

The Group took the initiative to assess the level of air emission
associated with our operations. Due to our business nature, the
only main source of direct atmospheric air emission from our
operations is related to the use of vehicles which use petrol as
fuel source. As a result of the Group’s fossil fuel consumption
during the reporting period, 14.4 kg of nitrogen oxides (NO,), 0.2
kg of sulphur oxides (SO,) and 1.06 kg of particulate matter (PM)
were generated and emitted to the atmosphere. We will continue
monitoring our operation and ensuring our air emissions are
minimized where possible, and regularly report our progress.

Greenhouse Gas Emission

In addition to our efforts in minimizing air pollutant emission,
emissions of carbon dioxide and other greenhouse gases of
concern are also closely monitored by the Group. Greenhouse
gases are gaseous substances which have the ability to
absorb and re-emit infrared radiation when released into the
atmosphere, which intensifies the greenhouse effect. Examples
of greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous
oxide, chlorofluorocarbons (CFCs), hydrochlorofluorocarbons
(HCFCs), perfluorocarbons and sulphur hexafluoride. Greenhouse
gas emissions, also referred to as carbon footprints, are commonly
evaluated in the form of metric tons of equivalent carbon dioxide
(COe), which takes into account the aggregate contribution from
the emissions of the various greenhouse gases.
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RiIE  HERERBRES

ENVIRONMENT (continued)
Greenhouse Gas Emission (continued)

We have estimated our greenhouse gas emissions based on our
consumption of energy sources, including petrol and electricity
(identified to be the most significant indirect carbon emitting
source). Based on the energy consumption data, emission factors
associated with each form of energy consumption, obtained
from reliable sources such as literature and sustainability reports
published by electricity providers, were used to determine our
overall carbon footprint during the reporting period. In addition, the
CO.e corresponding to emissions of other greenhouse gases such
as methane and nitrous oxide is obtained using Global Warming
Potential (GWP) figures associated with the respective substances.

Where applicable, the management has proposed mitigation
measures for implementation by our operations team to limit our
overall carbon footprint. As a summary, the Carbon Footprint for
our Group in this reporting year (1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021)
was 182 tCO.e.

With this information available to us, we intend to further
investigate and work with our employees, along with external
stakeholders, on enhancing our overall performance and
minimizing our carbon footprint.

Waste Management

After careful investigation of the types of waste generated by
our operations, it was concluded that no significant amount of
hazardous waste was generated by the Group’s operation during
the reporting period.

For non-hazardous waste, the Group has been promoting waste
reduction internally, and adopted the same principle while working
with our partners and communities that we served. We spend most
of our waste reduction efforts on the recycling of paper, metal and
plastic, which worked in parallel with the promotional campaign
of the government. Appropriate use of recycled paper was
encouraged in our workplaces, and our employees are reminded to
dispose waste in respective collection bins. In addition, the Group
adopted a paper-less working procedure, which encourage the
communication through emails and e-format documents instead
of hard copies. The effort was well received and was supported by
our staff.

During the reporting period, the amount of non-hazardous waste

generated from our operations was estimated to be 15.2 tonnes.
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ENVIRONMENT (continued)

Summary

The consolidated data with respect to key performance indicators
(KPIs) regarding emissions and resource consumption during this

reporting period is summarized below:

BE

Environmental KPls

RS -HEREGHRES

MR E HEB BEE R R ERE R R &
RMIERZGaBESANT

RIBENER
2019-2020 2020-2021
Category Unit 20196 & 2020 &
"\l B 2020 2021 5
Energy Consumption
BEFE
Total Energy Consumption GJ 1,476 1,417
MR FIEE
Petrol Consumption GJ (L) 408 (11,788) 430 (12,437)
R BEFEE FIEFE (F)
Electricity Consumption GJ (kWh) 1,069 (296,886) 987 (274,217)
BEER FIEE (FTEE)
Total Consumption Intensity GJ/square feet 0.09 0.09
ROBFERE THREE FAR
Greenhouse Gas Emissions
B E R EEHE
Total Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions tCOe 262 182
BERBHHRESE Mg & | bk
Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions Intensity tCO e/square feet 0.015 0.013
BEREEREE WEE —f i, FAR
Scope 1 - Direct Emissions tormes COe 35 37
#HE1-FEHMN %zzﬁftﬁﬁ
Carbon Dioxide (CO,) Emissions t 31 33
Z SR (CO,) BER i
Methane (CH,) Emissions t 0.003 0.003
FR BT (CH,) HE R 72
Nitrous Oxide (N,0) Emissions t 0.013 0.014
—gf=&N 20 ) BERX g
Scope 2 — Energy Indirect Emissions t CO, e 184 101
#[E 2 —selR M E HERK IR = 74
Scope 3 - Other Indirect Emissions t CO e 43.0 43.7
#[E 33— H A FEE BN TR = 74
Paper Waste Disposed at Landfills tCO e 42.6 43.1
B 1 [ B 32 A R AR 7=t 7
Fresh Water Processing t CO e 0.3 0.4
K IK BE IR WEE E Atk
Sewage Processing tCO e 0.1 0.2
J5IKEE IR WiE & /(b
Employee Business Travel tCO e 0.0 0.0
EELE ﬂ@ﬁ”‘a—%ﬂtﬁm
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RiIE  HERERBRES

ENVIRONMENT (continued) R (&)
Summary (continued) RE (&)
Environmental KPls
RIBENIER
2019-2020 2020-2021
Category Unit 20196 % 2020 &
| By 2020 2021 %
Air Emissions
REBHEM
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) Emissions kg 134 14.4
RELW (NOX) HE L T
Sulphur Oxides (SOx) Emissions kg 0.2 0.2
WAL (SOx) BE AR T
Particulate Matter Emissions kg 0.98 1.06
FERL W) BE IR Fr
Waste Management
REEWE R
Total Hazardous Waste Produced t 0 0
FEEHNBEEREMRE A
Total Non-Hazardous Waste Produced t 149 15.2
FIEXNBRESEENES A
Total Non-Hazardous Waste Intensity kg/square feet 0.87 1.06
BEEREYRERE Fr/EAR
Use of Resources
BIREA
Water Consumption m?3 729 985
FXE SR
Water Consumption Intensity m3/square feet *0.05 0.07
K& E SRS FHR
Total Paper Consumption kg 8,873 8,988
MR ERERE T

* Restated value: Table 1. Use of Resources as of 31 March, 2021
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SOCIAL

The Group’s business spreads across several industry sectors and
our staff consists of a large number of talented individuals. Offering
competitive compensation to our staff, while treating them equally
and fairly, and complying to laws and regulations have always been
one of the Group’s guiding principles. Our Group will monitor and
improve in areas as needed, and continue to grow sustainably and
in a socially responsible manner.

Employment

Employees are our internal stakeholders and are pivotal to
our success. As a socially responsible company, our Group
understands that success depends largely on the People that
works with us. The Group recognizes the contribution from our
People and the success that they bring, and considers them as
the greatest asset. Our Group believe works of excellence must be
well compensated, and thus offer a competitive remuneration and
benefits scheme to retain and attract qualified employees.
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RiIE  HERERBRES

SOCIAL (continued)

Employment (continued)

We valued talent and employ those who are the best fit for
each position, regardless of their genders. Public recruitment
is conducted annually with priority on equal opportunity. The
following charts provide an overview of our staff demographics
during this reporting period:

At the year ended in 31 March 2021, the majority of our staff
were employed under a full-time arrangement. Total number of
staff members employed by the Group is 1,852 (2020: 1,657),
including 291 management & general staff and 1,561 security
guard staff. The annual turnover rate of Management & General
Staff of our operations in Hong Kong and Security Guards were
44% and 88% respectively.

Management & General Staff Gender Distribution
EER—REIMRSMH

Male 2
44%
Female %
56%

Chart 1. Management and General Staff Gender Composition (as of
31 March 2021)
E1 EER—ARE TR (220213 H31H)

e (&)
&% (&)

BPERAS RASESEBLERSES N
BT mAwmEKER - SFETAFEE
ETREERFSHE - U NTEXRBAKR
HERANE T ABGEBUE

REBE2021F3A31HILFE - KEN B
THREBLHHER -ASEMERNE K
B#8%1/1,8524 (20204F : 1,6574) © B
BR2O1BEER—KRETR1561HZRE
T RAREEMIBNERER —KBT
RZRANEEOFRKED B 44% K 88% °

Management & General Staff Age Distribution

EER-REIFRIM

> 60
years old %
13%

41-50
years old 5%
27%

30-40
years old 5%
26%

Chart 2. Management and General Staff Age Distribution (as of 31
March 2021)
B2 EER—ME T FhH M (B ZE2021 F3H31H)

Security Staff Gender Distribution

R E TR
Female &2
23%
Male 55
77%

Chart 3. Security Guard gender distribution (as of 31 March 2021)
B3 ZRETIEF7 i (BE2021 F3H31H)
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SOCIAL (continued)
Internal Policies

The Group has a policy in place to cover employee compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

A comprehensive staff handbook, which serves as the basis for our
human resources management approach, is issued to all of our
employees upon employment, which details:

o employment policy;

e  welfare and benefits;

° leave and rest days;

o conduct and discipline;

° occupational health and safety;
e personal data (privacy); and

o equal opportunity.

Updates and revisions to the employee handbook are
communicated to our staff and the latest version of the handbook
is readily available for staff access for easy reference.

Employee Emolument

The emolument of the employees of our Group is also determined
by the remuneration Committee, assessed based on merit,
qualifications and competence. The emoluments of the Directors
of the Company are decided by the Remuneration Committee,
having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

Employee salaries are reviewed and adjusted regularly based on
performance appraisals, and according to the guidelines defined
under our remuneration and incentive system. At the end of
the term, rewards are handed to those who made significant
contributions in daily work, based on the reward & punishment
measures for employees. Outstanding employees are given priority
on potential promotion or development opportunities during
annual employee appraisals.
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RiIE  HERERBRES

SOCIAL (continued)

Remuneration Committee

To ensure our remuneration scheme remains competitive, the
Group has established a Remuneration Committee, with the
principal duties of determining specific remuneration packages
of all Executive Directors, including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment, and
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee
also incorporates factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities into the decision
process.

The Remuneration Committee meets regularly to determine on
policies for Directors’ remuneration, and assess the performance
of Executive Directors and certain senior management of the
Group.

Retirement Benefit Scheme

The Group participates in the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees employed.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group, in funds under the control of independent trustees.
Both the Group and the employees contribute to the MPF Scheme
based on a fixed percentage of the staffs’ monthly salary in
accordance with government regulations.

During the reporting period, total contributions paid or payable
to the MPF scheme by the Group amounted to approximately
HK$11.16 million (approximately HK$9.8 million in the previous
year), which had been recognized as expenses and included in
staff costs in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Occupational Health and Safety

The Group considers the topic of occupational health and safety
as one of its top priorities, and enforces highest standards
on maintaining a safe and comfortable working environment
for employees. The Group’s occupational health and safety
management system achieved ISO 45001:2018 certification.

The Group provides employees with a spacious working place
and with abundant ancillary resources, including a dining room,
resting area, and basic household appliances. All equipment,
such as drinking facilities, air-conditioning system and associated
wiring, are under regular inspection to maintain availability. Safety
and emergency equipment such as fire extinguishers, fire escape
masks and safety helmets at construction sites, are placed in
prominent locations in offices, and are made easily accessible to
all employees. In addition, safety guidance documents on aspects
such as fire drills or safety tips are constantly circulated to remind
our staff to pay extra attention to public safety.

Security guards hired by the Group are trained on the proper usage
of emergency response equipment such as fire extinguishers and
hoses, as well as being familiar with evacuation routes and muster
points to provide assistance to tenants in case of emergency.

In summary, the following measures were adopted during the
reporting period to strengthen our staff’'s awareness on Health and
Safety issues:

o Health and safety trainings was conducted for new
employees to strengthen their overall health and safety
awareness;

° Monthly work safety and health meeting to fulfil employees’
daily health and first-aid needs; and

o Regular workshop was conducted on enhancing our security
staff knowledge on emergency scenario management (ie: gas
leak, riot and etc).

During the reporting period from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021,
our Group had no material non-compliance breach with relevant
standards, rules and regulations, and no major accidents were
encountered during operation. Also, a total of 22 loss-time injury
incidents were recorded for our staff (including security guards)
during the reporting period.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RiIE  HERERBRES

SOCIAL (continued)
COVID-19 Response

The COVID-19 continued during the reporting period, and we
adopted a set of contingency procedures, whereby our staff and
contractors shall take all practicable steps to maintain a hygienic
environment in properties under our management, in the interest
of all personnel who may be present at our managed properties,
including owners, tenants, visitors, as well as our staff. Our staff are
instructed to perform the following operations as part of their daily
routine:

° Regular hand sanitizing
o Regular disinfection of common areas
° Request staff and visitors to wear surgical face mask

Equal Opportunities, Workforce Diversity and
Anti-Discrimination

The Group emphasizes on equal opportunity, as our employment
and training and promotion practices do allow any sort of
discrimination on grounds of gender, disability, pregnancy, family
status, race, colour, religion, age, sexual orientation, national
origin, trade union membership or other conditions recognized in
law.

Our Corporate Policy includes provisions on handling
discrimination, harassment is not tolerated job duty assignment
or career advancement and victimization in the workplace. In
addition, the Group examines the identification documents of
applicants as well as their QAS certificates and security personnel
permits, in accordance with the Security and Guarding Services
Ordinance (Chapter 460), in order to verify the identity and
qualification of our security guard applicant.

To the Group’s best knowledge, the Group was not aware of any
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations during the
reporting period.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SOCIAL (continued)

Development and Training

To encourage and motivate career development, the Group
provided different training programs, including training
programmes for security guards on working attitude and security
knowledge. Our management and staff were also provided with
case studies, based on incidents that have occurred in the
past, to enhance their management skills and risk management
knowledge. In addition, effect and updates on relevant regulations,
customer feedback, and new company policy in operations and
accounting were regularly debriefed to our staff to maintain
transparency and consistency throughout our operation.

During the reporting period, our Management & Staff and
Security Guards received 728 hours and 8,586 hours of training
respectively.

Labour Standards

The Group’s operations comply with all applicable regulations, laws
and standards in Hong Kong associated with labour, including but
not limited to the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of
Hong Kong).

We are strongly against the use of child and forced labour.
Our management works closely with our Human Resources
department to ensure suitable working environments are provided
to our employees and prevent the hiring of underage personnel.

Employees, Customers, Suppliers and Other Stakeholders

Our Group values positive relationships with our customers
and suppliers, and consider it to be an important aspect of our
business. An open engagement channel with our customers is
maintained through customer feedback revision meetings, which
brings valuable insights to our operation performance and it was
proven to be effective in allowing us to understand latest industry
trends and to better our services. The Group is also dedicated
to build a close working relationship with our suppliers, and by
conducting regular performance revision and appraisal to form a
closer working relationship.

Our effective communication strategy features a timely and
accurate disclosure of information, which not only brings
confidence to our shareholders’ and investors’ and being beneficial
for investor relations, it also invited constructive feedback for
perfecting our operation.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RiIE  HERERBRES

SOCIAL (continued)

Employees, Customers, Suppliers and Other Stakeholders
(continued)

We will continue the success of our open communication, and the
interactions will be sustained for a successful working relationship
with our stakeholders in the future.

Anti-Corruption

Our Group is strictly complying to all law requirements and
is fully committed in restricting all illegal activities, including
corruption, without exception. The Group requested our staff to
understand and work with us to safeguard our Group throughout
the daily operation to prohibit any form of corruption, and also
prevent money laundering activities. A whistleblowing channel
has been established for reporting inappropriate conduct and
other any suspicious activities which may be conflict with our
relevant policies and guidelines. In order to strengthen our
employee’s understanding on the topic, regular internal trainings
were organized, featuring real-life cases and recommended
countermeasures to avoid non-compliance activity. A working
guideline on “Anti-Corruption Measures on Account, Security,
Construction, Property Management” is issued to our staff for
reference and is publicly available and fully accessible to all our
employees.

During the period from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021, our Group
was unaware of any action that non-compliance to legal regulation,
and related to corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

COMMUNITY

Our Group understands that it is important for our business to both
generate profit to our shareholders, and being socially responsible
to care, serve and give back to our community wherever is needed.

Community Investment

Since 2005, our Group has been receiving the recognition as a
“Caring Company”, awarded annually under the Caring Company
Scheme by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service (HKCSS). We,
and together with our staff, were dedicated and committed to fully
support local charity organizations, NGOs and their volunteering
activities by allocating a portion of our revenue to build a better
local community. During the reporting period, the Group donated
HKD3,000 to the Hong Kong Children & Youth Services to support
their programmes for youth career planning.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

th;C

ZHONGHUI

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SHI SHI SERVICES LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shi Shi
Services Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 89 to 178, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B A H AR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional

judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the

consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

U]

Investment property
Refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group measured its investment property at fair value
with the changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss. This fair value measurement is significant to
our audit because the balance of investment property of
HK$30,300,000 as at 31 March 2021 is material to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group’s
fair value measurement involves application of judgement
and is based on assumptions and estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

Assessing the competence, independence and integrity
of the external valuer engaged by client;

—  Obtaining the external valuation report and meeting
with the external valuer to discuss and challenge the
valuation process, methodologies used and market
evidence to support significant judgments and
assumptions applied in the valuation model;

—  Checking key assumptions and input data in the
valuation model to supporting evidence;

—  Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation model;
and

—  Assessing the disclosure of the fair value measurement
in the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s fair value measurement of the
investment property is supported by the available evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

(ii)

Trade receivables

Refer to Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.
The Group tested the amount of trade receivables for
impairment. This impairment test is significant to our audit
because the balance of trade receivables of approximately
HK$83,414,000 as at 31 March 2021 is material to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group’s
impairment test involves application of judgement and is
based on estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

—  Assessing the Group’s procedures on granting credit
limits and credit periods to customers;

—  Assessing the Group’s relationship and transaction
history with the customers;

- Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment;
—  Assessing ageing of the debts;
—  Assessing creditworthiness of the customers;

—  Checking subsequent settlements from the customers;
and

—  Assessing the disclosure of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk in the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for trade
receivables is supported by the available evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B A H AR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

(iii) Investment in an associate

Refer to Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group is required to test the amount of investment in an
associate for impairment. This investment in an associate is
significant to our audit because the balance of investment
in an associate of approximately HK$18,798,000 as at
31 March 2021 is material to the consolidated financial
statements. In addition, the Group’s impairment test involves
application of judgement and is based on assumptions and

estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment;

—  Assessing the competence, independence and integrity

of the external valuer engaged by the client;

—  Obtaining the external valuation report and meeting
with the external valuer to discuss and challenge the
valuation process, methodologies used and market
evidence to support significant judgments and

assumptions applied in the valuation model;

—  Assessing the arithmetical accuracy of the valuation

model;

—  Assessing the financial information of the associate;

—  Obtaining and checking to evidence to support the

Group’s impairment assessment;

—  Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions
(including revenue growth, profit margins, terminal

growth rates and discount rates); and

—  Checking input data to supporting evidence.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for investment
in an associate is supported by the available evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B A H AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA's
website at:

http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/

standards/auditing-assurance/auditre/

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ngan Hing Hon
Audit Engagement Director
Practising Certificate Number P05294

Hong Kong, 29 June 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEBERkEtMEZERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

2021 2020
2021 & 2020 fF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ioEza FET FHETT
Revenue Y &= 7 511,116 487,395
Cost of services Bk 75 A A (402,478) (376,495)
Gross profit EF 108,638 110,900
Interest revenue A B U = 8 1,006 568
Other income and expenses, net = N 9 20,519 (1,100)
Share of loss of an associate oG — R A R E 18 26 (5,130) (1,320)
Administrative expenses THAX (62,287) (54,358)
Other operating expenses HigERE (22,377) (19,040)
Impairment of investment in an R—EEE ARz 26
associate "ERE (16,500) —
Listing expenses EmHAX (2,893) (11,367)
Finance costs & AR 11 (581) (1,018)
Profit before tax C IR 20,395 23,265
Income tax expense FTiSfi 2 14 (4,541) (9,065)
Profit for the year F A 12 15,854 14,200
Other comprehensive income/(expense), HbZmEUz (BI%)
net of tax MNERBIE
Items that may be reclassified to profit or  A] BEE £ 77 48 = 18 25 #7
loss: EHH -
Exchange differences on translation of RMEBIINEBREEZ
foreign operation PE W ERE 5,183 (4,505)
Reclassification of translation reserve to Bt ss— M B D A& E X,
profit ot loss upon deregistration of a RBEEFT I EEER
subsidiary 3) -
Other comprehensive income/(expense) FREMZEKE
for the year (BA%) 5,180 (4,505)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREHEWRHAEE 21,034 9,695
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meBERkEtEZERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

2021 2020
2021 & 2020 F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt TER FHETT
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: THREEEER
wHL(E5E) ¢
Owners of the Company ZIN/NETE F SN 15,856 14,174
Non-controlling interests IR (2 26
15,854 14,200
Total comprehensive income/(expense) THREREFAZE
for the year attributable to: Wi, (Bx) 4% -
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIET Z =N 21,010 9,735
Non-controlling interests IR 24 (40)
21,034 9,695
Earnings per share BRER
Basic (HK$) ERCGET) 15 0.015 0.014
Diluted (HK$) wE (BT 15 0.015 0.014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e P AR R

As at 31 March 2021 202143531 H

2021 2020
2021 % 2020 4F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ioEza FExT FHETT
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W% - BN 18 48,249 22,183
Investment property "EYE 19 30,300 30,300
Intangible assets B EE 20 362 2,143
Right-of-use assets THAEEE 21 13,322 6,487
Goodwill BES 23 3,232 3,232
Deposits placed for life insurance HASRBRETFTANES
policies 24 8,962 8,758
Deferred tax assets EEMIREE 25 1,974 2,767
Investment in an associate R—HEBERRNEE 26 18,798 40,428
Prepayments, trade and other FENEIE - E5 REM
receivables G El 27 39,867 -
165,066 116,298
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, trade and other TENEIE - E5 REM
receivables e 27 149,543 134,241
Pledged bank deposits BEEBIRITER 28 574 1,629
Cash and cash equivalents HehIAEEEY 29 105,328 141,422
Current tax assets BNEAFR IR & B 2,133 -
257,578 277,292
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables g5 kEAMENFKIA 30 80,159 69,353
Contract liabilities AHEE 31 3,189 4,004
Bank borrowings — secured RITEE-FEHF 32 5,354 11,671
Lease liabilities HEBE 33 4,184 4,205
Current tax liabilities BNEAfRIE B (& 1,609 3,141
94,495 92,374
Net current assets REEEFE 163,083 184,918
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e IR R

As at 31 March 2021  1R202143 /31 H

2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 4F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ok FExT FHETT
Total assets less current liahilities WEERRBARS 328,149 301,216
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEBRE 33 9,138 2,286
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIBEE 25 40 108
9,178 2,394
NET ASSETS EEFE 318,971 298,822
Equity s
Share capital f& 7R 34 10,264 10,264
Reserves 1 36 308,707 287,697
Equity attributable to owners of the ZAN/NSIE FEDN g
Company 318,971 297,961
Non-controlling interests AR = - 861
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 318,971 298,822

The consolidated financial statements on pages 89 to 178 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29
June 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

Approved by:

Lee Chin Ching, Cyrix

FRRE

Director

EF
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Ho Ying Choi
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEZBER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

Attributable to owners of the Company

KNREEAERE
Foreign
Share currency Non-
Share premium Merger translation Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
R4 At o FER i 3
BRA& RER wE AERE  REEF &kt i ko)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TEx TiEx THx FHT TR TR TiEx
At 1 April 2019 R2019F4F18 10,264 179,975 4,750 690 92,547 288,226 901 289,127
Total comprehensive ER2ERR)/
(expense)/income forthe ~ W##H
year - - - (4,439) 14,174 9,735 (40) 9,695
At 31 March 2020 R200%F3A4318 10,264 179,975 4,750 (3,749) 106,721 297,961 861 298,822
At 1 April 2020 R200F4F1H 10,264 179,975 4,750 (3,749) 106,721 297,961 861 298,822
Capital return to non- HE-HNBLAR-%
controlling interests FEREZRE
upon de-registration of a i)
subsidiary (note) - - - - - - (885) (885)
Total comprehensive income  £R2ENFES
for the year - - - 5,154 15,856 21,010 24 21,034
At 31 March 2021 2021 F3A31H 10,264 179,975 4,750 1,405 122,577 318,971 - 318,971

Note: During the year, an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary, LRI E/EWME M HNFERN - i —HEZEFEZEMNBE L RILED

BR 7 5 PR A 7] was de-registered.

EEMERBAERAF]
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n _\éiﬁﬁﬁii

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

2021 2020
2021 % 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHFESEERE
Profit before tax B 54 A g A 20,395 23,265
Adjustments for: MTYSBIELAE :
Finance costs & B AR 581 1,018
Interest revenue A Bz (1,006) (568)
Depreciation of property, plant and W WBEMEERTE
equipment 4,677 1,232
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 4,674 4,130
Premium charged on life insurance policies ASRER IR EFTUINEVR & 100 96
Gain on disposal of property, HEYE  BEREEHKR
plant and equipment 100 -
Amortisation of intangible assets | EEEH 1,705 2,119
Share of loss of an associate oL —MEEE R REE 5,130 1,320
Impairment of investment in an associate R — g E R RRE/RE 16,500 -
Gain on early termination of lease RPRIEEE 2 W (31) -
Fair value loss on investment property KEMERNNBEERE - 2,100
52,825 34,712
Change in prepayments, trade and other ENRIE - 5 REM
receivables JrE W SRR B (17,107) (12,281)
Change in trade and other payables B 5 N H b A 58 12,373 (529)
Change in contract liabilities BHBEY (529) (256)
Change in due to a related party & — & Bl 5 B 2 & - (2,105)
Cash generated from operations KEEE RS 47,562 19,541
Interest paid AT A (110) (596)
Lease interest paid EREERNE 471) (422)
Income tax paid B FT1EH (7,481) (7,650)
Net cash generated from operating activities & EZEBRESFH 39,500 10,873
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZHMERERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEEWE  BELXRE (29,515) (13,125)
Purchase of intangible assets BEERTEE - (367)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BEMKEEHE
plant and equipment (100) -
Decrease in pledged bank deposits EEBBRITER B 1,055 93
Interest received 2 U A B 702 290
Redemption of investments at BRERADEFABRIKE
fair value through profit and loss - 29,844
Purchase of investments at fair value BERAABEFABRZK
through profit or loss - (19,708)
Deposit paid for acquisition of properties WEME 2 NES (39,867) -
Capital return to non-controlling interests upon s+ #5— MM B A &1 — % 3F4%
de-registration of a subsidiary ERRE (885) -
Net cash used in REZBHFARS
investing activities FE (68,610) (2,973)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

2021 2020
2021 % 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES METEFERESRE

Repayment of bank loans BERITER (9,128) (371)
Bank loans raised FrEERMIETTER 5,354 -
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEAE (4,647) (4,005)
Net cash used in financing activities MEITBAREESFE (8,421) (4,376)

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND BeRESEEYWORD)

CASH EQUIVALENTS S EE (37,531) 3,524
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEETE R BB v & 3,980 (4,204)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F 3R & MBS EEY 138,879 139,559
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRBERBESEZEY 105,328 138,879
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERREEBY2EHRDIN

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances R e RIRTTHE 105,328 141,422
Bank overdrafts RITEX - (2,543)

105,328 138,879
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

GENERAL INFORMATION

Shi Shi Services Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability. Its shares are
listed on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The address of its registered office is at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands. The address of its principal
place of business is Unit 903, 9 Floor, Haleson Building, 1
Jubilee Street, Central, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 22 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”), and all values are rounded to
thousand (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new
and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) that are relevant to its
operations and effective for its accounting year beginning
on 1 April 2020. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations. The adoption of
these new and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant
changes to the Group’s accounting policies and amounts
reported for the current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective. The Group has
already commenced an assessment of the impact of these
new and revised HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to
state whether these new and revised HKFRSs would have
a material impact on its results of operations and financial
position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of investment property which is carried at its fair
value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key
assumptions and estimates. It also requires the directors
to exercise its judgements in the process of applying the
accounting policies. The areas involving critical judgements
and areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
these consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note
4 to the consolidated financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(@) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 March. Subsidiaries are
entities over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. The Group has power over an
entity when the Group has existing rights that give it
the current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e.
activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting rights
held by other parties, to determine whether it has
control. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(@)

Consolidation (continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in
that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the net
assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill
relating to that subsidiary and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between the non-controlling interests and owners of the
Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination.
The cost of acquisition is measured at the acquisition-
date fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued, liabilities incurred and contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. ldentifiable assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Company’s share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill.
Any excess of the Company’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase which is attributed to the
Company.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired. Goodwill is measured
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. The
method of measuring impairment losses of goodwill
is the same as that of other assets as stated in the
accounting policy below. Impairment losses of goodwill
are recognised in consolidated profit or loss and are
not subsequently reversed. Goodwill is allocated to
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the acquisition for the purpose of
impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are
initially measured at the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the
acquisition date.

3. EXREFEXEGE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(©)

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of an entity but is not control or joint
control over those policies. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible, including potential voting rights held by
other entities, are considered when assessing whether
the Group has significant influence. In assessing
whether a potential voting right contributes to significant
influence, the holder’s intention and financial ability to
exercise or convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and is initially recognised at cost. ldentifiable assets
and liabilities of the associate in an acquisition are
measured at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is
included in the carrying amount of the investment and
is tested for impairment together with the investment at
the end of each reporting period when there is objective
evidence that the investment is impaired. Any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss, and its share of the post-acquisition movements in
reserves is recognised in the consolidated reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate. If the
associate subsequently reports profits, the Group
resumes recognising its share of those profits only after
its share of the profits equals the share of losses not
recognised.
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3. EXREFEXEGE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143431 H1FF/E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(©)

(d)

Associates (continued)

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Foreign currency translation
()  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong Dollars, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

3. EXREFEEGE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

%?_A

FoF %5 % 2= B

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & 2202193531 H 1 F/Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation
currency as follows:

—  Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the exchange
rates on the transaction dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the foreign currency
translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities and of borrowings are recognised
in the foreign currency translation reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in consolidated profit
or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

Shi Shi Services Limited
B B AR 35 PR 2 7

3. EXREFEXEGE

(d) Hhesme ()
(i) #HEREFHRE

DEEHRA R R ZHEE
THW%%K%IE%M%
i R BTSRRI DA T 77 S
ERANFBNEMER

— FEHHEEGBHAR
MEMEENABER
Bk R B Hi R IR
MEXRETHRE

- WARRXEFYE
REITIRE (BRIEZTF
BHEWIERHHIRT
EXZFFENEGRE
B4R E&\RT
WARRLER S
[ERifErTIRE :&

— %ﬁl%ﬁ?i%ﬁ
AERBNINERE
P HERR o

RirA IR B R FREEIN
ERREFHEIMERMESL
I X RN INE B
PR - BB ERHE
% - &Eﬂiﬁ\mAE@
ERAHEREN—&HD

WIS R R EEEER
ARERRSIE RN E
BOEERAR  BRKT
i o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis. The estimated useful lives are as
follows:

Leasehold land and building Over the lease term

Leasehold improvement 20%
Furniture and fixture 10%
Motor vehicles 30%
Office equipment 25%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

(9

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings held
to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An
investment property is measured initially at its cost
including all direct costs attributable to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is
stated at its fair value based on valuation by an external
independent valuer. Gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value of the investment property are
recognised in profit or loss for the period in which they
arise.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the property, and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Leases
The Group as leasee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and
corresponding lease liabilities when the leased assets
are available for use by the Group. Right-of-use assets
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Depreciation of right-of-use assets is
calculated at rates to write off their cost over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

2%-5%
30%

Land use rights
Motor vehicles
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(9)

(h)

Leases (continued)
The Group as leasee (continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liabilities, lease payments prepaid, initial direct costs
and the restoration costs. Lease liabilities include the
net present value of the lease payments discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that
rate can be determined, or otherwise the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as expenses in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Short-term leases are leases with an initial lease term of
12 months or less. Low-value assets are assets of value
below US$5,000.

The Group as lessor
Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Rental income from
operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease.

Intangible assets
Customer contracts

Customer contracts with finite useful lives that are
acquired through business combination are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 5
years. The estimate useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

Intangible assets (continued)
Computer software

Computer software are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives of 4 years.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets but has not retained control on
the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received is recognised in profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

0)

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis where the purchase or sale of an asset
is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the
asset within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially recognised at fair value,
plus directly attributable transaction costs except in the
case of investments at fair value through profit or loss.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of investments at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the
following categories:

- Financial assets at amortised cost;

(i)  Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade and other
receivables) are classified under this category if
they satisfy both of the following conditions:

- the assets are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

—  the contractual terms of the assets give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method less loss
allowance for expected credit losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k)

()

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit losses on financial assets at amortised cost.
Expected credit losses are the weighted average of
credit losses with the respective risks of a default
occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument
at an amount equal to the expected credit losses that
result from all possible default events over the expected
life of that financial instrument (“lifetime expected
credit losses”) for trade receivables, or if the credit risk
on that financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a
financial instrument (other than trade receivables) has
not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime
expected credit losses that represents the expected
credit losses that result from default events on that
financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to
adjust the loss allowance at the end of the reporting
period to the required amount is recognised in profit or
loss as an impairment gain or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(m) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(n)

()

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under
HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and
equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(p) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are

stated at cost.

(@) Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue

Costs.

(n Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer with reference
to the customary business practices and excludes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. For a
contract where the period between the payment by the
customer and the transfer of the promised product or
service exceeds one year, the consideration is adjusted
for the effect of a significant financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring control over a
product or service to a customer. Depending on the
terms of a contract and the laws that apply to that
contract, a performance obligation can be satisfied over
time or at a point in time. A performance obligation is

satisfied over time if:

—  the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s

performance;

—  the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is

created or enhanced; or

—  the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for

performance completed to date.

Shi Shi Services Limited
B B AR 35 PR 2 7

3. EXREFEXEGE

(P)

(@

BZ REAMEBNFRIR

B REMBENTIAVIZRAR
B - HRRUERMNRERE
HRAGTE - BRIFREIRMFEY
PEKX EER MERATIRE -

BREIER

AR PrETRER T ARE WA
SHE (MBRERBEITAN) A
BE o

EFEEH k=

Wk HIRESERBERIREER
PRI H & # AT a] B e RAE &
g ATERAEZE=TRERNE
B mEPNREBR D AKE
an S AR F5 2 A ) HABR AR 4B — R A
BH) RESRERBREFDH
FEFLHE -

AREEE B E G RIS 91
BERTEPMEKEROE T
Rl e - T & DMIETR K
BRANZAEHNNERE BHERE
AR AN R — R B 5T ©
WB THIBER  BHEETIRER
TEAK

- EEPRKBEFIMHEEARE
B B A FTiR R A e

- BARKEMNEOITREIZK
MR —HERBAIZHAR
RFXEPEFNEE : 3L

- EBARKENEQTRLEL
E-REHAEEARRASR
MEE  MAKEHES
SERK Y E K977 A 10 R] 52
T FREOHER) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

U]

(s)

(t)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time,
revenue is recognised by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point
in time when the customer obtains control of the
product or service.

Other revenue

Revenue from the rental income is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

Employee benefits
(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(i)  Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit
or loss represents contributions payable by the
Group to the funds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

Employee benefits (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of the dates when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the
Group recognises restructuring costs and involves
the payment of termination benefits.

Bonus plan

The expected bonus payments are recognised
as a liability when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made. Liabilities for bonus
plans are expected to be settled within 12 months
and are measured at the amounts expected to be
paid when they are settled.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based
payments to certain directors and consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors
are measured at the fair value (excluding the
effect of non market-based vesting conditions)
of the equity instruments at the date of grant.
The fair value determined at the grant date of the
equity-settled share-based payments is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will
eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non
market-based vesting conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

(u)

Employee benefits (continued)
(v) Share-based payments (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payments to
consultants are measured at the fair value of the
services rendered or if the fair value of the services
rendered cannot be reliably measured, at the fair
value of the equity instruments granted. The fair
value is measured at the date the Group receives
the services and is recognised as an expense.

If the share options granted are not exercised after
the vesting period, the share option reserve is
transferred to the retained earnings.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset,
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to
the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during
the period, other than borrowings made specifically for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v)

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised
in profit or loss because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model of the Group whose business
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is
rebutted, deferred tax for such investment properties
are measured based on the expected manner as to how
the properties will be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(w) Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company or of a parent of
the Company.

(b) An entity is related to the Group (reporting entity)
if any of the following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Company are members
of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group. If the
Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(w) Related parties (continued)

(x)

(b) (continued)

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant

influence over the entity or is a member of

the key management personnel of the entity

(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Company or to a
parent of the Company.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purpose of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of the Group’s various lines of business in
different geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of productions processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v)

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets except goodwill, investment property, deferred
tax assets, investments and receivables to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of any impairment loss.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-
generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(2)

(aa)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of
the reporting period or those that indicate the going
concern assumption is not appropriate are adjusting
events and are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Events after the reporting period that are
not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when material.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

(@

(b)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred tax for investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the directors have reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolios and concluded that
the Group’s investment properties are not held under
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties over time, rather than through
sale. Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred tax
for investment properties, the directors have adopted
the presumption that investment properties measured
using the fair value model are recovered through sale.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.

(i)  Fair value of investment property

The Group appointed an independent professional
valuer to assess the fair value of the investment
property. In determining the fair value, the valuer
has utilised a method of valuation which involves
certain estimates. The directors have exercised
their judgement and are satisfied that the method
of valuation is reflective of the current market
conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment loss for trade and other
receivables

The Directors periodically review its receivables to
assess whether impairment exists. In determining
whether impairment should be provided, the
directors of the Company evaluated individually
each account for impairment after taking into
account the value of each client account’s
underlying collateral and the latest financial
position of those clients in default of settlement.

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
investment in an associate

Investment in an associate is reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. Value-in-use calculations
are used for assessing the recoverable amount of
this investment. These calculations require use of
judgments and estimates.

Management judgment is required for assessing
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether
an event has occurred that may indicate that
the related carrying value of interests may not
be recoverable; and (ii) whether the carrying
value of the interests can be supported by the
recoverable amount. Changing the estimations
used by management in assessing impairment
could materially affect the recoverable amount
used in the impairment test and as a result affect
the Group’s consolidated financial position and
consolidated results of operations. At the end
of the reporting period, the carrying value of
investment in an associate was HK$18,798,000
(2020: HK$40,428,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives,
residual values and related depreciation charges
for the Group’s property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives and residual values
of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. The Group will revise
the depreciation charge where useful lives and
residual values are different to those previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is determined with reference
to the present value of estimated future cash
flows. Where the future cash flows are less than
expected or there are unfavourable events and
change in facts and circumstance which result in
revision of future estimate cash flows, a material
impairment loss may arise.

Recoverability of intangible assets

During the year, the Group reconsidered the
recoverability of its intangible assets arising from
the Group’s development, which is included in
its consolidated statement of financial position
at 31 March 2021 at HK$362,000 (2020:
HK$2,143,000). Detailed sensitivity analysis has
been carried out and the Group is confident that
the carrying amount of the assets will be recovered
in full, even if returns are reduced. This situation
will be closely monitored, and adjustments made
in future periods, if future market activity indicates
that such adjustments are appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
(vii) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required
in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

During the reporting period, the capital structure of the Group
consist of debt which includes interest-bearing loans and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and reserves. The Directors review the
capital structure on a regular basis. As part of this review,
the Directors consider the cost of capital and the associated
risks, and take appropriate actions to adjust the Group’s
capital structure. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.

(@) Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk
as the Group’s deposits placed for life insurance policies
are denominated in United States dollar (“US$”).

The Group considers the risk exposure to foreign
currency fluctuation is limited as long as the HK$
remains pegged to the US$. This analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2020.

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency
risk as most of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in the functional
currencies of the group entities. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of foreign currency assets and liabilities. The
Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure closely
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

(b) Interest rate risk

The Group’s lease liabilities bear interests at fixed
interest rates and therefore are subject to fair value
interest rate risks.

The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from
its pledged bank deposits and bank borrowings. These
deposits and borrowings bear interests at variable rates
varied with the then prevailing market condition.

The Group does not consider that it has any significant
exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
from its bank deposits and borrowings as a reasonably
possible change of 50 basis points in the interest
rates would have no material impact on the Group’s
consolidated profit or loss for the years ended 31 March
2021 and 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

()

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the cash and bank balances,
pledged bank deposits and trade and other receivables
included in the consolidated statement of financial
position represents the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to the Group’s financial assets.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk. It has policies in place to ensure that sales are
made to customers with an appropriate credit history.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to
director’'s approval. Receivable balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis to ensure that the Group’s exposure
to bad debts is not significant.

Details of the credit quality of the trade receivables
were set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances and pledged
bank deposits is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.

The Group considers whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of financial assets
on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period
by comparing the risk of a default occurring as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially
the following information is used:

- internal credit rating;

- actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations;

— actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

()

Credit risk (continued)

—  significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same borrower;

—  significant changes in the value of the collateral
or in the quality of guarantees or credit
enhancements; and

- significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the borrower, including changes
in the payment status of borrowers.

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a
debtor is more than 30 days past due in making a
contractual payment. A default on a financial asset
is when the counterparty fails to make contractual
payments within 180 days of when they fall due.

Financial assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor
failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Group.
The Group normally categorises a loan or receivable
for write off when a debtor fails to make contractual
payments greater than 365 days past due. Where
loans or receivables have been written off, the Group,
if practicable and economical, continues to engage in
enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable
due.

The customers of the Group in property and
management related services are mainly owners’
corporation, owners’ committee and sole owners of
properties concerned. The Directors are of the view
that it is unlikely that payment of accounts receivable
will be defaulted for property management and related
services rendered. In addition, the Group can always
take necessary legal actions to recover any amount
not settled by any of these customers. In respect of
customers on the money lending business, sufficient
security collateral are obtained to ensure full recovery
of loan amount in event of default payments. In respect
of rental services, normally two months rental deposits
were received and therefore the risk of default payment
is low. During the year, the Group has no history of any
default payment or bad debts in respect of it business
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d)

6. PHEREE &)

Liquidity risk (d RBELRER
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current REBEBUR AT HEEE R NTE
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it HRARSHEST K UERES
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity BRWIREFHE  UEMAREE
requirements in the short and longer term. MBEEFEK o
The maturity profile of the Company’s financial RIERR A AFlemaER
liabilities as at the end of reporting period, based on the B H AR BRI A B H o AT an
contracted undiscounted payments, was as follows: Nk
More than Total
1year  contractual
Less than but less  undiscounted Carrying
On demand Tyear than 5 years cash flow amounts
BBIE  SHAER
REX YME EORSE RERELE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2021 2021 % TET TR TER TR TR
Trade and other payables B REMEMNFE - 80,159 - 80,159 80,159
Bank borrowings - secured ~ HITEE-FER 5,354 - - 5,354 5,354
5,354 80,159 - 85,513 85,513
More than Total
lyear  contractual
Less than but less  undiscounted Carrying
On demand Lyear thanbyears cash flow amounts
BBIE  AOXER
REX SRIE BIRSE RENELH RHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2020 20205 FET FET TET FET THER
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENFE - 69,353 - 69,353 69,353
Bank borrowings —secured ~ FiTEE-FHE 11,671 - - 11,671 11,671
11671 69,353 - 81,024 81,024
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. BIEKRER (E)
(e) Categories of financial instruments e) €mMIAEHR
At 31 March
M3HB31H
2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Financial assets: EWMEE -
Financial assets at amortised 1R 5K AN B BR Y
costs (including cash and cash TREE(BREASK
equivalents) REeFEEW) 255,380 278,770
Financial liabilities: eHMEas:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost ~ Z# X AV RN SR B E 85,513 81,024

(f)

Fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their
respective fair values.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The following disclosures of fair
value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that
categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Group can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices
included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. HISEBEE (&)

()  Fair value (continued) n BREGE
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and AEBHNBRRERERERIBER
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date of HEMFEEEEER  BR=
the event or change in circumstances that caused the BRI E (T8 A R -
transfer.
(i) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 (i) F2021F3A31BHMA R
March 2021: EEROBE
Fair value
measurements
using: Total
FEATY
AREFE st
Level 2 2021
EFZR 2021 5
HK$'000 HK$°000
Description it FET FET
Recurring fair value measurements: &EEM4Q AEE :
Investment property REYFE
Commercial — Hong Kong mE-—FHB 30,300 30,300
Total recurring fair value LEUEAARBEFERTE
measurements 30,300 30,300
Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 R2020F3 H31HW AR
March 2020: EERNEE -
Fair value
measurements
using: Total
EA T
NIALERTE : @t
Level 2 2020
E & 2020 4%
HK$'000 HK$'000
Description ¥ it FAT FET
Recurring fair value measurements: EEMQAABEE :
Investment property REY %
Commercial — Hong Kong EE—-BE 30,300 30,300
Total recurring fair value KEEANETEEEE
measurements 30,300 30,300
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. BIEMER (&)
()  Fair value (continued) n 2RMEE)

(i) (continued) (i (%)

During the year, there was no asset transferred FAN WEREERAAERE
from level 3 to other two levels of fair value BE=—MEBEHMMRR
hierarchy.

(i)  Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group (i AEERAHERRFMEE
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair Rl A K& A /e B 5T 2 B iR
value measurements at 31 March: R ASEN3 A31 B2 #

5= -
The Directors are responsible for the fair value BT ETUBRMRAT
measurements of assets and liabilities required BEMBBEAAEBERE &
for financial reporting purposes, including level 3 PEEEF=ZRAAEE -
fair value measurements. The accountant reports EMRESSERZER
to the Board of Directors for these fair value EFTE °
measurements.
The Group engages external valuation experts REBRERR AEEZE
with the recognised professional qualifications and BRI EEEWR T HKER
recent experience to perform the valuations at the N EERETHE -
end of each reporting period.
Level 2 fair value measurements BRI AEE
Fair value Fair value
DRE AR IE]
2021 2020
2021 F 2020 F
Description Valuation technique Inputs HK$'000 HK$'000
it EE B M WARE TERT FET
Investment property
Commercial investment ~ Market comparable Price per square
property — Hong Kong approach feet
REYZE
HEREME-BE UEALKEMSEE B HKRER 30,300 30,300

The valuation for investment property as at 31
March 2021 and 2020 was performed by Jones
Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory
Limited, an independent professional valuer.

Shi Shi Services Limited
B B AR 35 PR 2 7

MR2021F K2020F3 A3l IR E
MENGEDEBLEEGEMTE
BT AR ERERQRHET -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. HISEBEE (&)

()  Fair value (continued) n BREGE

(i) (continued) (ii)
Level 2 fair value measurements (continued)

The valuation of the Group’s investment properties
was performed using the market comparable
approach. The key input is the sales price per
square feet for similar properties in similar
locations, which is an observable input. The
valuation also included inputs other than quoted
prices included within level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
Therefore, the Group’s investment properties were
classified within level 2 of fair value hierarchy.

(#&)
BZRAAEE (F)

AREBREMENBETIR
ARl & LB 5 AT ©
i A\ BUR SR E L
MENESFTRIEEERS -
HSRBSEE ARIE - E(E
INEREE— R BIEREIA
SNVEABE  HREEK
BEzERAMEANBRS
ABE - Wit - ARE®E
BMERELERE_RAR
BER -

7. REVENUE 7. WiH
The Group is principally engaged in the provision of property AEERFATFEREREMEERE
management and related services, properties investment and NABARRT - MERERRESE -
money lending business during the year. An analysis of the FARKENEERRES AT

Group’s revenue recognised during the years is as follows:

2021 2020
2021 % 2020 4%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FETT

Provision of property management and related 2 ¥ 3 & 12 K 48 8 R 7%
services 508,986 485,010
Revenue from contracts with customers XEA&HWE 508,986 485,010
Rental income from investment property KEMEHRS A 1,242 1,485
Loan interest income from money lending BE 2 EFFEWA 888 900
Total revenue W48 58 511,116 487,395
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

7.

REVENUE (continued) 7. Uz (48)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers: EPEHRm s -
Provision of property management and related services REMEEEREBERE
2021 2020
20214 2020 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
For the year ended 31 March BZ3A31HLEE FExT FET
Geographical markets hE TS
Hong Kong BB 469,452 437,122
PRC F 39,534 47,888
508,986 485,010
Major services FTER®K
Property management services V) B8 RS 471,398 438,666
Stand-alone security services B IR RS 32,614 32,715
Property management consultancy Y % & 12 B AR %
services 4,974 13,629
508,986 485,010

For the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, all revenue
from provision of property management services, stand-alone
security services and property management consultancy
services are recognised over time.

Property management services fees, stand-alone security
services and property management consultancy services
fees are recognized on a monthly basis when the services
are rendered. The amount for which can be reliably
estimated and it is probable that the income will be received.
The property management services fees and property
management consultancy services fees are due on the end of
each month.

There was no performance obligations that are unsatisfied
pursuant to HKFRS 15.120 during the years ended 31
March 2021 and 31 March 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

INTEREST REVENUE 8. FEWZHF
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FETT
Bank interest income RITH B YA 702 290
Interest income from deposits placed MASREFZANEZTH
for life insurance policies F B A 304 278
1,006 568
OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES, NET 9. HEMKWARREX  BE
2021 2020
2021 F 2020 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Gain on disposal of property, plantand HEWZE - HE LEREHKZE
equipment 100 -
Fair value loss on an investment HEYMENRERIE
property - (2,100)
Fair value gain on investments at BRANEFABIHEED
fair value through profit or loss N ERE - 152
Government subsidies (Note) BT f L (3L 38,279 -
Other expenses paid to incorporate MEFTVREELf N2
owners B (18,351) -
Commission income HaBA - 9
Exchange gain PE 5 U & 150 111
Others Hi 341 728
20,519 (1,100)
Note: The Group recognised government subsidies of approximately st - ARRE BB AR E D AR T
HK$38.3 million from the Employment Support Scheme launched by ZI| 7 7R IR 78 Bh 49 38,300,000 78 7T ©

the HKSAR Government.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(@

Reportable segments

The Group has three (2020: three) reportable
segments. The Group’s reportable segments are
strategic business units that offer different products and
services. They are managed separately because each
business requires different technology and marketing
strategies. The following summary describes the
operations in each of the Group’s reportable segments:

(i)  Provision of property management and related
services;

(i) Properties investment; and
(iii)  Money lending business.

The accounting policies of the operating segments
are the same as those described in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements. Segment profits or
losses do not include dividend income and gains or
losses from investments. Segment assets do not include
investments. Segment non-current assets do not
include deferred tax assets and financial instruments.

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and
transfers as if the sales or transfers were to third parties,
i.e. at current market prices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(@) Reportable segments (continued)

()  Business segments

10. 7 #MEF (&)

(@) TEHD W (A)

() FH¥z

For the year ended 31 March 2021

B

BEE202153A31HLEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

Provision of
property
management Money
and related Properties lending
services investment business Total
REtME
EEL \ )
R MERE BEEHK @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TERx
Reportable segment revenue: 7] 23R 2 Sz ¢
Revenue from external REINREFEM
customers L& 508,986 1,242 888 511,116
Reportable segment profit A 28| G A 49,533 1,106 645 51,284
Depreciation of property, plant  #1% - BifE &
and equipment REE 4,597 8 - 4,605
Depreciation of right-of-use ~ EAEEENE
assets 3,932 - 189 4,121
Amortisation of intangible assets & E# 85 1,705 - - 1,705
Income tax expense FTEMA Y 4,285 158 98 4,541
Interest revenue il Bz 1,006 - - 1,006
Interest expense MERZ 536 - 11 547
Additions to property, NENE  BE R
plant and equipment B 29,427 - - 29,427
At 31 March 2021
R202153A31H
Provision of
property
management Money
and related Properties lending
services investment business Total
RENE
EE& . Al Y
HERH% MERE BEXHK @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERT TAET TER
Reportable segmentassets ~ AJ 2|7 L E 303,890 31,061 19,995 354,946
Reportable segment liabilities ]2 { D HBAE 101,918 344 308 102,570
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 10. D EBER (&)
(@) Reportable segments (continued) (@ TEHDIH(E)
(i)  Business segments (continued) () ¥B5E (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3A31BLEFE
Provision of
property
management Money
and related Properties lending
Services investment business Total
RENE
EER - |
sl e MERE B R @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TET TAL TET

Reportable segment revenue:  AJ 27 24z
Revenue from external REIN %3)5 g
customers Wz 485,010 1,485 900 487,395
Reportable segment A 2RHBEF,
profit/(loss) (B#) 44,041 (813) 669 43,897
Depreciation of property, plant %1% « &= &
and equipment REWE 1,111 4 - 1,115
Depreciation of right-of-use £ REEE
assets nE 2,722 - 79 2,801
Amortisation of intangible assets /4 E# i4 2,119 - - 2,119
Income tax expense MY 8,799 181 85 9,065
Interest revenue F B s 567 - - 567
Interest expense FMERX 902 - 7 909
Additions to property, RENE  BEK
plant and equipment B 13,112 13 - 13,125
At 31 March 2020
R2020E3 A31H
Provision of
property
management Money
and related Properties lending
servicg& investment business Total
e
BE R ] \
1B RS MERE MEFS @it
HK$\'OO_O HK$'000 HK$\OO_O HK$\’O@
TAET TETL FTET TEL
Reportable segment assets AERHLEE 253,826 31,001 19,315 304,142
Reportable segment liabilites T2 ® A HEE 91,543 282 391 92,216
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 10. S EHEH (#F)

(a) Reportable segments (continued) (@ TEHDIH(E)

(i)  Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, (i) FI2¥mD R - m S E

profit or loss, assets and liabilities: B -BEENABENYE:
2021 2020
2021 £ 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
Year ended 31 March BZ3A31BLEE FHET AT
Revenue Wz
Reportable segment revenue and 7] 2 k5 3F U 25 &
consolidated revenue el 511,116 487,395
Profit or loss i A 2R E5 18
Reportable segment profits Al 25 50 51,284 43,897
Unallocated other income Ko B H MU A 38 9
Share of loss of an associate Db — BB L R REE (5,130) (1,320)
Unallocated corporate expenses A&7 i (25,763) (19,212)
Unallocated finance costs Ko BB & A A (34) (109)
Consolidated profit before tax BREL AT 4R &R R 20,395 23,265
2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
At 31 March M3A31H FET FET
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AEROHEE 354,946 304,142
Unallocated cash and cash AoEReNIBRLEE
equivalents 36,191 43,973
Other unallocated corporate assets H R D BB ¥ E E 31,507 45,475
Consolidated total assets mEEERE 422,644 393,590
Liabilities =R
Reportable segment liabilities AERoHamE 102,570 92,216
Unallocated corporate liabilities Ao b¥EaE 1,103 2,552
Consolidated total liabilities meEBaEeEsE 103,673 94,768
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 10. 2 HEHR (&)
(b) Geographical information (b) HEER
Revenue Non-current assets
Wz FRBEE
2021 2020 2021 2020

2021 £ 20204 2021 & 20204
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FETT FExT FA&TT

Hong Kong BB 471,582 439,507 103,600 100,940
The PRC ae 39,534 47,888 61,466 15,358

511,116 487,395 165,066 116,298

(c) Information about major customers € BEHEXEREFHEH

An analysis of the Group’s revenue from major services $%5}5 = %%Hﬁﬁiﬁﬁéﬁ’\]ﬁffﬁ
is set out in note 7 above. No customer accounted for B EXPNEET © Bl E 2021 E%
10 percent or more of the total revenue for the years 2020&3531 E¢¢§ B

ended 31 March 2021 and 2020. Pia# R 10% AL -

11. FINANCE COSTS 11. MEAK

2021 2020
2021 % 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Interest expenses on bank borrowings ~ $R1TEE Fl B 5 X 110 596
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEMNE 471 422
581 1,018

Shi Shi Services Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

12. FRRF

The Group’s profit for the year is arrived at after charging/

AEBEFRRENIENGE, GEAT

(crediting): H|IEE :
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 4%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FETT
Staff costs (including directors’ BIWMA(BREESTM)
remuneration):
— Salaries, wages and allowances —%% - TENMEBRL 398,402 370,832
— Retirement benefits scheme —RIREFFT S
contributions 11,156 9,837
409,558 380,669
Auditors’ remuneration = HAH BN & 750 540
Depreciation of property, plant and Y BEMEETE
equipment 4,677 1,232
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 4,674 4,130
Fair value loss on investment property & &M Q R EEIE - 2,100
Amortisation of intangible assets m A EEE 1,705 2,119
Expenses related to short-term lease REHERE X 107 133
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMEHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 13. EERAUERSHF A L5 M
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments () EERSHREEAEHMH

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HZ202153A31ALEE
Salaries,
allowances Contributions
and other to retirement

Fees henefits scheme Total
AR 311
He REMBRHN  BHRFTEHF @t
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
otZ3 TER TER TER TAT
Executive directors: $7ES
Huang Liming e
(Chairman) (2E) (i) 240 588 - 828
Ho Ying Choi fe] FE Bt - 2,244 18 2,262
Lee Chin Ching, Cyrix FER - 444 18 462
Eric Todd #iRE (i) - 180 9 189
Independent non-executive B JEH17
directors: 5
Tso Siu Lun, Alan E2R (iii) 120 - - 120
Lam Kai Yeung &R 120 - - 120
Lo Chi Ho, Richard BER 120 - - 120
600 3,456 45 4,101

Shi Shi Services Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(@)

(continued)

Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments

13. EER ANV RS H A L 5l

(

(@)

&)

EEREREBEABTM (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020

HEX043A31HILEE
Salaries,
allowances  Contributions
and other  to retirement
Fees benefits scheme Total
He 2
we  REMEF  RKFBIMRK CH
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Hiiz TET TET TET THBT
Executive directors: HITES:
Ho Ying Choi fa] FEEA - 2,208 18 2,226
Lee Chin Ching, Cyrix TER - 720 18 738
Eric Todd ERE (i) - 360 18 378
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Huang Liming (Chairman) BRR(LE) (i) 240 1,176 - 1416
Independent non-executive BT
directors: BE:
Tso Siu Lun, Alan 2 (iii) 120 - - 120
Lam Kai Yeung &R 120 - - 120
Lo Chi Ho, Richard EER 120 - - 120
600 4,464 54 5118
Notes: BiaE

(i Mr. Huang Liming has been re-designated from a non-
executive director to executive director of the Company with

effect from 5 August 2020.

(ii) Mr. Eric Todd has resigned as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 1 October 2020.

(iii)

Mr. Tso Siu Lun, Alan has resigned as an independent non-

executive director of the Company with effect from 1 June

2021.

()

(ii)

(iii)

HPRSLERIERTEEFHT AR
NAMITESE - 820208 A5H

ERBELEREARARNGTE
£ H2020F 10 A 1 HAR AR -

iy e A B BT AR RN IEH
1TEE B2021F6 A1 HMEERK -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 13. EERTEN RS H A L HH
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (continued) (&)
(b) Five highest paid individual emoluments (b) BEuRSH AL HMN
Two (2020: Two) of the five highest paid individuals of AEEN A &Z=HFALTEER
the Group was the director whose emolument is set out % (2020F - M&) B HEF
in the above. For the year ended 31 March 2021, the B EEBE N 3 - Ei = 2021 F 3
remaining three (2020: three) employees’ emoluments A31BLEFE  # T~=4(2020
of the Group were as follows: F:=F)AEEEENFT A
T~
2021 2020
2021 & 2020 FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Basic salaries and allowances HAH 4 MoERL 3,828 3,767
Discretionary bonus BB IE4T 454 329
Retirement benefit scheme RREN IR
contributions 36 36
4,318 4,132
The emoluments fell within the following bands: FMN TR EE -
Number of individuals
A
2021 2020
2021 & 2020 fF
Emolument band: FMEE -
Nil - HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 /& Jt—1,500,000 /& JT 1 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 /& T —2,500,000 /& 7T 1 1
3 3
(c) During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group () FRN AEEBEAEAESS
to any of the directors or the highest paid individuals as R ATZNAEM - 1ERE N
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as AR E N 1& 8 125 ok BEEE
compensation for loss of office. In addition, none of the E - o EEEEN RS
directors waived any emoluments during the reporting AR F B (20204 : £8) -

period (2020: Nil).

Shi Shi Services Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14. FRBHAX

For the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, Hong Kong
Profit Tax is calculated under two-tier profit tax system under
first HK$2 millions of estimated assessable profits is taxed at
a rate of 8.25% and remaining estimated assessable profits
is taxed at 16.5%. The Group should elect one of the Hong
Kong subsidiaries to apply the two-tier profit tax rate.

PRC corporate income tax is calculated at a rate of 25%,
unless otherwise specified, on the estimated assessable
profits arising from the operation of the PRC subsidiaries.

HZE2021F K2020F3 A31 B It
B BENEHBERRFSHEE
HIEFTE - & 200 8B aT ERN R
12 8.25% MY T R HH - Mer NS
JFE SR T 0% A B #2 16.5% HO T R R ©
AEEREREEF—HEEMNBARR
FER MM EFHRBE -

SRRBEBAEIN  PRELEMEHR
BB AR EEMEL TR
AR R IR T R 25% 5T 5

2021 2020
2021 % 2020 4%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax EVEARR I8 — BB NS
— Provision for the year —FANEE 3,104 4,130
— One-off deduction —— RMEHR (70) (60)
3,034 4,070
Current tax — PRC BV HAT 18 —
— Provision for the year —FANEE 782 4,981
Deferred tax (note 25) BEEFRIE (H7225) 725 14
4,541 9,065
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 14. RSB (&)
The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the FIr 15750 B 2 B BR A A s A1 SR A BB
product of profit before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong SRR EMEROT ¢

Profits Tax rate is as follows:

2021 2020
20214 2020 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit before tax B A% A A 20,395 23,265
Tax calculated at Hong Kong Profittax 1 &EFSH K 8.25% 1 E K
rate of 8.25% (2020: 8.25%) 18 (2020 F : 8.25%) 165 165
Tax calculated at Hong Kong Profit tax 12 & B RS K 16.5% st EHY
rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) I8 (20204 : 16.5%) 3,035 3,509
Over-provision in prior years BT FEHBERE - -
Effect of different tax calculation basis %t/ Bl A N E 5T B AR A
for the PRC & (330) 1,666
Tax effect of income that is not taxable HZBREF WA NFEIE 2
(Note a) (Kiita) (7,561) (1,044)
Tax effect of expenses that are not AR Z R E T 2
deductible (Note b) (Htztp) 9,302 4,829

One-off deduction — IR MEHR (70) (60)

Income tax expense FriSfi A 2 4,541 9,065

Notes: Hyat

(@)  Income that is non-taxable mainly include non-taxable government (a) BEARBUWAEXEBIEDERTBUTHE
subsidiaries (net of other expenses paid to incorporate owners), B (B mEETTREBEI N ZE 4R
interest income and compensation income. %)~ FBWARBERA -

(b)  Expenses that are not tax deductible mainly include directors’ (b) AAHRAXFEBEARARRFR
salaries, rent, impairment loss on investment in an associate, legal WEEEERRRBAZHBARZES
and profession fees for the Company and subsidiaries with no Fe e R-EBMEQARENR
assessable income was generated during the year. BEE EZEREXER -
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15.

16.

17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$15,856,000 (2020: approximately HK$14,174,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
1,026,351,515 (2020: 1,026,351,515) in issue during the
year.

Diluted earnings per share

No diluted earnings per share are presented as the Company
did not have any dilutive potential ordinary share outstanding
during the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31
March 2021, nor has any dividend been proposed since the
end of the reporting period and up to the date of this rerpot.
(2020: Nil).

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. The Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme
are calculated at 5% of the salaries and wages subject to a
monthly maximum amount of contribution of HK$1,500 per
employee and vest fully with employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

15.

16.

17.

ZFREF
SRESBF

KRR BEAEBLHBREXREF
TR AN RNR R ABIEF ARG
#4715,856,000 7& (20204 : 4
14,174,000 70) R FAE #1TE @
P ANHE S #5981 1,026,351,515 % (2020
£ :1,026,351,5150%) 51 & -

BREFRF

A ZE2021F B2020E3 8310 1E4E
B BRAR AW ETBEITEINE
AESTRR RMITEZEFRES
2R o

Iz 2

HZE2021F3 A3l HILFEHES R
SERBIRMNEMKRE - BEREHHELE
RARKREZEAFRE BTN ERRK
AR BR R (20204 - 4#) -

R ARE R 5T

REBERBEEBEHERTESFTEIK
BIAEMERENEERREERIMH
MAEETE ([BE2ETE]) - A%
EH e BES T EMERNREST & &
TIE5% 8 (BUEIBASZSMHK
©RA1,500%87T) BRI T
B AR 2R ERMA -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

18. ¥15% - MERRE

Leasehold
landand  Leasehold  Furniture Office Motor ~ Plantand  Construction
buildings improvement  and fixture  equipment vehicle ~ machinery in progress Total
AEr# HENE AR BWAE BER
REF #E £E B ] RE HBE HERIR Ait
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
i T T i T i i i
cosT A
At 1 April 2019 R2019F4A18 9513 4158 1,884 3897 3,09 122 - 22,672
Reclassified toright-ofuse  ENVEZHFRREEE
assets - - - - (745) - - (745)
Additions HE - - 24 477 6 6 12612 13125
Disposal iHE - - (17 - - - - (1
Exchange realignment 5 % - - (11) (37) 3) (12) (283) (346)
M3IMach2020and  RONE3FILAR
1 April 2020 N0E4R1E 9513 4,158 1,880 4331 2,356 116 12,329 34,689
Additions hE - 18,323 3,318 2,647 - 19 5,208 29,515
Disposal e - - - - (590) - - (590)
Exchange realignment R - - 14 67 4 16 1,213 1,314
31 March 2021 RA1E3F 318 9513 2481 522 100 170 51 18750 64928
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 23t EREE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2019 R2019F4A18 614 38% 1114 3387 2415 - - 11,424
Reclassified fo right-ofuse ~ EFHBZERREE
assets - - - - (84) - - (84)
Provided during the year ~ FRE 307 177 150 551 17 30 - 1232
Disposal e - - (17) - - - - (17)
Exchange realignment 5 A% - - 8) (34) (2) (5) - (49)
At3IMarch2020and  R200%3A318 K
1 Aprl 2020 20054718 Q401 1289 34 2346 % - 1250
Provided during the year ~ EME&E 307 3,663 164 500 10 33 - 4611
Disposal HE - - - - (590) - - (590)
Exchange realignment B - - I 62 4 9 - 86
At 31 March 2021 R2021%£3831A 128 1% 1414 446 1700 ] - 16679
CARRYING AMOUNT BEfE
At 31 March 2021 R2A21E3A31A 8,285 14,741 3,798 2,585 - 84 18,750 48,249
At 31 March 2020 202043 A318 8,592 87 641 433 10 91 12329 22,183

At 31 March 2021, the leasehold land and buildings with
net carrying amount of approximately HK$8,285,000 (2020:
approximately HK$8,592,000) was pledged to secure bank
facilities granted to the Group.

Shi Shi Services Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 19. REWE
2021 2020
2021 & 2020 fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHETT
At 1 April R4A1H 30,300 32,400
Fair value loss on investment property & & M EH QA EEIE - (2,100)
At 31 March M3 A31H 30,300 30,300
Investment property was revalued at 31 March 2021 and REMFRBE T ZXEAERMMPEHT
2020 on the open market value basis by reference to ENERBAERARZEZEHUY
market evidence of recent transactions for similar properties ¥H IR IMSEBRZARAMER
by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory 2021 F M 2020F 3 A31 HE, ©
Limited, an independent professional valuer.

At 31 March 2021, the investment property with net carrying R2021F3 A31H " RE FE

amount of HK$30,300,000 (2020: HK$30,300,000) was /30,300,000 T (20204
pledged to secure bank facilities granted to the Group. 30,300,000/% 7t) M E W % B 1EK

o ARER T ASENRITRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

20. B EE

Customer Computer
contracts softwares Total
BEFEHN B Y =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT F&TT
COST KA
At 1 April 2020 R2020F4 A 1H 2,148 6,568 8,716
Additions NE - 367 367
Exchange realignment ME 5 8 & - (8) (8)
At 31 March 2020 and R2020F3 A31H &

1 April 2020 20204 A 1H 2,148 6,927 9,075
Disposal mE - (91) (91)
Exchange realignment ME 5 B 16 21 37
At 31 March 2021 R2021F3 A31H 2,164 6,857 9,021
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION 25t
At 1 April 2020 R2020F4 A 1H 1,130 3,684 4814
Amortisation for the year F N5 458 1,661 2,119
Exchange realignment ME 3, 8 B - (1) (1)
At 31 March 2020 and MR2020F3 A31H &

1 April 2020 20204 A 1H 1,588 5,344 6,932
Amortisation for the year F R 446 1,259 1,705
Exchange realignment ME W 3E & 1 1 22
At 31 March 2021 R20214F3 A31H 2,045 6,614 8,659
CARRYING AMOUNT: BREE :

At 31 March 2021 R20214F3 A31H 119 243 362
At 31 March 2020 R2020F3 A31H 560 1,583 2,143

Customer contracts of approximately HK$2,054,000 an
HK$94,000 were acquired through the acquisition of
Yorkshire Property Management Company Limited (“YSL")
on 30 June 2016 and Shi Shi Property (Cayman) Limited
(“Shi Shi Property Cayman”) on 29 March 2019 respectively.

Shi Shi Services Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The customer contracts are the property management
business’s critical value driver. They represent the values
of rights that arise from contractual arrangement. The
remaining amortisation period of the customer contracts is
0.22 years.

The computer software mainly included an internal
management system acquired during the year ended 31
March 2017 which functions address book management
for office usage, office communication and office bulletin for
property management business, and accounting software.
The remaining amortisation period of the computer softwares
are 2.25 years.

Impairment test of intangible assets
Customer contract

Goodwill of HK$785,000 and intangible assets (customer
contracts) of approximately HK$2,054,000 was acquired
through the business combination of Yorkshire Property
Management Limited (“YSL”) on 30 June 2016. Goodwill
of approximately HK$2,447,000 and intangible assets of
approximately HK$94,000 was acquired through acquisition
of Shi Shi Property (Cayman) Limited (“Shi Shi Property
Cayman”) on 29 March 2019. These goodwill and intangible
assets were belongs to the cash generating unit (“CGU")
of provision of property management services. Goodwill is
tested annually for impairment. The recoverable amounts of
the CGU are determined on the basis of their value in use
using discounted cash flow method.

The Group’s impairment test on goodwill with reference
to the recoverable amounts of the CGU also covered the
impairment test for intangible assets belongs to the same
CGU. For details of the impairment test are disclosed in note
23 to the consolidated financial statements.

For computer software

The Group’s computer software mainly used for property
management business. The Group’s property management
business recorded profits throughout the year. There is no
indication of impairment.

0. B EE (&)

BEPEARMEEERBNEIREE
Bh AN LBIEENENER-
BEFAHOMNBREHENR0.22%F -

BT EEEREREZE2017F3 A
BIALFEBENRNILERRS A
ERAERRMBNEEER WEE
BEBHRAZTEALBRIE DM -
AR @t RIBEF - BB AOFIsh
BiEA2254F o

BIPEEZRERH
EF&EK

27850008 TR EFEE (BP
B #) #12,054,0008 T T iE B4
EMEEBREEBER A (YSL]) R
2016 F6 A30 A 2 ¥ KA HMmEA °
BE%)2,447 0008 TR EFEELD
94,0007 7T T35 @ 20194 3 A 29
AUWERRYE (FH=S) AR AR ([
BYERS)MBA ZERERE
FEEBNERMEERRE 2H
EXEN((ReELEMN]) - BFY
eHFHEETREIA -REeELE
iz AT B & 58 iz F AR IR &R
EFTEEFTHEBRZEEET -

AEERSERGES BN 2 /KA
TREZBERENATESBNA
RMReELSEN c BEEEZRE
A - BEBENS ZFBEREE M
MR T 23K EE -

- L
AEENERTTEZRANYEERE

X ARENMEEERBNEA
BEHAN o WERFERETR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

21. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 21. FREEE
2021 2020
2021 & 20204
Disclosures of lease-related items: HEHEBREENEE HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Right-of-use assets FTRAEEE
— Land and buildings — T RIETF 12,401 5,962
— Motor vehicles —RE 862 437
— Office equipment — PR RAE 59 88
13,322 6,487
The maturity analysis, based on BEABERERE  AEEHE
undiscounted cash flows, of the Group’s BE&EZZEHE ST :
lease liabilities is as follows:
— Less than 1 year —LR1F 4,743 4,432
— Between 1 and 2 years —1ZE2F 7 2,848 2,300
— Between 2 and 5 years —2ZE5E M 7,010 32
14,601 6,764
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets f# FREEETER X
— Land and buildings —THEEF 4,349 3,877
— Motor vehicles —AE 296 224
— Office equipment YN 29 29
4,674 4,130
Lease interests MEFE 471 422
Expenses related to short-term leases B AAERENAX 107 133
Total cash outflow for leases BEERESING 5,225 4,560
Additions to right-of-use assets RNREFHREE 12,524 644

The Group leases various land and buildings, motor vehicles
and office equipment. Lease agreements are typically made
for fixed periods of 1 to 5 years. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants and the leased assets may not be used as

security for borrowing purposes.

Shi Shi Services Limited
B B AR 35 PR 2 7

AEBEHEETLHMREF  AER
MRS - HEHZE —RAETHR
(125%) - HEBKKIRIB L EERER
KB EZRARGHR RGNS - HER
I EEIMERREREEEES —
ERLEFRAERAS



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

22. SUBSIDIARIES 22. B AT
Particulars of the Company’s major subsidiaries are set out AAREENBRA]ZFIFTEYNAT :
below:
Percentage of

ownership interest
Place of incorporation/ Issued and paid-up  attributable to

Name registration/operation  capital the Company Principal activities
EmEYL/ BRTR RAREEREA
£ B/ EENE  BRRE BRENEL TEXH
Kong Shum Union Property Management  British Virgin Islands ~ US$11 100% indirect Investment holding
Group Limited (“KSG")
BABENEFEREBERAA(KSG)) XERTES N 100% % RERR
Kong Shum Union Property Management ~ Hong Kong HK$22,000,000 100% indirect Provision of property management
Company Limited (“KSU") services
BRBANEERERAR((BREE]) BB 220000007 100% % RENEERRE
K-King Cleaning Services Limited (“K-King") Hong Kong HK$100 100% indirect Provision of cleaning services
EYBRRBEERAR (THD]) BB 100%7T 100% fEi# REFZRE
Q&V Security Company Limited (“Q&V")  Hong Kong HK$2,100,000 100% indirect Provision of security services
ERTHEERAN(ER]) BB 2,100,000/ ¢ 100% f % RART R/
Yorkshire Property Management Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% indirect Provision of property management
("YSL") Services
WRENZEERBERARYSL)  FA 1,000,000 %7 100% RENZERRE
More Rise Investment Limited (“MRIL") Hong Kong HK$2 100% indirect Properties investment
RAREBRADA (TMRIL]) &k 28T 100% NERE
Fortune Trend Investment Limited (“FTIL") ~ Hong Kong HK$2 100% indirect Properties investment
RAREBRRA(FTILY) &k 2B 100% i NERE
Lucky Stone Investments Limited (“LSI") ~ British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% direct Investment holding
EBRUES IE 100% % REER
Lucky Stone Property Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$100 100% indirect Provision of property agency services
&k 10077 100% i RUNERERS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

22. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

22. B AR (&)

Percentage of
ownership interest
Place of incorporation/ Issued and paid-up  attributable to
Name registration/operation  capital the Company Principal activities
HMERL/ BRITR RAREEREA
£ B/ EEHE  ARRE BENEDL TEEHR
Lucky Stone Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100% indirect Money lending business
Lucky Stone Finance Limited Bk 10057 100% % HEES
One Direction Property Management Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% indirect Dormant
Company Limited
RENEEREARRA e 10,0007% 7 100% &% BEeZ
MEREENEREERAR PRC HK$30,000,0000  100% indirect Provision of property management and
(“EER AR consultancy services
i 30,000,000 100% % RENZEERABARY
Kong Shum Union Property Management  British Virgin Islands ~ US$50,000 100% direct Investment holding
(BVI) Limited
BABENEER (RBERAREE) ABERIES 50000% 7T 100% B % RERK
=N
Happy Living Networks Technology Limited  British Virgin Islands ~ US$50,000 100% direct Investment holding
WERRERMARA A EBRAHS 50,0007t 100% B % REZR
Happy Living Network Technology (Hong ~ Hong Kong HK$1.00 100% indirect Investment holding
Kong) Limited
WARBRERN (FR) BRAA e L00% T 100% I RERRK
BRRERIERAR® PRC RMB50,000,0002  100% indirect Provision of property management
Services
i AR 50,000,000 72 100% i # RUMEEERS
TrEERRERBERARFC PRC RMB50,000,0008  100% indirect Provision of property management
services
i AR 50,000,0007C° 100% RENFERRE
EaRBRREEERAAC PRC RMB5,000,0002 100% indirect Provision of property management
services
i ARH5,000,0007C° 100% &% RENEERRE
FIRERNEREERARS PRC RMB30,000,000°  100% indirect Provision of property management
Services
i AR ®30,000,0007C° 100% i # RUMEEERS

Shi Shi Services Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 H1FF/E

22. B AR (&)

Percentage of
ownership interest
Place of incorporation/ Issued and paid-up  attributable to
Name registration/operation  capital the Company Principal activities
AL/ BRTR RAREEREA
£ B/ EEHE  ARRE BENEDL TEXH
Shi Shi Property (Cayman) Limited Cayman US$50,000 100% direct Investment holding
BENE(FS)BRAT FE 50,000% T 100% B % REZR
Shi Shi Future Property Service Limited British Virgin US$50,000 100% indirect Investment holding
BEARNEREERLRA AERUBS 50,000% 7T 100% RERR
Shi Shi Property Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% indirect Investment holding
BENZERAA 6 10,0007 7T 100% % REEKR
BEENERBBRARS PRC RMB1,000,000 100% indirect Provision of property management
services
PE AR¥1,000,0007T  100% B RENZERRE
WREEMERBEBRAR PRC RMB6,000,000 100% indirect Provision of property management
Services
i AE®6,00000070  100% M RENEERRE
BENERE(BE)BRARS PRC RMBS5,000,000 100% indirect Provision of property management
Services
t AR®5,000,0007C  100%fE# RUMEEERE
Notes: Btat -
(1)  The registered capital of J 18 1% & & is HK$30,000,000, of which (1) SR AE 2 52t 8 2K 430,000,000 7%

()

(5)

(6)

approximately HK$3,259,000 has been paid up as at 31 March 2021
and 2020.

The registered capital of BB A94% 31174 PR 2 7] is RMB50,000,000,
of which RMB26,000,000 has been paid up as at 31 March 2021
and 2020.

The registered capital of bt R REIE BIR A A, 18 5 R
REBAERAT and L REFRYZ AR AR A 7 has not been paid
up as at 31 March 2021.

The registered capital of Y E R (l84) AR A F is
RMB5,000,000, of which RMB500,000 has been paid up as at 31
March 2021.

The subsidiaries are wholly foreign-owned enterprises incorporated in
the PRC.

The subsidiaries are sino-foreign equity joint ventures incorporated in
the PRC.

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

7T+ H H 493,259,000 7 7T 1A 2021 F &
20203 A31ABEHIR »

BEAGRMTERARZEMER
A A R#50,000,0007T © H R AR
26,000,000 7T 7 2021 £ 2 2020 F 3 A
BIHE#HR -

EREEREEEERAR  EARRK
BEERER QR RILRERYERS
BIRAFZEMEARR2021F3 A31H
frl AT

BEERE (BR) ARAB ZEME
R AERES,000,0007T - i AR
500,000 7T 2021 F3 A31HEHRE °

ZH B AR AN BRI B
B

ZHBARANHBEEMRINFIEG
Bk
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME
For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E
23. GOODWILL 23. B8
2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FETT
COST A
At 1 April and 31 March R4A1HK
3H31H 3,232 3,232
CARRYING AMOUNTS AREE
At 1 April and 31 March R4A1H K
3H31H 3,232 3,232

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated,
at acquisition, to the cash-generating unit (“CGU”) that are
expected to benefit from that business combination. The
carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated as follows:

ENAHTEREReRNRBRIRES
BB ERNZEBRAHNRSES
B ((REELEM]) - BENER
BENRET :

2021 2020
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Provision of property management REMEETERS
services
YSL YSL 785 785
Shi Shi Property (Cayman) Limited RREYE(F2)BRAA 2,447 2,447
3,232 3,232
Impairment testing of goodwill EmERENR
Provision of property management services EERYFEEERE

Goodwill of HK$785,000 and intangible assets (customer
contracts) of approximately HK$2,054,000 was acquired
through the business combination of Yorkshire Property
Management Limited (“YSL”) on 30 June 2016. Goodwill
of approximately HK$2,447,000 and intangible assets of
approximately HK$94,000 was acquired through acquisition
of Shi Shi Property (Cayman) Limited (“Shi Shi Property
Cayman”) on 29 March 2019. These goodwill and intangible
assets were belongs to the cash generating unit (“CGU")
of provision of property management services. Goodwill is
tested annually for impairment. The recoverable amounts of
the CGU are determined on the basis of their value in use
using discounted cash flow method.

Shi Shi Services Limited
B B AR 35 PR 2 7

EE785,0008 TN EFEE (BF
A %)) 492,054,000/ 7T Jh B B4
EMEEERBAER LA (TYSL) A
2016F 6 A30 R 2 ¥KAHMEEA °
R 4)2,447,0008 T M EREE 4
94,0007 T 53 @ #2019 4 3 A 29
AR R % (=) AR AR ([
BYERES])MBA ZEBHERE
FEEBNIEHYEEERB 2R
EAXEMN([REELENMN]) - HME
FHeYWEBETRENR - BEE
A BNz ATUR Bl & BB TH IR AR EAIR IR
CREFTEEFRAEECEEETE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

23. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)
Provision of property management services (continued)

The recoverable amounts of the CGU are determined on
the basis of their value in use using discounted cash flow
method. The key assumptions for the discounted cash flow
method are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates
and budgeted gross margin and revenue during the period.
The Group estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that
reflect current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the CGU. The growth rates
are based on long-term average economic growth rate of
the geographical area in which the businesses of the CGU
operate. Budgeted gross margin and revenue are based on
past practices and expectations on market development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the
most recent financial budgets approved by the directors for
the next five years. The recoverable amount of the relevant
assets has been determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections based on the financial
budgets approved by the management covering a 5 year
period. Key assumptions used by the management in the
value in use calculations of the cash-generating unit include
budgeted gross profit margin. The pre-tax discount rate used
for estimating the value in use for YSL is 17.95% (2020:
15.11%), and 21.77% (2020: 24.56%) for Shi Shi Property
Cayman Limited.

The assumptions have been determined based on past
performance and management ' s expectations in respect of
the property management market in the Hong Kong and the
PRC.

The key parameters are revenue, gross profit margin,
administrative and operating expenses, and discount rate.

To ascertain the impact on the recoverable amount of the
CGUs upon deviation from its estimate, a sensitivity analysis
has been performed by taking into account the factor of
fluctuation in the gross profit margin and operating and
administrative expenses, which the directors assume would
be the most important factors to affect the recoverable
amounts of the CGUs.

23. @& (&)

AR ERH ()
ERYFEERE ()

ReELBMm e eI RME
RASRELAELFEREEET - &
RESREENEBHEREHARER
RBRER -BEENEREAGH -
REBE R R BB AT IS H 5 R
FEENFEHRRSELEEMTER
RV AL RIABETREIR R - IER XK
DR EEBUKERBELE
MRBFOLBEERRSGEE - BE
ENERRIWATIABEES KT 5
BRNFAHAEE -

AEEREMNIALSRETRN NIE&ET
HESEMENRARAFYHBE T
o BAEEMNAKROSECIRER
Bt e AFHYEKBEERENIR S
MEEANEREAAELEEE
F-EREEBREASELENFERER
HEAEERREEBEETHE -
YSLEEEYE (FAE) BRAFAE
HEtEREENHRATMR XD R A
17.95% (20204 : 15.11%) }:21.77%
(20204 : 24.56%) -

EHRBRRERBEBERBALEERY
REBRTEMEEETSNHEM

B -

TES2HRWE  ENEX - THREE
BRI SA R BRR R o

AEERBEEGEYRSELENA
BESENTE BEBFREMNE
AR EERITHAX N E R REL
BRESN  ERESBRRZAEH
SRTVERTELBEMMAI WO S5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

23.

24,

GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)
Provision of property management services (continued)

For YSL, the impact of adverse changes in the above factors
(i.,e. 10% decrease in profit margin and 10% increase in
operating and administrative expenses) on the recoverable
amounts of Yorkshire would be decrease by approximately
HK$3,929,000 and HK$1,181,000 and as at 31 March
2021 and 31 March 2020, respectively. In the base case
scenario, the recoverable amount would exceed the carrying
amount of the CGU by approximately HK$3,419,000 and
HK$2,343,000 as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020,
respectively.

For Shi Shi Property Cayman, the impact of adverse changes
in the above factors (i.e. 10% decrease in profit margin and
10% increase in operating and administrative expenses) on
the recoverable amounts of Shi Shi Property Cayman would
be decrease of the recoverable amount by approximately
HK$5,440,000 and HK$3,893,000 as at 31 March
2021 and 31 March 2020, respectively. In the base case
scenario, the recoverable amount would exceed the carrying
amount of the CGU by approximately HK$13,399,000 and
HK$3,368,000 as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020,
respectively.

The sensitivity analysis would not cause the carrying amount
of the CGU to exceed its recoverable amount.

The management is not currently aware of any other probable
changes that would necessitate changes in its key estimates.

DEPOSITS PLACED FOR LIFE INSURANCE
POLICIES

23. @& (&)

BERENR (&)
BRYFEEZRY (&)

BYSLME + Lt A=A FIE &) (B
EFR A 10% A R &8 & M 1T BB 2
HEHIN10%) 4w EMaT kL &R
FEE L2021 F3 A31 B & 2020 F
3 A31H % RIRE 443,929,000/ 7T
1,181,000 7T R HE HE KK HI1F
% 202153 A31H K2020F3
A318 A& BEEsRBBRE
EAEMNIEMEEY3,419,000/8 T &
2,343,000 7T ©

MERYEREMs LA EH
AR EE) (BIEFR D 10% A K &2
N AT E B S 1% 00 10% ) S B B v 2 5
EMMKEENTE AT KD
2021 F3 H31 H K 202043
H31H % Rl 495,440,000 7% 7T &
3,893,000/ 7 ° iRIEENRFIFIE -
M2021%3 A31 B &%202043 A 31
Brakoe«zEEopBBEEeE
A B8 {7 BR [ 1B 49 13,399,000 7T &
3,368,000 7T, ©

BREIM KNS &K RS EEEN
F) AR T (B R A8 L AT I (] R

B I B I B 3 1 A AE ] L 4t 7
oS H N ARBE = Bkt -

24. RASRBREFANES

2021 2020

2021 % 2020 FF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHExT FHTT

Deposits placed for life insurance policies FtASZRBREFANIZ S 8,962 8,758

The Group can terminate the policies at any time and receive
cash refund based on the cash value of the policies at the
date of withdrawal, which is determined by the upfront
payment plus accumulated interest earned and minus the
expense charged at inception, the accumulated insurance
charge and policy expense charge. A surrender charge would
also be required if the withdrawal is made before the 15th
policy year.

Shi Shi Services Limited
B B AR 35 PR 2 7

ZRER B A PME ] B R AR LE R R BB AR
BERREAZREZRSEEWRER
SR UL TIARIB IR SR P ERER 2
RENE R RER AN Z
AXEM  RERELFREBRFHX
MEEE ° MR F 15 EREFE 2 AR
R BITMEEERRTEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

25.

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets

recognised by the Group.

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

ELEBEEE AE

AT RAEEEANEZRIERAR
BEREE-

Fair value
Accelerated tax  Decelerated tax Provisions adjustment arising
depreciation depreciation (note) ~ from business Total
MEHE HEHRE R EREL
ik wE (Wi#) WARERR G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THIT T THT
At 1 April 2019 R2019F4A1H (98) 9 2,848 (176) 2,673
(Charge)/credit to profit or loss AER (BEZENK)/
for the year FTABR
— Origination and reversal of - & Z B AR 2
temporary differences B (3) 31 (110) 68 (14)
At31 March 2020 and 1 April 78202053 A318 &
2020 202054418 (101) 130 2,738 (108) 2,659
(Charge)lcredit to profit or loss AR (BEHNK) /
for the year STABR
- Origination and reversal of - E R ZHE KRR
temporary differences B (655) - (138) 68 (725)
At 31 March 2021 M2021%3A318 (756) 130 2,600 (40) 1,934

Note: Provisions represent the temporary differences of provision for
certain expenses (including provisions for long service payments,
unrealised annual leaves and bonuses) made in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group which would only be allowed for tax

deduction when these expenses were actually paid.

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances
(after offset) for consolidated statement of financial position

et BEEAEREAEVBRROE THX
BE(BERIRSS RERFHREMHB
RICAL ) WERZRE - HERERX
NS RAEDNR -

SLER A B S AR T 5 MR IE R TR 48
B (R 2T

purposes:
2021 2020
2021 & 2020 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FETT
Deferred tax liabilities R IBEE (40) (108)
Deferred tax assets RIETI IR E E 1,974 2,767
1,934 2,659
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

26. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 26. R—EBEQATNKRE
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Unlisted investment in Hong Kong REBZIELTRE

Share of net assets DIhEEFE 12,649 17,779
Goodwill EES 22,649 22,649
35,298 40,428
Less: Impairment loss B REEE (16,500) -
18,798 40,428
Below is the information of the associate. The associate is AN BEE AR 2 ER - 3% & QA

accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using AR ER R B T IFmER AR ©

the equity method.

Principal place of

business/country of % of ownership interests/
Name incorporation Principal activities voting rights held by the Company
TEEENY TARFERZ
=L BRI ACER TEEK BER/RAE%
2021 2020
2021 £ 20204
Dakin Holding Inc. Hong Kong/BVI Provision of financial services in 30%/30% 30%/30%
Hong Kong
Dakin Holding Inc. &% " EEBEXEHSE RNEERES RS
2021 2020
2021 £ 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHET
At 31 March: R3A31H:
Non-current assets FERBEE 35,184 25,900
Current assets MENEE 33,162 56,698
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (8,057) (3,047)
Current liabilities VEIR=RE (18,125) (20,289)
Net assets BEFE 42,164 59,262

Shi Shi Services Limited
B B AR 35 PR 2 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

26. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)  26.

R—EBREQATANERE (&)

2021 2020

2021 % 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FETT

Group’s share of net assets REBSEEEFE 12,649 17,779

Goodwill EES 22,649 22,649

Less: Impairment loss B ORBEEE (16,500) -
Group’s share of carrying amount of REBHGERREE

interests 18,798 40,428

Year ended 31 March: BZ3A3NHLEEE:

Revenue g 20,489 34,347

Loss for the year FREE (17,100) (4,400)

Total comprehensive loss S HE B85 (17,100) (4,400)

Dividend received from associate KB E QTR E WAL E - -

Impairment review on investment in an associate

The management of Dakin Holdings Inc. has prepared a five
years profit forecast of Dakin Holdings Inc. The Directors of
the Company have engaged Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate
Appraisal and Advisory Limited, a professional valuer, to
prepare a business valuation on the value of Dakin Holdings
Inc., based on the five years profit forecast provided by
the management of Dakin Holdings Inc. Based on the
result of the valuation, an impairment loss of approximately
HK$16,500,000 was recorded for the year ended 31 March
2021 (2020: no impairment on the Group’s investment in an
associate has been recognized).

R—BEE2ATANRENRESRZ

Dakin Holdings Inc. &) & 12 8 & 47 &
Dakin Holdings Inc. &) T 4F 4 F F8 8] -
RAAREECEFEEEMERMP S
171 EFHE KRB R A AR Dakin
Holdings Inc. B IR ER MM 1 F )k M7
SBI%f Dakin Holdings Inc. EU{B{E#1T %
HEE - RIBGEEMNGER - HZE2021
F3A31BLFEEHEREBEY
16,500,000 7© (2020 4F : I £ 5f /&K
EERBE QAR NRERRRE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

27. PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER

27. ENFIE - EEZ REMEBUYR

RECEIVABLES b |
2021 2020
2021 & 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Trade receivables (Note a) B S IE (Kita) 83,414 89,562
Loan receivable (Note b) JEW S K (B 7Eb) 18,000 18,012

Prepayments, deposits and other FERFIE - BEREM

receivables (Note c) JE W R IE (it c) 87,996 26,667
189,410 134,241
Less: Prepayments-non-current (Note ¢) &, : 3E R BV B 5B (Mt c) (39,867) -
Amounts shown as current assets PIVER B E E B 149,543 134,241

Note a: The Group does not grant credit terms to its customers (2020:

Hiita -

Nil).The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by the senior
management and directors.

The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice date,
and net of allowance, is as follows:

AEEWEAEEFPETEEH (2020
FE)  AREBANEHERBENE
AEENEKKIE SRERENES
EHIm B A o

50D A I B e 55 PR
ENER AW :

2021 2020

2021 % 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000

T TR

1 to 30 days 1%30H 36,917 37,430
31 to 60 days 31&60H 19,378 24,049
61 to 90 days 61%290H 9,545 9,107
Over 90 days #3890 H 17,574 18,976
83,414 89,562

As of 31 March 2021, trade receivables of approximately
HK$83,414,000 (2020: HK$89,562,000) were past due but not
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers for
whom there is no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of customers that have good settlement records with the Group.
Based on past experience, the Directors are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

Shi Shi Services Limited
B B AR 35 PR 2 7

HE2021F3H31H EBEH5EK
FXTE #783,414,0007% jT (2020 4F :
89,562,000 7T) B 8 BB I KRR (E e
H B8R W MR R s B 2 P
B -

BB HNE R E B RIR Ty % 42 B
SEARFNFRRENTP R < RIg
BELR BEERRANEELRLE
EXEE  AAWAERDERERT 2H
WeEl - BB R 5% S A ER AT TR BB B
1 e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. PREPAYMENTS. TRADE AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (continued)

Note a: (continued)

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 H1FF/E

27. ENFIE - EEZ REMBUYR
75 (%)

Wiita : (%)

The Group applies the simplified approach under HKFRS 9 to
provide for expected credit losses using the lifetime expected loss
provision for all trade receivables. To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics and the days past due. The expected credit
losses also incorporate forward looking information.

AEBERRBFEEVHRESLENFEIRZ
BHERAE E B REIARA 2
BEHERREHREREREER - B
ERBEEER BHREFIEDRE
A= EERREARAMAEOE -7’
HEEEBRTESABLEER -

Pass due within Over 30 days Over 60 days Over 90 days
30 days past due past due past due Total
BH0EAAN AHBBIX AHBBOX AHBBIK &%
At 31 March 2021 MW2021E3831AR
Expected loss rate BHERL X 0% 0% 0% 0%
Receivables amount (HK$'000) FEWRIE (T ) 36917 19,378 9,545 17,574 83,414
Loss allowance (HK$'000) BERE(TEL) - - - - -
At 31 March 2020 #202053 831 H
Expected loss rate BHERLE 0% 0% 0% 0%
Receivables amount (HK$'000) FEURIE (T4 7T) 37,430 24,049 9,107 18976 89,562
Loss allowance (HK$'000) BEEE(TAT) - - - - -

Included in trade receivables were amounts of approximately
HK$947,000 and HK$460,000 due from related parties as at 31
March 2021 and 31 March 2020 respectively.

Trade receivables aged over 90 days as at 31 March 2021 and
2020 was mainly attributable the trade receivables from the PRC
property management business, which the Group acquired on 29
March 2019. These trade receivables were mainly due from sole
owners of properties which the had no history of default.

In respect of the nature of the customers of the Group, the
customers of the Group in property and management related
services are mainly owners ‘corporation, owners’ committee and
sole owners of properties concerned. The Directors are of the
view that it is unlikely that payment of accounts receivable will be
defaulted for property management and related services rendered.
In addition, the Group can always take necessary legal actions
to recover any amount not settled by any of these customers. In
respect of customers on the money lending business, sufficient
security collateral are obtained to ensure full recovery of loan
amount in event of default payments. In respect of rental services,
normally two months rental deposits were received and therefore
the risk of default payment is low. During the year, the Group has no
history of any default payment or bad debts in respect of it business
income. With reference to the above justifications, therefore the
Group considered the expected loss rate is nil for the years ended
31 March 2021 and 2020.

BZREERIBERE D RIN2021F3 A
318 K% 2020F3 A31 HE B 5 2
FRIEAI 947,000 7T K 460,000 8 7T °

#2021 5 K 202043 A31 B » fRiRiE
BOOHAME S BUFATEBRARA
SER2019F3A 9B KE 2 TEY
XEREBZEHRBTEME - %5
BIRRFIAT 2 REIZE Y ET &
EBHESL 2 WE— B AZ A -

RARENEFEEME  AEENY
ENEERERSNEFPERREEY
FEEE XX ZE e RBHMENE—
BEA -BEERR RUMETERA
B AR5 2 JE W AR SR B <) R A K AT BE A
R o MO AEERE - ERBRBEN
ERTHREZETMNEPAEED
TASHE -UREXBNELME - &
MBS O RE T oA ERR
RN KB EHROERESE - S
BRigm = - HFI—ARMERME A WES
BwE - Bt RNROREBRIE - RF
W BRIGWAMN T - AEE LB
RN RSERNESE - 2 Ltk
BRmE  ALEERERRNEE 2021
FR2020F3 A31 HIEFERN 2 FEH
BIRLLERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & 2202193531 H 1 F/Z

27. PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Note b: The money lenders license was granted on 15 June 2017 and
renewed annually. The Group’s latest money lenders license is valid
until 15 June 2021. The Group is in the process of renewing the
money lender license. Loans were granted to independent third

parties.

The aging analysis of loan receivable, based on grant date are due

within 90 days.

The loan receivable of HK$18,000,000 and HK$18,012,000 as
at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 bears interest at 5% per
annum is secured by a second mortgage on a private residential
property in Hong Kong as at 31 March 2021 and 2020. The
maturity date of the loan receivable of HK$18,000,000 was 26
March 2021, and was subsequently renewed on 29 June 2021
at an interest rate of 10% per annum. The renewed loan will be

matured on 26 March 2022.

For loan receivable, management has taken into accounts the
credit assessment on the borrowers and the pledged property and

considered the expected credit loss rate is nil.

27. AR - ES R HAMERRK
15 (&)
Hiatb  EARBR2017E6 B 15 HEH &

GFEES - FERZENREARRE
MEAZE2021F6 A15H 1F - ANEE IE
EEEREARR - BRDETEILE
=7

RFE B E - RREFREDIT
OO0 H AR -

MN20214F 3 A31H &2020453 A
318 YW E 718,000,000 7t &
18,012,000 % 7t 4% & | & 5% &t B A
2021 FE K 20203 A31 B —HES
FAEEMES - HDERE - ERE
318,000,000 7T 2 f& im B i &2021
F3A26H  MEEEN2021 6 A29
HESE REMNRI0%:TE - &EH
EREN 202243 26 HEIH -

RERERNE  BEEEEEMERA
&%&?W%%E’MZ, AT WRBATEEE
EFEBRLERR/T -

Note c: Details of the prepayments, deposits and other receivables are as Biite - TENFIA - e REAMRBGRIEF BN
follows: N

2021 2020
2021 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Prepayments B FIE 48,894 7,280
Deposits e 2,292 2,538
Other receivables (note i) H 5K 36,810 16,849
87,996 26,667

Less: Prepayments-non-current (note /) B SETR BN TR I (A e i) (39,867)
Amounts shown as current assets HIER BB ERTE 48,129 26,667

Notes:

(i) Other receivables mainly included amounts paid on behalf of
incorporated owners of buildings for property management

and government subsidies receivables.

(ii) Prepayments of approximately HK$39,867,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB33,600,000) classified as non-current
assets represented 80% deposit for acquisition of a property

in the PRC (Note 42(a)).

Shi Shi Services Limited
B B AR 35 PR 2 7

EE

(i) Hit B2 eERET
ZEITREENYEER
FRIA N R T 8 AL -

(i) 8 1~ FX 1E 49 39,867,000 7% 7T
(H & R % A R # 33,600,000
)P BEAEERSEE HAR
PRI —EMENSOR ES
(MiEr42(a)) o



28.

29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME
For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 28. SIHRITER
2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FETT
Pledged bank deposits BEHEFIRITER 574 1,629
The Group’s pledged bank deposits represented deposits REBZEEKMRITFRIELZE I

pledged to banks to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group as set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements. The pledged bank deposits are denominated in
HK$ and are made for varying periods of between one day
and one year depending on the immediate cash requirement
of the Group and earn interest at the respective short-term
time deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history
of default. The annual interest rate of 0.01% to 0.25%
(2020: 0.01% to 0.25%) as at 31 March 2021.

BRERMERFFCEFEFRITZ
FER o EAAEERAREITRENIE
o BRI FEIUABILEE - B
RE—BEZE—F1% ST¥AEEZ
BN IR F K E © 26 S BT 8
FERFRAE - RITEBMEETE
RFETOBYEE RS E8R
172 8R17 - 2021 F 3 A 31 BHEF
& 50.01% % 0.25% (2020 £ - 0.01%
Z0.25%) ©

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20. RERBEEEY
2021 2020
2021 & 2020 4%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Cash on hand FHERE 1,594 326
Bank balances IRTTHE 103,734 141,096
105,328 141,422

The cash and bank balances are denominated in HK$ and
RMB.

As at 31 March 2021, the bank and cash balances of the
Group denominated in RMB amount to HK$17,329,000
(2020: HK$53,761,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulation.

Be MIRITEBRAETRARKEHE -

MR2021%F3 A31H AEBUARE
SHERRITRIRE A 17,329,000
77T (20204F : 53,761,000 7T) © A
R 5 M B INEZ h B ANE B SR IA R
HIFE R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 30. ESRHMEMNKE

2021 2020
2021 % 2020 fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FETT
Trade payables =0 INE QL 2,542 2,678
Building management deposits received 2 WiEFE RIS 5,020 5,159
Accruals and other payables FEETIRE A M H M FE T 3B 72,597 61,516
80,159 69,353

The aging analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice B S ENFIBIRERHBHNRER DT

date, is as follows: PN

2021 2020

2021 2020 4%
HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET
1 to 30 days 1£30H 1,297 1,316
31 to 60 days 31%60H 1,236 1,362
61 to 90 days 61E90H 9 -
2,542 2678

Details of the accruals and other payables are as follows: FERHIR B A R EMENFIEFFH T
2021 2020

2021 4 2020 4

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FETT

Accrued staff cost and staff benefits JEETIRE T A& B T&F 33,569 34,303
Accrued expenses JEET IR X 15,804 3,186
Other payables (note) H & 5RIB (A1 5) 23,224 24,027
72,597 61,516

Note: Included in other payable were amount of approximately HK$52,000 Wi EH#FERRIER2021F3A318 &
and approximately HK$48,000 due to related parties as at 31 March 2020F3 A31 BN R B IE RN BIE 5

2021 and 31 March 2020 respectively. FRIAHI 52,0007 7T & 49 48,000 % 7T

Shi Shi Services Limited
B B AR 35 PR 2 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

31. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Disclosures of revenue-related items:

BRAE
W 1RRE B B

2021 2020

2021 F 2020 4F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FETT

Contract liabilities eHaE 3,189 4,004
Contract receivables (included in trade JEWAXIZIEB (St AE 5

receivables) FEWFRIR) 83,414 89,562

Transaction prices allocated to performance obligations
unsatisfied at end of the year and expected to be recognised
as revenue in:

% 5 EIEHRERE MK EN 2B
DT LEAER A THERERR
3%

2021 2020
2021 % 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F#ETT
— year ended 31 March 2021 ~HEZ2021F3A31HItFE - 3,904
— year ended 31 March 2022 —EHZE2022F3H31HILFE 3,148 100
— year ended 31 March 2023 -HE2023F3A318ILFE 4 -
3,189 4,004

Significant changes in contract liabilities during the year: BHBERFANEREE) :
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BT B A A - -
Increased due to operations in the period — Hf A [A] % 74 258 & 2% A0 8,360 9,055
Transfer of contract liabilities to revenue B A X B EZ W (9,473) (9,311)
Exchange realignment bE W AR 298 (286)

Included in contract liabilities were amounts of approximately
HK$87,000 and approximately HK$271,000 as at 31 March
2021 and 31 March 2020 respectively, which represented
contract liabilities with a related party.

BHBERENRIN2021F3 A31H
K 20203 H31 A 2 ;X IE #187,000

BTN #)271,00078 7T (K58 — 2

o ZBMAaE) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

31. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued) 31.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer products or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

32. BANK BORROWINGS - SECURED

BHRE A
BMAEREARERKIEFAE (K

EHRESHE) MAEREEMIR

BIEFPZEME-

32. IRITIBEE—-BEH

2021 2020
2021 & 2020 F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Bank loans, secured fiﬁféf?ﬂ A 5,354 9,128
Bank overdrafts, secured TEX AR - 2,543
5,354 11,671
The borrowings are repayable as follows: JEEEEELT :
2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
On demand or within one year BERFPN—FNR 5,354 11,671
Less: Amount due for settlement within 35 : 7 121& B A 2 8 % 1+ 49
12 months (shown under B AEREERE)
current liabilities) (5,354) (11,671)
Amount due for settlement after 1218 A& BB S S B9 5008
12 months - -
The interest rates per annum at 31 March were as follows: MIA3IBAMERRET -
2021 2020
2021 & 2020 F
Bank loans, secured fﬁﬁ%ﬁ?ﬂi FHE R 3.51% 3.53%
Bank overdrafts, secured TEY - BEM 4.26% 6.94%

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, borrowings of the Group
were denominated in HK$.

Shi Shi Services Limited
O) BEBRBERAT

R20214F ) 202093 A31 H » K&
EEERBTTIIE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

32. BANK BORROWINGS - SECURED (continued)

The Group’s banking facilities were secured by:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(f)

(8

Pledge of deposits placed for life insurance (note 24);

Pledge of the Group’s fixed bank deposits (note 28);

Unlimited guarantee by related companies (note 40);

Joint and several unlimited personal guarantees by a
director of the Company and a director of a subsidiary
(note 40);

Various counter indemnities for issuance of
performance bonds;

Pledge of property, plant and equipment (note 18); and

Pledge of investment property (note 19).

As at 31 March 2021, banking facilities granted to the Group
are approximately HK$54.0 million (2020: approximately
HK$48.5 million).

As at 31 March 2021, approximately HK$6.7 million (2020:
HK$14.9 million) of the banking facilities have been utilised
by the Group.

32. RITEE-HER (F)

AEBRVIRTTRYE i M5B IRMEI -

(a)

(8

KHEBASRBREANKZS (K
24)

EHAEE R FEHRITT R (B
s¥28)

B8 E N A AR R E R (MR
40) :

ARB—BREENMBAR %
B AR N E R ERAREAE
& (M47£40) :

RELBEORBSFELZERE
EIREE

HHWE B Kzt (Mt 18)
K

HRREME (HE19) -

M2021F3 A31H ' BFAEERIER
1TREE 4954008 78 T (20204 : 49
48508&7T) °

M20214%E3A318 - 96708 % 7T
(20204 : 1,490 88 7T) MIRITRE
DEAREEFHA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

33. LEASE LIABILITIES

33. HEAE

Minimum lease payments

Present value of
minimum lease payments

RERANTR RERAOAIRRE
As at As at As at As at
31 March 1 April 31 March 1 April
2021 2020 2021 2020
H2021 & 7 2020 & A2021 & A 2020
3H31H 4A1H 3H31H 4A1H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT FER FAET
Within one year —FR 4,743 4,432 4,184 4,205
In the second to fifth years, B-FZERF (PHEH
inclusive EmE) 9,858 2,332 9,138 2,286
14,601 6,764 13,322 6,491
Less: Future finance charge  J& : KRR E X (1,279) (273)
Present value of lease HEAERE
obligations 13,322 6,491
Less:  Amount due for w1218 A R EIE
settlement within 12 S HRIA
months (shown Glareas)
under current
liabilities) (4,184) (4,205)
Amount due for settlement 1218 A% 2| EIX RO
after 12 months 18 9,138 2,286

Shi Shi Services Limited
B B AR 35 PR 2 7




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. B
Number of
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each shares HK$’000
SREBEOIEBTHITER BB EE FET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREECOLB LA E B
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020 and R2019F4H1H -
31 March 2021 20203 A31B X
202143 A31H 5,000,000,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each EHRREE0.01 B TA AR
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020 and R2019F 4 A 1H
31 March 2021 20203 A31 8 »
20213 A31H 1,026,351,515 10,264

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group ’ s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to
risk. The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the payment of dividends, issue new
shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts, redeem existing
debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-
adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by adjusted capital. Net debt is calculated as total
debts less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital
comprises all components of equity (i.e. share capital, share
premium, retained profits and other reserves).

AEEEAEENBERRREAEE
FELENRN LB BE(CERRE
AR AR ERE AR -

AEEZLPRERBREASEE - N
SEEREBENGERE  YRBELER
AR AEEEERBREHNE(CMIEL
HE - BETHABREANERE  ~A&H
AlRe e EERBIRN - BITHAD -
EIERG BEFE BLRAES
FHEEENRDER -

AEBMUEHEEHBEAR LR BE
REEIRER o L RIREEF LR A
RARENSE - B FRIZAES
WA E MR FEYTE - BHEE
RNBIEE R PTA A E 7 (RO
Petnm (@ - REBGEN MEMRFERE) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 35. R H&RERMEE
OF CASH FLOWS

REREED2AEEH

Change in liabilities arising from financing activities

The following table shows the Group’s changes in liabilities

TRV AEEFAREREEDZ

arising from financing activities during the year: BEZH :
Bank Total
horrowings liabilities
other than Finance from
bank leases Lease financing
overdrafts payables liabilities activities
RITEE
(BTEX EIRE MEEE
RN HERE HEEE SB4AE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TET TET
At 1 April 2019 M2019F 4 A 1H 9,499 540 - 10,039
Changes in cash flows ReneEs (371) - (4,005) (4,376)
Non-cash changes R EE
— initial recognition - IBHER - - 9,312 9,312
— transfer ~ B - (540) 540 -
- addition -RE - - 644 644
At 31 March 2020 20203 A31H 9,128 - 6,491 15,619
Changes in cash flows Reang# (9,128) - (4,647) (13,779)
Non-cash changes FReE
— addition -NE 5,354 - 12,530 17,884
— termination of lease ~EHE - - (1,052) (1,052)
At 31 March 2021 20213 A 318 5,354 - 13,322 18,676

Shi Shi Services Limited
B B AR 35 PR 2 7




36. RESERVES

(@

(b)

()

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

Group (@

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Company (b)
The amounts of the Company’s reserves and the

movements therein for the year ended 31 March 2021
are as follows:

36. f#1&

HEH

AEBRFENSBENMNEFEELR
B8R M 2 U s R A R AR
ERmEHRANZT -

b NN
RABREZE202143 831 H

LtFEENRESEREZEHMN
o

Share  Contributed Accumulated
premium surplus losses Total
BDEE BARB RIESE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET TET TET
At 1 April 2019 720194 A 1H 179,975 4,750 (10,362) 174,363
Total comprehensive loss for 4 A & [ &5 18 48 58
the year - - (14,774) (14,774)
At 31 March 2020 and 20203 A31H &
1 April 2020 2020F4 A 18 179,975 4,750 (25,136) 159,589
Total comprehensive loss for N2 HE1EE5E
the year - - (8,328) (8,328)
At 31 March 2021 20213 A31H 179,975 4,750 (33,464) 151,261
Nature and purpose of reserves (c) RENAHERRE

()  Share premium account

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.

() ROZER

RIBERSBHESRRDE AR
AR R (ER B A HD
KT ARBRR - HEERERE
B SANI SN LSV NN]
AR NEEENAERE
BIEPEREZET -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

36. RESERVES (continued)

()

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the aggregated
amounts of issued capital of KSG, KSU, K-King
and Q&V as at 31 March 2013, the date on which
the aggregated issued capital was reallocated to
merger reserve after the Group’s reorganisation for
the purpose of the listing of the Company’s shares
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company arose as
a result of the Group reorganisation implemented
in preparation for the listing of the Company’s
shares on the GEM of the Stock Exchange and
represented the excess of the then consolidated
net assets of the subsidiaries acquired, over the
nominal value of the share capital of the Company
issued in exchange therefore.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve
comprises all foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in
note 3(d) to the consolidated financial statements.

Shi Shi Services Limited
B B AR 35 PR 2 7

36. f## ()
RENEERRE (8)

(c)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

B EfE

AU mIER 201343 A
31 HKSG  BREEAE ~ HS
LGREZEBITRAZES
B AR RN N E B
BRZMAARARGEM E
mimE - %A D ETRA
RENARECEHKEE
MOBERFHE -

A ZE

RRABHABERTIGA LT
P 0 170 B 32 P GEM £ T 2
TASESHEMEL 15E
R B A RGReEE
FEBBARTEITAER
BEBRAREERD

SEREEE

SNERERBREMARE
BINERERIERRPIEE 2
[EHER - AHREDRE
fRE TS IRR MR 3(d) FTER
SRFBUREHE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@

(b)

Performance bond and incorporated owners’ fund

Performance bond has been issued by a bank and an
insurance company as the Group maintains certain
incorporated owners’ funds in the form of client
accounts which were held on trust for and on behalf
of the incorporated owners. These client accounts are
not recognised as assets and associated liabilities in
the financial statements of the Group. At the end of
reporting period, the directors of the Company do not
consider it probable that a claim on the performance
bonds will be made against the Group.

As at 31 March 2021, the amount of outstanding
performance bond was approximately HK$15.7 million
(2020: HK$10.8 million).

As at 31 March 2021, the aggregate amount of the
bank balances in the client accounts not dealt with
in the consolidated financial statements of the Group
is approximately HK$46.8 million (2020: HK$47.2
million).

Legal cases

In carrying out the ordinary course of business,
the Group is subject to the risk of being named as
defendant in legal actions, claims and disputes in
connection with its business activities. The nature of the
legal proceedings initiated against the Group generally
include (i) claims for employees’ compensation by
the Group’s employees; (ii) claims for personal injury
caused by the negligence of the Group and owners’
corporations of the properties by passersby, residents
or other users of the respective properties; (iii) claims
for property damage or economic loss caused by the
negligence of the Group and owners’ corporations of the
properties by residents or other users of the respective
properties; and (iv) claims for property damage caused
by the negligence of individual flat owners by other
residents or users of the respective properties. The
Group maintains insurance cover and, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, based on current
evidence, any such existing claims have no material
financial impact to the Group as at 31 March 2021.

37. FIREE

(@

(b)

BHRBEREZIURZEES

RITRAREBARE#HHEHR
Ee RRRAKRENEFPERP
(BEREREZFETIRZEZEEAR
BIRAREETERELREE
B - REEPRPILENASE
BB mERERSEENMEBA
B RBEHR ARAEFR
RUAEEFHBROREBESRE
HYATRE AN K ©

MR2021 %3 3318 - FENBLY
RBES 4 A1,5708 # 7T (2020
F:1,0808BT) °

R2021 %63 A31H EBFEFK
RERAEBLGRE M TEHRREIE
RERTTIR BB S TBH B 46808
T (20204 : 4,720 &% 7T) ©

ERER

RETHBEBFBRIEFR - AKE
A E B EB A ge i ERITE) -
RERFHETRAHSEMELER
% o M AEBEREAEREFAM
BEREEBREOASENEER
EEFERINRE : (VA EE
KENE T LBRE 25
BOASFZE  AEBEYERNE
A FEESEMEAALTREDN
RE: (IVARBERYENEETL
REERRZS|I B EBEREE
ALEBR  MAEAMENESR
SHEMEBATREINRE &
(iv) 8 Bl B2\ 3 £ 57 2. 5| B %
BEREE  RABEYENEAME
EAFERAALTREMNEKRE - K&

ERRRERERE  MARFE
SR RIBEATER - 1K 2021
FI3A3E  HAXFRERE

BT euAREERNEAMBE
2 .
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

38. EAAIE

REERHRE PR EARAIENT

2021 2020
2021 % 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB MR
— Contracted but not provided for - ERNBRIERE 15,093 5,726
39. LEASE COMMITMENTS 39. A EE
Commitments under operating leases REHENETAIE

As lessor

The Group leases out certain of its investment property.
At the end of reporting period, the future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable leases are receivables as

1ERHBEA

AEELBEEE TREYE - RMRE
HIK - Al BGEHAE 418 T B R UOR 2R
REBONFMT

follows:
2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHETT
Within one year —F R 650 1,201
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_HFEERLF (BRERMT) 210 294
860 1,495

Operating lease income represent rentals receivables by the
Group for its investment property. Leases are negotiated for
terms of 2 years and rentals are fixed over the lease terms
and do not include contingent rentals.

Shi Shi Services Limited
B B AR 35 PR 2 7
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

(@) Related party transactions (a)

In addition to those related party transactions and
balances disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with its related parties during the year:

40. BB AR S

BBE XS

BRiR e M mREME Y N E
BT R 5 MR  AERER
FREERBBHIENUNTIRS :

2021 2020
2021 % 2020 4%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHEx FHETT
Rental paid to related companies BEfNEELARES
— Kong Shum Union (China) Limited - RE4 (FRE) R A A
(“KSU China”) (IERBaHE]) - 12
Lease with KSU China: HBERBEPRE2HE
— Repayment of lease liabilities -BEEHERE - 16
— Depreciation on right-of-use assets ~ —{F REEERE - 16
Property management service fee JEWEERR ZMEE R
received from related companies % &
- EAEKEES AR QA -BAEMENIEESBRAA - 376
- BEEMERR LA -BAMERRAA 879 959
Compensation paid to directors of the BN ARFIEEZEMSE
Company 4,101 5,118

Mr. Ho Ying Choi a director of the Company and Mr. Ho Ying
Cheung, a director of KSU, have control over the related
company, KSU China.

At 31 March 2021 and 2020, Mr. Ho Ying Choi and Mr.
Ho Ying Cheung had provided joint and several unlimited
personal guarantees in favour of banking facilities granted to
certain subsidiaries within the Group (note 32).

BAESEREAAR AR and BEMESR QA are
companies incorporated in the PRC and indirectly wholly-
owned by Mr. Huang Liming (“Mr. Huang”), the chairman of
the board of director of the Company, an executive director
and a controlling shareholder of the Company. During the
year ended 31 March 2020, the Company and 18 4 # &
B[R~ 7] entered into a property management framework
agreement (the “Framework Agreement”). The property
management service fee received from 18 & i Z= A fR A 7]
during the year were under this Framework Agreement.

R BV E FAA] R B O A K R B
REEMEFLEHBERRE
RE AR ESRE -

2021 € % 202043 A31 8 -
o] B B ST A I fr] FERE S HE BE AN SR
EiE TS THBAREREITE
B R & (@R 2R EREA
R (FI5E32) °

BAMEKSIEES AR AT RIE
A E AR A B AR E FE A
YZARIRBAERPRE ([FHE
£ BERRREESER AR
AMITEERIERRER) BEe
BB -PEZE202063 A31H
HFE  ARREEAMESRR
NBRFINETIBIER = ([E
BipEl) RERNEBEEMES
RARMEBKMEEERRBEE TS
R L AE 28 17 2 LU o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

41.

(continued)

(b) Key management personnel remuneration (b)

Members of key management personnel during the
year comprised only of the directors of the company
whose remuneration is set out in note 13.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

40. B X5 (&)

TEEEEASETMH

41. AR BEMRR K

RERNETEEREAEKEER
BARBZES  HFBERH

THE COMPANY
2021 2020
2021 & 2020 F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BEREE - 4
Investments in subsidiaries LEKEB A A 13,144 13,144
Loan to a subsidiary ERTF—HEKBARA 15,000 15,000
28,144 28,148
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other BRI Ze Rk
receivables H th & R IB 349 412
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG E 99,325 100,510
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBAEEED 35,602 43,482
135,276 144,404
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Accruals and other payables FEETIR B A N H At JE 1~ 50IR 1,095 941
Amounts due to subsidiaries N NG E 800 1,758
1,895 2,699
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEZFEE 133,381 141,705
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES REERRBEE 161,525 169,853
NET ASSETS EEFE 161,525 169,853
EQUITY EE
Share capital & AR 10,264 10,264
Reserves (e 151,261 159,589
TOTAL EQUITY AR 161,525 169,853

Shi Shi Services Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(220219F 3431 H 1 F/Z

42. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, the Group has the following events after reporting
period:

(@

Acquisition of property

On 28 December 2020, Shishi Network Technology
Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
property sale agreement with Mr. Huang, pursuant to
which Mr. Huang has conditionally agreed to sell and
Shishi Network has conditionally agreed to acquire a
property at a consideration of RMB42 million.

The property consists of five office units 222105 to
222109 on level 18 in Block 6 (Unit 2) on No.1 Futong
East Street, Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC. The
property will serve the purposes of the Company as a
headquarter office in the PRC and an experience centre
for the living service platform of the Group (the “Shi Shi
Living Service Centre”) for conference with potential
clients and demonstration of its concept on property
management in the PRC.

The acquisition was approved by the Company’s
shareholders in the extraordinary general meeting held
on 29 January 2021. On 4 June 2021, the Company
announced that the title of the property has been
transferred to Shishi Network Technology Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2202143531 HIFF/E

42. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD
(continued)

(b) Provision of loan

On 25 February 2021, Lucky Stone Finance Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a loan agreement with Mr. Ho Ying Choi, an executive
Director of the Company, pursuant to which Lucky
Stone Finance Limited has conditionally agreed to
provide the Loan in the principal amount of HK$24
million to Mr. Ho, as borrower, for a period of two years
commencing from the date of drawdown of the loan at

an interest rate of 10% per annum.

The loan agreement was approved by the Company’s
shareholders in the extraordinary general meeting held
on 16 April 2021 and the HK$24 million loan has been

drawn by Mr. Ho Ying Choi on 21 April 2021.

43. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 June

2021.

Shi Shi Services Limited
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hFMBHE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of T3 ARNEBRBETR AN KRFEE 2 £4E
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from UREERBEHEZ  IHEEECTES
the published audited financial statements and reclassified as &EEXFERER N L@ HINAEFH D
appropriate, is set out below. ¥ o

RESULTS FE

For the years ended 31 March
BZE3A3NALEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
2021 2020 2019%F 20184 2017 F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR THET TR

Revenue i 511,116 487,395 425,661 412,271 395,514
Cost of services AR A (402,478) (376,495) (322,013) (317,872) (312,206)
Gross profit EF 108,638 110,900 103,648 94,399 83,308
Interest revenue FE s 1,006 568 3,400 1,997 303
Other income and expenses, net  E i A K 5 5% 58 20,519 (1,100) 26,729 6,387 35
Share of (loss)/profit of an E(E— & A F]

associate (B18) /&H (5,130) (1,320) 5,249 4999 -
Administrative expenses THREX (62,287) (54,358) (52,198) (49,983) (51,958)
Other operating expenses HEmEERY (22,377) (19,040) (21,030) (18,144) (17,984)
Impairment of investment inan A —E# & A &

associate RENRE (16,500) - - - -
Listing expenses isiilib3 (2,893) (11,367) - - -
Finance costs BMEKA (581) (1,018) (56b) (1,329) (196)
Profit before taxation BR% AR A 20,395 23,265 65,233 38,326 13,508
Income tax expense e (4,541) (9,065) (7,853) (7,363) (3,320)
Net profit for the year ERENFE 15,854 14,200 57,380 30,963 10,188
Other comprehensive Hib2 W/

(A%)  NKEHE
BEBIEBHREL L

income/(expense), net of tax
Exchange differences on

translation of foreign operations  [& 5 Z & 5,183 (4,505) 637 173 -
Gain/(loss) on reclassification of 54— EIM B A AlE

translation reserve to profit to BRERBENHE

loss upon deregistration of a X Eapdl 6

subsidiary (B18) 3) - - - -
Gain/(loss) on equity investment  ZAREFAEMEE

at fair value through other Wz RERE

comprehensive income Wi/ (B18) - - 10 - (4,267)
Other comprehensive income/  FREMEE

(expense) for the year Wi/ (Rx) 5,180 (4,505) 647 173 (4,267)
Total comprehensive income/  FR2EWE / (B%)

(expense) for the year ok 21,034 9,695 58,027 31,136 5,921
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A FMBHE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EERAE

As at 31 March

W3AB31H

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

2021 & 2020 F 20194 2018 2017 F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TERr THET THET TER TET

Total assets BELE 422,644 393,590 378,716 272,458 203,395

Total liabilities BEeE (103,673) (94,768) (89,589) (76,381) (87,125)

Net assets EEFE 318,971 298,822 289,127 196,077 116,270
Equity attributable to owners ENNEIE 2PN

of the Company Ba 318,971 297,961 288,226 192,754 116,270

Non-controlling interests FEER S - 861 901 3,323 -

318,971 298,822 289,127 196,077 116,270

Shi Shi Services Limited
B B AR 35 PR 2 7
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Shi Shi Services Limited
RFEFREER QA

Unit 903, 9 Floor, Haleson Building,
1 Jubilee Street, Central, Hong Kong
B IRARFE 1R EAAEIEI03IE

Tel EFERNS ¢ (852) 2155 4112
Fax fEESRIS @ (852) 2155 4114
Email &% : ir@shishiservices.com.hk

www.shishiservices.com.hk
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